IRON-CATALYZED CROSS-COUPLING REACTIONS



Iron-catalyzed cross-coupling reactions

By

Xin Qian

B.Sc. Nankai University (2008)

Tian Jin, China

A dissertation submitted to the School of Graduate Studies in partial fulfillment of the

requirements for the degree of Master of Science (M.Sc.)

Department of Chemistry

Memorial University of Newfoundland

St. John's, Newfoundland, Canada

2010

Copyright © Xin Qian 2010

Abstract

This thesis concerns the synthesis and analy of integrills halds complexes supported by mini-bidgebandari ligneds. These paramagnetic molecules users handbrieff by a visited of methods including DLED of mana spectrometry and UV-visi spectrometry. Two dimetrix into complexes, $[Fr(2G)_{12}^{(0)}M^{(0)}m^{(0)})$, $(1+G)_{12}^{(0)}M^{(0)}m^{(0)}$, $(1+G)_{12}^{(0)}M^{(0)}m^{(0)}m^{(0)}$, $(1+G)_{12}^{(0)}M^{(0)}m^$

The reality synthesize, increasing, and relatively size-ratio rescores (resp. $(PCO)_{i}^{Aderal}$), one were as with and efficient cample for C-C conscention of the (PCO)_{i}^{Aderal}), one were as with a difficult cample of the outperformance of the synthesis of the outperformance of the outperformance

used as deterministic in humber of finational groups are tolerated. Crosscoupling products are obtained in good to exactlent yield as shown by GAMSa off 1980, mahylis. Screening of conso-coupling reasons, for over thirty subtrate combinations and the effect of microwave heating on reaction yields are described. Medianistics tandes suggest a radiationalization rate to cross-coupling as shown by "radio disk" equipments.

We also present the ability of FC(1), to show the CCI bands in CC(1), callso CO bands in CC(2), in the presence of Gragment samps. Different conficients for the catalytic system are explored, and the predicts are obtained from the six excitlent yields. The results are annihumed by CC-MS and ¹1 NMR. To our knowledge, this is the first minimum state of the size of the second and a major size accurately below the first efficient adults any-skilly coupling of CI(C), Hypothesen regarding the mechanism of conso-coupling are presented.

Keywords: Iron; Hemogeneous catalyst; Green chemistry; C-C formation, Grignard reasent.

Acknowledgements

I word first like in huke ny supervisor, Dr. Christopher Kouski, fich is pairises support. His wild kendularis in the since, a sub-like of experivisor is trustuding, and high degree of performantians and suggestions have been instabilities of the project. Where the displace and derivessis, I words on these fectored on componentialities should be displaced or dry using and a grant cause for shalk I will smight and works had for future setts.

I would like to thank my group members Rebecca, Hassan, Zheutheng, Ndaka, Karnerik, Samantha, Khaled and Utana. They brought me into the wenderful world of research, and not only gave me valuable advice in academics, but also helped my transition into a different culture.

I would also like to thank all C-CART members: to Louise for all my crystal structure work; to Linda and Lidan for MALDI-TOF training and analysis; to Celine for NMR training and help.

Feremost, I would like to express my gratitude to my parents, family and boyfriend for their support and encouragement during my study. Your love enlightened my life.

iv

Table of Contents

Iron-catalyzed cross-coupling reactions	
Abstract	
Acknowledgements	iv
Table of Contents	v
List of Schemes	xii
List of Figures	xvi
List of Tables	xviii
List of Abbreviations	XX
Chapter 1. Iron-Catalyzed Cross-coupling Reactions	1
1.1 Organometallic Background	1
1.2 Introduction to Catalytic Cross-Coupling Reactions Promoted by Iron	2
1.2.1 Suzuki Coupling	3
1.2.2 Negishi Coupling	5
1.2.3 Heck Coupling	7
1.3 Kumada-type C-C Formation Reactions Promoted by Iron	9
1.3.1 Cross-coupling with Acyl Electrophiles	9
1.3.2 Cross-coupling with Alkenyl Electrophiles	11

v

1.3.3 Cross-coupling with Aryl Electrophiles	16
1.3.4 Cross-coupling with Alkyl Electrophiles	24
1.3.4.1 Fürstner	24
1.3.4.2 Nakamura and Cossy	25
1.3.4.3 Bedford	26
1.3.4.4 Cahiez	31
1.3.4.5 Others	32
1.4 Summary of Cross-coupling Reactions	36
1.5 Introduction to Microwave Chemistry	37
1.6 References	38
Chapter 2. Synthesis and Characterization of Amine-bis(phenolate) Ligands and	d Iron (III)
Complexes	45
2.1 Introduction and research objectives	45
$2.2 \ Synthesis of the [[O_2N] - type ligands$	46
2.3 Characterization of the ligands	48
2.4 Synthesis of Fe(III) complexes	50
2.5 Characterization of Fe(III) complexes	52
2.5.1 MALDI-TOF MS	52
2.5.2 Molecular structure determinations	55

vi

2.5.3 UV-visible Spectroscopy	68
2.5.4 Magnetic studies	71
2.6 Experimental Section	75
2.6.1 Materials	75
2.6.2 Methods	75
2.6.3 Instruments	76
2.6.4 Synthesis	77
2.7 Conclusions	84
2.8 References:	85
Chapter 3. Iron-Catalyzed sp ³ -sp ² Kumada C-C Cross-coupling Reactions	88
3.1 Introduction	88
3.2 Results & Discussion	90
3.2.1 General Procedure	90
3.2.2 Cyclohexyl halides as substrates	91
3.2.3 Benzyl balides as substrates	94
3.2.4 Primary alkyl halides as substrates	95
3.2.5 Acyclic secondary alkyl halides as substrates	98
3.2.6 Functional-group alkyl halides as substrates	99
3.3 Mechanistic Studies	101

vii

3.4 Esperimental	107
3.4.1 Instrumentation	107
3.4.2 General Procedures	107
3.4.2.1 Catalytic Method for Microwave assisted	108
3.4.2.2 Catalytic Method at Room Temperature	108
3.5 Conclusion	109
3.6 References	109
Chapter 4. Iron-catalyzed Double C-CI Bond Cleavage in Dichloromethane	and
Chloroform	114
4.1 Introduction	114
4.2 Results & Discussion	116
4.2.1 General Procedure	116
4.2.2 Catalyst Loading Study	117
4.2.3 Effects of Nucleophile to Electrophile Ratio, Addition Rate and Temperature	
	118
4.2.4 Variation of Iron Salt and Use of Additives	119
4.2.5 Different Grignard Reagents	122
4.2.6 Results for CDCI ₃ Activation	125
4.3 Conclusions	126

viii

4.4 Experimental	128
4.4.1 Instrumentation	128
4.4.2 General Procedures	129
4.4.2.1 Catalytic Method at Room Temperature	129
4.4.2.2 Catalytic Method for Microwave Heating	130
4.4.2.3 Catalytic Method at 0 °C	130
4.5 References	130
Chapter 5. Future Work	134
5.1 Introduction	134
5.2 Further Studies of Iron-Catalyzed CH2Cl2 Activation Reactions	134
5.3 Iron-catalyzed Sonogashira C-C cross-coupling reaction	135
5.4 C-H Functionalization	137
5.5 References	140
Appendix	143
Figure A1: ¹ H NMR spectrum for L1.	143
Figure A2: ¹ H NMR spectrum for L2.	144
Figure A3: ¹ H NMR spectrum for L3.	145
Figure A4: ¹ H NMR spectrum for L4.	146
Figure A5: ¹ H NMR spectrum for L6.	147

ix

Figure A6:: ¹ H NMR spectrum for L7.	148
Figure A7: MALDI-TOF spectrum for {FeCI[O ₂ N] ^{BulluePt} }}2(2)	149
Figure A8: MALDI-TOF spectrum for $\{\text{FeCI}[O_2N]^{\text{BulledY}}\}_2\ (3)$	150
Figure A9: MALDI-TOF spectrum for (FeCI[O ₂ N] ^{Bulluth})(4)	151
Figure A10: MALDI-TOF spectrum for {FeCI[O2N] ^{Buildens} }2(6)	151
Figure A11: MALDI-TOF spectrum for {FeCI[O2N] ¹⁷¹⁰⁷ }2(7)	153
Figure A12: Molecular structure (ORTEP) and complete atom labell $\label{eq:Figure} FeCI[O_2N]^{0,MotP}\}_2.$	ng of 154
Table A1: Bond lengths (\tilde{A}) for $\{FeCl[O_2N]^{Babboth}\}_2$	154
Table A2: Bond angles (*) for {FeCI[O ₂ N] ^{Butterb} }2	155
Table A3: Torsion angles (*) {FeCI[O ₂ N] ^{BaMod*} }2	156
Figure A13: Molecular structure (ORTEP) and complete atom labelli $\{FeCI[O_2N]^{Rabelin}\}_2,$	ng of 157
Table A4: Bond lengths (Å) for $\{FeCI[O_2N]^{habble}\}_2$	157
Table A5: Bond angles (*) for {FeCI[O ₂ N] ^{Babtoln} } ₂	159
Table A6: Torsion angles (*) for {FeCI[O ₂ N] ^{babdh} } ₂	160
Figure A14: Molecular structure (ORTEP) and complete atom labelin	ng of
FcBr ₂ [O ₂ NH] ^{Bubboty} .	163
Table A7: Bond lengths (Å) for FeBr ₂ [O ₂ NH] ^{Buttorb}	164

Table A8: Bond angles (*) for FeBr_[O_2NH] ^{Bddosh}	164	
Table A9: Torsion angles (*) for ${\rm FeBr}_2{\rm [O_2NH]}^{\rm Ballouty}$	165	
¹ H NMR data of cross-coupled products and radical clock experiments (for Chapter		
3)	167	
NMR Data for "Radical Clock" Experiments	169	
GC Traces and Mass Spectra of Selected Products Given in Chapter 3	170	
GC traces of cross-coupling products: o-tolyl Grignard Reagent	with	
Dichloromethane	207	

List of Schemes

Scheme 1.1 Suzuki-type biaryl coupling by Nakamura et al.	4	
Scheme 1.2 Suzuki-type biaryl coupling under high pressure	5	
Scheme 1.3 Negishi type alkylations by Nakamura et al.	6	
Scheme 1.4 Negishi type arylations by Nakamura et al.	6	
Scheme 1.5 Negishi type alkylations by Cahiez et al.	7	
Scheme 1.6 Negishi type arylations by Bedford et al.	7	
Scheme 1.7 Heck-type reactions by Vogel et al.	8	
Scheme 1.8 Iron-catalyzed acylations reported by Fürstner et al.	10	
Scheme 1.9 Iron-catalyzed acylations according to Knochel et al.	п	
Scheme 1.10 First iron-catalyzed coupling of vinyl bromide with primary Grignard		
reagents by Kochi et al.	12	
Scheme 1.11 Stereospecificity in the Kumada-Corriu Cross-coupling.	12	
Scheme 1.12 Iron-catalyzed alkenylation of Grignard reagent by Cahiez et al.	13	
Scheme 1.13 Iron-catalyzed alkenylation of Grignard reagent by Fitestner et al.	14	
Scheme 1.14 Synthesis of Clozapine analogues by Olsson et al.	15	
Scheme 1.15 Cross-coupling with chloroenynes by Alami et al.	15	
Scheme 1.16 Iron-catalyzed anylation of Grignard reagents by Fürstner et al.	16	
Scheme 1.17 Formation of an inorganic Grignard reagent described by Bogdanovic's		
group	17	

xii

Scheme 1.18 Illustration of the strikingly different behavior of MeMgBr at	d
EtMgBr in iron-catalyzed cross-coupling reactions	8
Scheme 1.19 Monoalkylation of dichloro-substituted heteroarenes by Fürstner et a	d,
1	9
Scheme 1.20 Monoalkylation of dichloro-substituted arenes Fürstner et al.	9
Scheme 1.21 Homo-coupling of aryl Grignard reagents by Cahiez et al. 1	9
Scheme 1.22 Homo-coupling of aryl Grignard reagents by Cahiez et al. 2	0
Scheme 1.23 Homo-coupling of Grignard reagents by Pei et al. 2	I
Scheme 1.24 Cross-coupling reaction between phenyl Grignard reagent an	d
heteroaryl halides 2	2
Scheme 1.25 Cross-coupling reaction between phenyl Grignard reagent an	đ
heteroaryl halides by Knochel et al. 2	2
Scheme 1.26 Cross-coupling reaction between phenyl Grignard reagent and ary	ſ
halides by Knochel et al. 2.	5
Scheme 1.27 Cross-coupling reaction between phenyl Grignard reagent and ary	l
halides by Nakamura et al. 23	į.
Scheme 1.28 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents by Fürstne	r
et al. 24	
Scheme 1.29 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents by	
Nakamura et al. 25	
Scheme 1.30 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with alkenyl Grignard reagents by	
Cossy et al. 26	

xiii

Scheme 1.31 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents catalyzed
by Fe(III) salen complex 27
Scheme 1.32 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with aryl Grignard reagents catalyzed
by iron-amine catalyst 29
Scheme 1.33 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with aryl Grignard reagents employing
different ligands 29
Scheme 1.34 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents catalyzed
by iron-nanoparticles 30
Scheme 1.35 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with aryl/alkenyl Grignard reagents by
Cabiez et al. 32
Scheme 1.36 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents catalyzed
by iron-ionic liquids 33
Scheme 1.37 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents by Hayashi
et al. 34
Scheme 1.38 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents by Jacobi
von Wangelin er al. 34
Scheme 1.39 Cross-coupling reactions of gem-dichlorocyclopropanes with methyl
Grignard reagent 35
Scheme 1.40 Cross-coupling reactions of alkyl halides with alkyl Grignard reagents
35
Chapter 2

Scheme 2.1 General procedure for the ligands and complexes synthesis 47 Chapter 3

xiv

	Scheme 3.1 "Radical Clock" Study	107
Ch	apter 4	
	Scheme 4.1 General dichloromethane activation cross-coupling reactions	117
Ch	upter 5	
	Scheme 5.1: Iron-catalyzed Sonogashira reactions by Bolm et al.	136
	Scheme 5.2: Iron-catalyzed Sonogashira reactions by Vogel et al.	137
	Scheme 5.3: Iron-catalyzed C-H activation by Nakamura et al.	138
	Scheme 5.4: Iron-catalyzed C-H activation by Shi et al.	139
	Scheme 5.5: Iron-catalyzed C-H activation by Shi et al.	140

List of Figures

Figure 1.1: Structures of NMP and Fe(acac) ₅	12		
Figure 1.2: Fürstner and Leitner's proposal for the iron-catalyzed cross-o	oupling		
reaction of aryl halides	17		
Figure 1.3: The effect of structural modification of the Schiff base ligand			
Figure 1.4: Structure of PEG			
Chapter 2			
Figure 2.1: Library of ligands synthesized	47		
Figure 2.2: ¹ H NMR spectrum of (LI) H ₂ [O ₂ N] ^{thatash}	48		
Figure 2.3: Library of iron(III) complexes synthesized	51		
Figure 2.4: MALDI-TOF MS for {FeCI[02N] ⁸⁴⁴⁶⁶⁹ }2(1)	53		
Figure 2.5: MALDI-TOF MS for [FeCI[O ₂ N] ^{Babdab}] ₂ (5)	54		
Figure 2.6: MALDI-TOF MS for FeBr2[O2NH] ^{Bablory} (8)	55		
Figure 2.7: Molecular structure (ORTEP) and partial atom labelling of 1.	57		
Figure 2.8: Molecular structures (ORTEP) and partial atom labelling of 2 (top)	and 5		
(bottom).	59		
Figure 2.9: Molecular structure (ORTEP) and selective atom labelling of 8,	64		
Figure 2.10: The structures of [FeBr[MesN(SiMe_2)]_2O_{12}	and		
{FeBr2Li{Mr2PhN(SiMr2)}=0}2	67		
Figure 2.11: UV-vis spectra for (FeCl[O ₂ N] ^{th/Moth}] ₂ (I)	69		
Figure 2.12: UV-vis spectra for (FeCI[O2N] ^{th/Methe}]2 (5)	69		

xvi

Figure 2.13: UV-vis spectra for FeBr ₂ [O ₂ NH] ^{Bublody} (8)	70
Figure 2.12: Magnetic moment vs. temperature plot	72
Figure 2.13: 1/g vs. temperature	73
Figure 2.14: Molecular structure of (FeCI['BuN(SiMe2)]2O}2.	74
Chapter 3	
Figure 3.1 Structure of (FeCI[O ₂ N] ^{Baltade}) (1)	91
Figure 3.2 One of many conceivable scenarios of	102
Figure 3.3: Plausible mechanism for the aryl-alkyl coupling from Hayashi et al.	103
Figure 3.4: Plausible mechanism from Nakamura et al.	104
Figure 3.5: Plausible mechanism for the aryl-alkyl coupling from Bedford et al.	105
Figure 3.6: Plausible mechanism for the aryl-alkyl coupling from Cahiez et al.	106
Chapter 4	
Figure 4.1: Ni-catalyzed activation of CH ₂ Cl ₂ and CHCl ₃	114
Figure 4.2: PNP pincer Ni(II) alkyl complexes	115
Figure 4.3: Ag-catalyzed insertion of a carbene into one C-CI bond of CH ₂ Cl ₂	115
Figure 4.4: Cross-coupling reactions of gem-dichlorocyclopropanes with m	ethyl
Grignard reagent	116
Figure 4.5: Carbene formed from chloroform under basic conditions	127
Figure 4.6: Dihalomethane insertion reactions via carbene	127

xvii

List of Tables

Table 2.1: Assignment of resonances in the ¹ H NMR spectrum of L1	49
Table 2.2: Crystallographic data and refinements for 1	58
Table 2.3: Selected bond lengths (Å) and bond angles (") of 1, 2 and 5. Symm	ietry
operators used to generate equivalent atoms: (*) -x + 1, -y + 1, -z + 1.	61
Table 2.4: Crystallographic data and refinements for 2	62
Table 2.5: Crystallographic data and refinements for 5	63
Table 2.6: Crystallographic data and refinements for 8	66
Table 2.7: Comparison of selected bond lengths in 8 and related complexes	67
Table 2.8: Comparison of the molar absorptivity values of the chloride and bron	nide
compounds	71
Table 2.9: Selected bond lengths of {FeCI[O2N] ^{DeMoth} }2	and
{FeX['BuN(SiMe2)]2O}2	75
Chapter 3	
Table 3.1: Kumada type sp ³ -sp ² cross-coupling using cyclohexyl halides	as
substrates	93
Table 3.2: Kumada type sp ² -sp ² cross-coupling by using benzyl halides as substra	ates
	95
Table 3.3: Kumada type sp ³ -sp ² cross-coupling by using primary alkyl halides	5 35
substrates	97

xviii

Table 3.4: Kumada type sp ² -sp ² cross-coupling by using acyclic secondary alkyl
halides as substrates 99
Table 3.5: Kumada type sp1-sp2 cross-coupling by using functional-group alkyl
halides as substrates 101
Chapter 4
Table 4.1: Condition Optimization: Different [cat] loading 118
Table 4.2: Condition Optimizing: Nucleophile to Electrophile Ratio, Grignard
Addition Rate and Temperature 119
Table 4.3: Different Metal Salts and Use of Additives 121
Table 4.4: Effect of Grignard Reagent on Cross-coupling 124
Table 4.5: Results for CDCL Activation 125

List of Abbreviations

Et-O - diethylether

GC-MS - gas chromatography mass spectrometry

h - hour

MALDI-TOF MS - matrix-assisted laser desorption/ionization time of flight mass

spectrometry

MeCN - acetonitrile

mL - millilitre

min - minute

mol - mole

MS - mass spectrometry

MW-microwave heat

m/z - mass-to-charge ratio

NMR - Nuclear magnetic resonance

RT - room temperature

SIPr+HC1 - 1.3-Bis(2.6-diisceroevlehenvl5imidazolinium Chloride

THF - tetrahydrofuran

UV - ultraviolet

Vis-visible

Chapter 1. Iron-Catalyzed Cross-coupling Reactions

1.1 Organometallic Background

The metal demons of groups 1-11 in the profide table, which have partially filled d-orbital, are named the transition metals (Group 12 elements have filled dorbital). They can use constraint evalued bonds to carbon or heterointo-containing ligneds. The formed complexes exhibit a variety of structural and magnetic properties, and are world candidate composeds for earlytic transformations used in academic resents and industry processes.

May transition much here several provable existions means and may from transpire, ione, which can give be relations that measures. This relation the index contact among the much ins, ligand and substance, and is a reason why transition much can be used in catalysis.¹¹ for example, transition-much catalysed encouraging straints, such as Card Communits also collimation are accountly severall preserves in exparise synthesis, as she y help to constant more complex meloculus from indexe resources.

The need to address problems of environmental impact and energy efficiency has led to the development of green chemistry. This field seeks to develop contellective, environmentally responsible and efficient processes that minimize the energy used and robuse the generation of hazardous watte. Catalysis, therefore, is an important contributor to the development of "clean technology". However, the catalysis memory sensitives and staffing

the requirements of green chemistry. For this reason, iron-based catalysts are experiencing a renaissance.

1.2 Introduction to Catalytic Cross-Coupling Reactions Promoted by Iron

Our the part to decade, some of the nosi inportant and powerful methods for the construction of arabic-analysis however, the source of stransition-metical analysis emission and have served as indigenositie tooi in segatic synthesis. If the the part 30 years, CC cross-coupling maxims were overhadewed by PA and Ni-couplend maxims, which have taken centre stage beames of their generality and instituted protrames.²¹ Modern efficiency requirements, however, the part of the sources of PA and society of NI link their application for pharmecenical and hulthcare products. Moreover, the rear for structurally complex, couply and sensitive liquids cause the layers.⁴¹

During the sepid development of humanities-meal analyzed humanitors of the interviews exception from the human human metal strength and mere and more denomine to join the quest first exceedings. These presented C-C encourses/tip for human metalal strength, and just and just metal interviews metalled. ¹⁴ The secondly of metal-metal metal and any metal strength and analysis metalled. ¹⁴ The secondly of metal-metal metal metalship and human dama metalled. ¹⁴ The secondly of metalmetalship and human dama metal and the secondly metal-metal metal metalship and the second and an analysis metal and the second metalship and the second second metal metal metalship and the second second second second metalship and the second metal metalship and the second metalship and the second metalship and metalship and

processes that have found use in modern synthetic chemistry, only three examples of cross-coupling reactions will be presented here to introduce the reader to the field.

1.2.1 Suzuki Coupling

The fixed random couples appear (ep) \sim wipc) beams achieves with simplication (1), wip or 20 keV, 1 ke on ord new trends and which you do mocoupling randoms because of the camanexid availability and low toxicly of the starting materials, can building and high functional group inference. Onlymits, N and as a material, can building and high heating and the starting materials, can building and high heating and the starting materials, can building and high heating and the starting materials and the starting and the starting and the starting exclusion. The starting and the starting and the starting exclusion building at the starting and the starting and the starting estimation in starting at the starting and the starting and the starting estimation of the starting and the starting and the starting and the estimation of the starting and the starting and the starting and the estimation of the starting and the starting and the starting and the estimation of the starting and the starting and the starting and the estimation of the starting and the starting and the starting and the estimation of the starting and the starting and the starting and the estimation of the starting and the starting and the starting and the estimation of the starting and the starting and the starting and the estimation of the starting and the starting and the starting and the estimation of the starting and the starting and

Natamus et al. hose reported novel and well defined into catalyst pressures (GL, L2 in scheme 11.) for Stanki couplings that can couple iodo, homes, or even chieferady derivatives and arybornic acids (Chiene, L1.). Bold host distributions pro-homed hosts)¹⁰ Compared to analogues P4-catalysed Sanaki reactions, this catalysic system prosenses implicibly, environmental acceptability and low cost and because of those, it has the potential for the pack englectarian.



Scheme 1.1 Suzuki-type biaryl coupling by Nakamura et al.

Prior to this, Young and co-workers demonstrated that high pressure may have a patilize effect in the liquid phase on irro-catilyzed Santhi cross-coupling reactions. In the presence of FoC13 and dppy (2-6diphenybhooghino)gyridine), aryl halides and arylbronic acids can be coupled and give good yields of biarylis under high pressure (Scheren 2.3.¹¹).



Scheme 1.2 Suzuki-type biaryl coupling under high pressure

1.2.2 Negishi Coupling

The bighd matter much in the finantian of a new C2 body barres and approximo exposured and an expandink it is bus on applica reaction that traditionally used Nc^2 and Nc^{2+} and catalyse. Reamity, chamize found that into attaining with its abients this hank. Campard in Grigand magnets, agreement with the abient field in the Grigand magnets, agreement and the matching the second second second second second second and the matching of the second seco

Nakamara and eo-workers developed two efficient ions-TMEDA catalytic systems that work well to comple organization compounds and adayl halides (Scheme L3).^{12,13} The protonencel effect of a magnetism stalt was found to be the key to the promotion of the ion-catalyteed converging machino in archites with alist tomostates (Scheme L4).



Scheme 1.3 Negishi type alkylations by Nakamura et al.



Scheme 1.4 Negishi type arviations by Nakamura et al.

Chiez et al reported the first invo-statyzed oxidative cross-coupling reaction.¹⁰ The coupling product was obtained by treating a minute of aryl- and allylative reagonts with 12-differencedatars in the presence of [Fefoxach] (Schemt 1.5). Primary cousecondary allphatic diorganosite reagents were both applicable in this reaction. Good effective verbinduct and we mill conflictions (or car ligand, non-temperature, 1-6).



Scheme 1.5 Negishi type alkylations by Cahiez et al.

Bedfind and co-workers built an efficient inn-based eatalytic system, which gave excellent activity and good selectivity in the Naepilo coupling of anyteine reagonts with a range of hencyl haldes and phosphates (Schame 1.4).²⁰ This is also a new and green route to synthesis of diray-lunchane compounds.



Scheme 1.6 Negishi type arylations by Bedford et al.

1.2.3 Heck Coupling

The Heck reaction is an important method of coupling of an unsaturated organohalide (aryl, benzyl, vinyl) and an alkene, which contains at least one proton and is often electron-deficient, such as an acrylate ester or an acrylonitrile. In this reaction, a strong how is often necessary and a transition metal and ligand cooperate to act as the catalyst. Drightally, palladium^{4,21} and nickel^{21,24} were the only choices of motal, with rhordnires and diversifies used as lizands.

Because the Brick core-complete mession is one of the neur leptonts methods for they respective of ourlin compounds, neur economical and environmentally liceally highly in durativities one models. No about, to make an elastication confidence. Research, Vapel and convertures from that the TeCs, comprised the arybition of themes using any elastical (iii) on the A-relation. Second the theorem and the continementally thendly perform and plantinic adds could be employed as effective lights). The maximum proceedings is not time, under mild conditions and gave good to constrainty sight (chinese 1-2).



Scheme 1.7 Heck-type reactions by Vogel et al.

1.3 Kumada-type C-C Formation Reactions Promoted by Iron

During the part 100 years, Grignand reagons have been possibly the root widely well explorementality reagons because they are shope, any to synthesize and community available. The reactions are been as a boott time under inter dimension (shoung annouplent) maintees and asygen should be excluded). As early an 1972, Makon Kamba, reported the consc-oupling of organic goings by marking Grignen groups with alking on the plathal by boottige should at an at presentable,².

In the part 30 years, there has been rapid development in the use of leve catalyses is a variety of C.C. bond formation randoms between melecules with differentlyhybridized carbon sames. Some proper have some that Kenada by pre-tractions can overcome the difficulties of functional group balenmee,^{11,21} has making such employs more widely applicable. Thus, catangies of Kanada type C-C creas-coupling reactions promothe histo will true be introduced.

1.3.1 Cross-coupling with Acyl Electrophiles

R CI + RMgX Fel R (I)

Functionalized ketones are very important in various natural products, pharmaceuticals and materials science target molecules. Reaction of Grignard rengents with activated acid derivatives poord a significant challenge to chemists (Equation 1). Although this reaction can be achieved without any transition metal catalyst, it is limited for video regularized beauses the high reaction temperature evolutional and surgeventible

by-product formation. In an early report by Cook and co-workers, who explored different catalysts and confilience, they found that FeCT; was very efficient for the alkylation of acetyl chloride, affinding 2-hesanore (70% yield compared with 31% for the uncatalyzed process).²⁴

This tudy optical the down that allowed ines-analysized cross-scaping of a size chandras, sepandies and thioseness with alkyl or anyl Grigand reagons. Fitzment *et al.* downersmet that by sping small chardpic some (Frickes), which may obsc ligand, so; I dahridst can maxt with alkyl Grigand reagons at -3^{12} °C efficiently (Scheme 1.3).²⁷ This method showed unique compatibility with a variety of functional groups in both residu parts.



Scheme 1.8 Iron-catalyzed acylations reported by Fürstner et al.

Knochel and co-workers found by using Fo(acac); in catalytic arrounts without any other ligand, anyl and hetercoryl acyl cyanides can react with functionalized aryl and

heteroaryl Grignard reagents efficiently (Scheme 1.9).²⁰ This method is a very effective catalytic route to the synthesis of new polyfunctional diaryl ketones.



Scheme 1.9 Iron-catalyzed acylations according to Knochel et al.

1.3.2 Cross-coupling with Alkenyl Electrophiles

$$R \rightarrow R' - MgX \xrightarrow{[Fe]} R \rightarrow R' (2)$$

In 1977, Kohi and Tamara described an iron catayout virpleion readius informitors to disk to (legan regrams with with this (burgation 2 and Schwer L10)¹⁰ and, and year large the structure complete greation was repeated for the first final $^{-1}$.²¹ The reading necessity and every still conditions, but in conviountability for the final structure structure and the first final structure structure protocher has high attraceposition (Schwer L11). However, are obvious darschack of first work in the structure our cleaness structure (L2 2 aport).



Scheme 1.10 First iron-catalyzed coupling of vinyl bromide with primary Grignard

reagents by Kochi et al.



Scheme 1.11 Stereospecificity in the Kumada-Corriu Cross-coupling.



Figure 1.1: Structures of NMP and Fe(acac)s

The meth limits synthetic score of the inno-analyzed error-scoreling tractions between adveryed decoupling and addy-Griggnet reagents was significantly improved by Galar and so-weeken y timothanding MMP and a sco-solvent (before 11.2, Faper 8.1).¹¹ The see of NMP resulted in shorter reaction times, higher yields, and improved interosteriority. More importantly, this method can instant activate analysis of a serves, which kalika, can kitenas, At hit method is usen yee refrom and highly

efficient, it was soon modified and developed by many other groups. It was found that it could be used to couple a variety of alkenyl halides and alkyl or aryl Grignard reagents efficiently. Some examples are shown below.



Scheme 1.12 Iron-catalyzed alkenylation of Grianard reasent by Cahiez et al.

Finitese at a developed general confilience for a vortey of alkeopli reliables derived from known, P-knieseners, or cyclic 1.3-diktiones that can be efficiently crossorogled with diffugute appears in the presence of P(zeoch) as the presently of choice, affinding the deviced predicts in good to excellent yields in most cases (Schume 1.13).⁴ This procedure was also applied to the synthesis of Laransadin B, (\rightarrow -schebelene,¹¹



Scheme 1.13 Iron-catalyzed alkenvlation of Grienard reagent by Fürstner et al.

Oluson and co-workers develop a general, high yielding and rapid iron-catalyzed cross-coupling reaction between Griganet reagents and inidey! oblicides (Scheme 1.14).¹⁶ The results showed that Griganet reagents hearing J-H tend to give higher yields while Griganet reagents without J-H typically give low to 0% yields. Under the mild conditions of the reaction, functional groups with a set areas rear underded.



Scheme 1.14 Synthesis of Clozapine analogues by Olsson et al.

Alumi and co-workers described a very efficient ion-catalyzed coupling of chirorozynes and alkyl Grigaued reagons (Scheme 1.15).¹⁰ This reaction is very general, atterospecific, and proceeds under very stild conditions (9 °C in a few minutes). Several functional groups are thorated (a.g., propary) accisit, ethyl benesite, and y bronide, and hybory groups).



Scheme 1.15 Cross-coupling with chloroenvnes by Alami et al.
1.3.3 Cross-coupling with Aryl Electrophiles

$$ArybX' + R'-MgX \xrightarrow{|Fe|} ArybR' (3)$$

Former *et al.* adveloped general conditions for the reactions of alkyl Grigard regimes with any blaidies and prosobhulders (EL, OTG, OTG) (Schemer, L16).¹⁶ It is well origin that anyl chaldness and willings provide *a priori* here must than the corresponding browlides or isolides, which are the preferred substances for PAI and Niothylynd processes. Both [Fedular02] and Feducach, preved equally active with a wide substance usege invision. Enterchanged another correspondent



Scheme 1.16 Iron-catalyzed arylation of Grignard reagents by Fürstner et al.

Firstner proposed a mechanistic rationale for iron-catalyzed cross-coupling reactions between aryl halides and alkylmagnesium halides.³⁷ According to the previous reports by Bogdanović, a formal FerMg/X₂ species was postulated to be the active lowvalent catalyst (Scheme 1.17),²⁸ Fürstner also observed that McMgBr and EtMgBr exhibit strikingly different behavior in attempted cross-coupling reactions with aryl chlorides (Figure 1.2, Scheme 1.18).



Scheme 1.17 Formation of an inorganic Grignard reagent described by Bogdanovic's





Figure 1.2: Fürstner and Leitner's proposal for the iron-catalyzed cross-coupling reaction

of and balides





Another using properly shows by irms in a solution monologistion of distance-solutioned areas and hexaesteeses in good yields as reported by Hock and Farinar (Schume 13.7), 230⁻²⁶⁷. The Massier of 1.4-diskinohexaeses was first investigated, Nickel analysed reactions of this particular substant and to give a ninner forwire the diskylation product, while guidalism catalysis are surreactive. These forwire the diskylation product, while guidalism catalysis are surreactive and/park Kamada substants showed significantly investigation with my be because of orise effects.



Scheme 1.19 Monoalkylation of dichloro-substituted heteroarenes by Fürstner et al.



Scheme 1.20 Monoalkylation of dichloro-substituted arenes Fürstner et al.

Napma and Hayash first reported a system for existence scoreging of sayl Giapater imagen soing TeCL is the enablest and 1.2–disblorenteed c.2 aquity is an enablem in R/y or enable. "Good to excellent system we exclusion with a variety of anyl Giapater response. Childre *et al.*, modified this catalysis system,⁴⁰ They replaced the dethyl other with TIP for more convenience in large scale applications. Moreover, they invested the quantity of the colider (disblorhands) from 1.2 gains." This we do equity that invested light and the state of the system of the system and the system of the invested light and related yields for a variety of thesis produced (Schure 12)).



Scheme 1.21 Homo-coupling of anyl Grignard reagents by Cahiez et al.

Another exciting report flow Calier and o-workers demonstrated that by using atmospheric airs as the mixiant and FeC1; as the pre-catalyst, array or alkenyl Original megnes could be could efficiently and to prev insightherap from protocols in good to excellent yields with high chemo- and stereoselectivity (Scheme 122).¹⁰ Statistished development is now a real extallarge for the chemical industry, and these eccontral and development to high chemo-scheme interesting combined on the field.





Scheme 1.22 Homo-coupling of anyl Grignard reagents by Cahiez et al.

Home-coupling of organobrankic compounds war reported by Pri and coworkers (Scheme 123).⁴⁴ Using a catalytic answart of inso subs and 2 equiv, of metallic amparism, any Howshites could be coupled accoundly without the addition of an organoshihide as an oxidant (12004: diberary)methane). The Griganet nucleophile was formed in rim. Yields of haujo for hiberary products were very good, buy side of shally) reducts were tower. This coupling space to postering for large active application.



Scheme 1.23 Homo-coupling of Grignard reagents by Pei et al.

Anjenjoj romo-ongeling mateines me entermoly important materians, walski to to sen in sko existe esti ca enterlija proving interest na inter and attalen enteral products, phermanosticals, and habiling blocks for approacheader chemistry or manufari science. Taditolindity, and kalska d'readona are unady antiported by dar volt complexes. The only only and provide the strength on a material antiport by by dar volt complexes in the homeoregular metastical antiport by metastical and the organics halides or irone-categories happenses meta-chemases.

Fegaber and co-workers for mynole the anj-local convocinging results because phote (Gaudee congent and hearons) subtrains in the promote of (Fejace), with molecule to good results (Schume 126).⁴⁵ Soos after, Fentme er el reported similar catolytic symme, which could cought address of and anomizent the protection of future intermentatical galaxies, and the strength of the symmetry of various segmentation physical or polyhearoury) compounds with selection deficient regen.⁴⁶



Scheme 1.24 Cross-coupling reaction between phenyl Grignard reagent and heteroaryl

halides

A remarkable result in this field was reported by Konchel and co-workers (Scheme 1.25).⁴⁷ They showed that iron powder also efficiently catalyzes this transformation. This result supports the consideration that a reduced species might be the active catalyst.



Scheme 1.25 Cross-coupling reaction between phonyl Grignard reagent and heteroaryl

halides by Knochel et al.

Knethel also reported a process, which utilizes any copper reagents and reactive any lodides to suppress the homeosophing reaction and selectively yield the heterobiosyl products (Scheme 126).^{46,46} Some general needs in the reactivity were also reported. Furthermore, functional groups such as lationes, othera, acetale, alkylulanes, nitriles, and midde could be tolerated.



Scheme 1.26 Cross-coupling reaction between phenyl Grignard reagent and aryl halides

by Knochel et al.

In 2007, Nakamura and u-so-waters downstrated an inn-conducted televity cross-completing materia of any distribution with any Grigand magnetic Kolmen 12.¹⁰⁷. He addition of KNG inguing KNP-KLCA and two Morida and 167 d1160 power drived to addiving high yield and selectivity. This method is pretictely simple and yields minimal hypothesis. A wat may of assumatic and homesometic hildles were also incriminal following the sentering test of 107 be 14.



Scheme 1.27 Cross-coupling reaction between phenyl Grignard reagent and aryl halides by Nikamura et of

1.3.4 Cross-coupling with Alkyl Electrophiles

Cross-coupling of Griguard reagents with alkyl electrophiles (Equation 4) has rowy important contributors. Therefore, the most significant results will be presented grouped according to principal investigator.

1.3.4.1 Fürstner

For these reaction, Fromer and so-workers possible for the active category were Foldy clusters of formal comparising (FeldyQ2)), formal as any (Schure 120¹). They the probability this barry by using the known, well-addreal loce(1) complex [Lithorehild](FelC)LD), which adshes de² configuration, an the emes-configuration, Formary and strendary ality) boundars or indice were used successfully with any Glipped reagents. The configuration showed remarkable functional-group compatibies, which implied that the inse-saultyzed advision of ality) halden is sublicative from the most source of a strength advisor of a significant to a strength emission of the strength and advisor of a significant to active compatibies, which implied that the inse-saultyzed advisors of ality) halden is sublicative from the the source/advisor advisor of a significant to active emission of the strength and advisor of the source of a significant to active emission of the strength and advisor of the source of the strength and the strength an



Scheme 1.28 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents by Fürstner et al.

1.3.4.2 Nakamura and Cossy

Natures and co-watters report an effective cathylic invosuite system, which could couple privacy or anomaty skilly haldes with any Grigoset response and the neurofilow yields Chennel 130¹⁶ A cates said the same showing the formation of cleftic products through a formal loss of RX. Cartain tends in the materity of adult haldes ware showed (1 3the C-Q, determeds \geq determ.poor (Singuet rengt). This is a set report of asyginal cosmology skill adultation south substants in the field of $\eta^2 \cdot \eta^2$ Kamada cross-coupling materium promoted by ion. Furthermore, the system internel functionalized substants and was highly stress- and domonscience.



Scheme 1.29 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents by Nakamura et

d.

Cossy et al. developed a similar catalytic system that, in the presence of excess TMEDA, showed FeCl₃ can be used as an effective catalyst to couple alkyl halides and alternyl Grignard reagents (Scheme 1.30),²⁰ Furthermore, the system was capable of employing functionalized substrates, and the reactions were highly stereo- and chemoselective.



Scheme 1.30 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with alkenyl Grignard reagents by Cossy et

al.

1.3.4.3 Bedford

Learning and the effect of the second problem and the observation of the second problem and the second problem and

hindered naphthyl analogue 1.12 displayed lower activity than 1.4 but still outperformed

1.5.

Scheme 1.31 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents catalyzed by

Fe(III) salen complex









1.5 525

1.5 11%

1.7 1%





1.8, R = H, 9%; 1.9, R = Ma. 2%







Figure 1.3: The effect of structural modification of the Schiff base lizand

A range of amine-Fe catalysts was later investigated (Scheme 1.32).⁵⁵ The three best ligands, triethylamine, DABCO and TMEDA, were then screened. Good to excellent

cross-coupling conversions were obtained from aryl Grignard reagents with primary and secondary alkyl halides.



Scheme 1.32 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grigrand reagents catalyzed by

iron-amine catalyst

They continued by trying some alternative catalyst systems employing phosphine, phosphine, anime, or NHC ligands (Scheme 1.33).¹⁰ They all turned out to be active catalysts able to couple aryl Grigand reagents with primary and secondary alkyl halide unbarrate burning held-beforement.

Scheme 1.33 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents employing

different ligands

Furthermore, according to their observations in their previous reports, the reaction mixtures always turned black. They hypothesised that the black coloration suggested that this may be assupationater ion (Scheme 13.4).¹⁷ Then they accountify identified that ion anaropaticles, either formed in size and antibilited by 1.6-(adjedneys) hoppinghrounce or polychysic aggregator. (PCG), as performed and adalitized by PEG, were excellent catalysis for the enso-coupling of any) Grigmed respects with printary and secondary alky biolice heating. [J-bydragens, They also proved effective in a submet or collectivisors coupling readings.



EI-O. reflux, 30 min

Scheme 1.34 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents and tandem

cyclization/cross-coupling reaction catalyzed by iron-nanoparticles

polyethylene glycol (PEG)

Figure 1.4: Structure of PEG

1.3.4.4 Cahiez

Collete et al. respectives of fifteent and practical investing's system. Federacch/MHTATIMEDA (1-32) and the complex (FiGCh(f)/MHDA)) (Schume Teltanch/MHTATIMEDA (1-32) and the complex (FiGCh(f)/MHDA)) (Shiming) (Shiming) and primary althy Humishio were und ascentifically with any for alternyl Colligand magnetis in cross-sempling machines, and gave good to activity (Shi-Investments, the sinus was capable of animal final instantial ast distances, such as only or alternyl Colligand magnetis in cross-sempling machines and gave good to activity stable. Investments, the sinus was capable of animal final instantial ast distances, such as only or alternyl Colligand magnets, the coupling mathematica was high market and distances and the animal final mathematica was also and animal density.



Scheme 1.35 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with aryl/alkenyl Grignard reagents by Cabiez et al.

1.3.4.5 Others

Gastner and Bica reported that the ionic liquid a-butyInterlyInitidatolium tetrachborderate (hmin=FeCL) could act as an effective and air-stable earlayst to couple primary and secondary alkyl Grigmed magnets (Scheme 13.6)⁴⁶ Another selling point of this cataplic system was that it could be recycled and recursed multiple times.



Scheme 1.36 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents catalyzed by

iron-ionic liquids

Nagano and Hayashi discovered that is the presence of catalytic amounts of Fe(acac), in refluxing diethyl ether without another ligand, primary and secondary alkyl bromides could react with anyl Griggard reagonts efficiently (Scheme 1.37),³¹



Scheme 1.37 Cross-ecupling of alkyl halides with anyl Grignard reagents by Hayashi et al.

In 2009, Iaodi voi Wanglin and a-worken reportat on the first direct convergence on the spectra of the star of adjust star of a star of the spectra of the



Scheme 1.38 Cross-coupling of alkyl halides with aryl Grignard reagents by Jacobi von

Wangelin et al.

Successful reports for iron-catalyzed Kumala type $C(qr^3)$ load formation reactions are free. Tanke or al. optimized the cross-coupling reactions of gendiablows/chorepares with methyl Gigaad reagest using Fe(DHB); (DMB: dibenzy-interlant) as a pre-catalyze. The addition of t-methorytokene significantly accelerated the reaction Scheme 1.7m²



Scheme 1.39 Cross-coupling reactions of gem-dichlorocyclopropanes with methyl

Grignard reagent

Another successful report was from Chai and co-workers, who found that Fe(OAc)₂ in combination with Xnaphes in DME proved to be effective in coupling abs/ haldes with abs/1 Grignard reagents and gave good to high yields.⁴⁴ This was also the first exploitation of an y^3-y^2 cross-coupling reaction between primary alkylmagnesium brundles that adsubset of primary silves primary and primary and primary silves primary and primary silves primary and primary silves p



Scheme 1.40 Cross-coupling reactions of alkyl halides with alkyl Grignard reagents

1.4 Summary of Cross-coupling Reactions

A brief account of the current advaces in the C-C boal formation reactions promoted by into his been presented along with important applications. Ione catelyion neuromyleic properties complements por M-and NL. For example, DNI-catelyiond reactions may suffer from unproductive β-H climitation reactions when coupling unnervised alogh buildes and ap/G Gaused reagents, but this problem is seldom present in how catelyion 4⁻⁰/₂ Kamada cross-coupling reactions.

Obviously, any figroup compounds are ubiquitous in natural products. From previous proteives, it is known that many exciting results have been obtained in $\eta^{-1} \eta^{-2}$. Kurnada cross-coupling reactions promoted by iron. However, it is still a young field with much room for inprovement.

Some they downcoming include 20 bealts: Statemark report.¹⁰ Hear are to second report of energy and phase however, but they are decided browner they are a more abundles and charge fundationski. 10 diene are so reports of summe with bindomed Grapant regions, and an 2.4-distabilityhleng Gragant regard, 20 diene are three concellution phase has an 2.4-distabilityhleng Gragant regard, halfers are binderen to globe distabilities compounds, by an area so-takentik, to globe are phase sources binder hand and and an and and and antiphilitika baland phase sources balanching anyo distance and is unabulat for large entry distabilities and an antiphic balanching strength and antiphilitika baland phase and mask and the solution is there do its sources the difficulties and mask source hand how to be the dots.

1.5 Introduction to Microwave Chemistry

Microwave-seathenia medi-outlyned regain (which is a marked para matrixes since the beginning of this centrary^{1,44}. Connectually scalable explorement for filter reactions: through easy regunstraining and discontantion of a dring the transition, through easy regunstraining and discontantion of a dring matrixed and antiple discontantial incomes remarks more analytic expansition of an antiple discontantial scalar and the second and an antiple discontantial scalar and the second expansition of the second scalar and the second and information will be provided for the rescale n.⁴

Under the electromagnetic field, dipolar molecules may give oriented oscillation, which will produce heating because of friction among the molecules. There are two main mechanisms in microwave heating: dipolar polarization and konic conduction. Dipolar polarization causes the movement of molecules while konic conduction causes the movement of one.

Thus, for a substance to be able to generate heat under microwares it must possess a dipole moment. The batting characteristic of a particular material under microwave imitations conditions are dependent on the dielectric properties of the material. Highly dielectric materials, like polar organic solvents, lead to a strong absorption of microwaves and consequently to a repla butting of the modium.

Conventional heating is driven into the substance from outside the vessel and moves through to the inside, including the solvent and the reactants. This is a slow and inefficient method for transferring energy into the reaction system. The reaction carnot

actives a uniform and nable loss. Furthermore, multisoutly used vessels for convertional heating cannot tolenze high pressure. That means it will limit the other of the preparate, solveness and emposits. Molern search misrowers measures allow rapid heating of scalad vessels under monitored pressure. Therefore, reactions can be safely performed at temperatures above the normal heating point of the solvent, allowing an intersect function misro and the sourcest of the solvent, allowing an intersect function misror solvents with the Archives sourceston.

1.6 References

(1) Comils, B.; Hermann, W. A. Applied Homogeneous Catalysis with Organometallic Compounds: A Comprehensive Handbook in Three Folumes, 2nd Ed.; Wiley-VCH: Weinbeim, 2002.

(2) Nicolaou, K. C.; Bulger, P. G.; Sarlah, D. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2005, 44, 4442.

(3) Terao, J.; Kambe, N. Acc. Chem. Res. 2008, 41, 1545.

(4) Fu, G. C. Acc. Chem. Res. 2008, 41, 1555.

(5) Czaplik, W. M.; Mayer, M.; Cvengrol, J.; Jacobi von Wangelin, A. ChenSasChen 2009. 2, 396.

(6) Fürstner, A.; Martin, R. Chem. Lett. 2005, 34, 624.

(7) Martin, R.; Buchwald, S. L. Acc. Chem. Res. 2008, 41, 1461.

(8) Torborg, C.; Beller, M. Adv. Synth. Catal. 2009, 351, 3027.

(9) Saito, B.; Fu, G. C. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2007, 129, 9602.

(10) Hatakeyama, T.; Hashimoto, T.; Kondo, Y.; Fujiwara, Y.; Seike, H.; Takaya, H.; Tamada, Y.; Ono, T.; Nakamura, M.; J. Am. Chem. Soc., 2010, 132, 10674.

(11) Guo, Y.; Young, D. J.; Hor, T. S. A. Tetrahedron Lett. 2008, 49, 5620.

(12) Negishi, E.; Huang, Z.; Wang, G.; Mohan, S.; Wang, C.; Hattori, H. Acc. Chem. Res. 2008, 47, 1474.

(13) Zhou, J.; Fu, G. C. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2003, 125, 14726.

(14) Smith, S. W.; Fu, G. C. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2008, 47, 9334.

(15) Son, S.; Fu, G. C. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2008, 130, 2756.

(16) Phapale, V. B.; Guisán-Ceinos, M.; Bathael, E.; Cárdenas, D. J. Chem. Eur. J. 2009, 15, 1268.

(17) Hatakeyama, T.; Nakagawa, N.; Nakamura, M. Org. Lett. 2009, 11, 4496.

(18) Ito, S.; Fujiwara, Y.; Nakamura, E.; Nakamura, M. Org. Lett. 2009, 11, 4305.

(19) Cahiez, G.; Foulgoc, L.; Moyeux, A. Angese. Chem. Int. Ed. 2009, 48, 2969.

(20) Bedford, R. B.; Huwe, M.; Wilkinson, M. C. Chem. Commun. 2009, 600.

(21) Trzeciak, A. M.; Ziółkowski, J. J. Coord. Chem. Rev. 2005, 249, 2308.

(22) Sherry, B.D.; Fürstner, A., Acc. Chem. Res. 2008, 41, 1500.

(23) Inamoto, K.; Kuroda, J.; Danio, T.; Sakamoto, T. Sonlett 2005, 1624.

(24) Ma, S.; Wang, H.; Gao, K.; Zhao, F. J. Mol. Catal. A: Chem. 2006, 248, 17.

(25) Loska, R.; Rao Volla, C.; Vogel, P. Adv. Swith Canal. 2008, 350, 2859.

(26) Seyferth, D. Organometallics 2009, 28, 1598.

(27) Tamao, K.; Kiso, Y.; Sumitani, K.; Kumada, M. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 1972, 94, 9268.

(28) Percival, W. C.; Wagner, R. B.; Cook, N. C. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 1953, 75, 3731.

(29) Duplais, C.; Bares, F.; Sapountzis, I.; Korn, T. J.; Cahiez, G.; Knochel, P. Angese. Chem. Int. Ed. 2004, 43, 2968.

(30) Kumada, M.; Kochi, J. K. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 1971, 93, 1487.

(31) Cahirz, G.; Avedissian, H. Sunthesis 1998, 1199.

(32) Firstner, A.; De Souza, D.; Parra-Rapado, L.; Jensen, J. T. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2003, 42, 5358.

(33) Fürstner, A.; Hannen, P. Chem. Eur. J. 2006, 12, 3006.

(34) Ottesen, L. K.; Ek, F.; Olsson, R. Org. Lett. 2006, 8, 1771.

- (35) Seck, M.; Franck, X.; Hocquemiller, R.; Figadère, B.; Peyrat, J.; Provot, O.; Brion, J.; Alami, M. Tetrahedron Lett. 2004, 45, 1881.
- (36) Fürstner, A.; Leitner, A.; Méndez, M.; Krause, H. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2002, 124, 13856.
- (37) Fürstner, A.; Martin, R.; Krause, H.; Seidel, G.; Goddard, R.; Lehmann, C. W. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2008, 130, 8773.

(38) Bogdanović, B.; Schwickandi, M. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2000, 39, 4610.

(39) Hocek, M.; Dvořáková, H. J. Org. Chem. 2003, 68, 5773.

(40) Scheiper, B.; Bonnekessel, M.; Krause, H.; Fürstner, A. J. Org. Chem. 2094, 69, 1943.

(41) Nagano, T.; Havashi, T. Org. Lett. 2005, 7, 491.

(42) Cahiez, G.; Chaboche, C.; Mahateau-Betzer, F.; Ahr, M. Org. Lett. 2005, 7, 1943.

(43) Cahiez, G.; Moyeux, A.; Buendia, J.; Duplais, C. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2007, 129, 13788.

(44) Xu, X.; Cheng, D.; Pei, W. J. Org. Chem. 2006, 71, 6637.

(45) Quintin, J.; Franck, X.; Hocquemiller, R.; Figadère, B. Tetrahedron Lett. 2002, 43, 3547.

(46) Boully, L.; Darabanta, M.; Turck, A.; Plé, N. J. Heterocycl. Chem. 2005, 42, 1423.

(47) Korn, T. J.; Cahiez, G.; Knochel, P. Synlett 2013, 1892.

- (48) Sapountzis, I.; Lin, W.; Kolink, C. C.; Despotopoulou, C.; Knochel, P. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2005, 44, 1654.
- (49) Kofitk, C. C.; Blank, B.; Pagano, S.; Götz, N.; Knochel, P. Chem. Commun. 2007, 1954.

(50) Hatakeyama, T.; Nakamura, M. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2007, 129, 9844.

(51) Martin, R.; Fürstner, A. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2004, 43, 3955.

(52) Nakamura, M.; Matsuo, K.; Ito, S.; Nakamura, E. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2004, 126, 3686.

(53) Galrinot, A.; Reymond, S.; Cossy, J. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2007, 46, 6521.

(54) Bedford, R. B.; Brace, D. W.; Frost, R. M.; Goodby, J. W.; Hird, M. Chon. Commun. 2004, 2822.

(55) Bedford, R. B.; Bruce, D. W.; Frost, R. M.; Hird, M. Chem. Commun. 2005, 4161.

(56) Bedford, R. B.; Betham, M.; Bruce, D. W.; Danopoulos, A. A.; Frost, R. M.; Hird, M. J. Org, Chem. 2006, 77, 1104.

- (57) Bedford, R. B.; Betham, M.; Bruce, D. W.; Davis, S. A.; Frost, R. M.; Hird, M. Chew. Commun. 2006, 1398.
- (58) Cahiez, G.; Habiak, V.; Duplais, C.; Moyeux, A. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2007, 119, 4442.

(59) Cahiez, G.; Duplais, C.; Moyeux, A. Org. Lett. 2007, 9, 3253.

(60) Bica, K.; Gaeriner, P. Org. Lett. 2006, 8, 733.

(61) Nagano, T.; Hayashi, T. Org. Lett. 2004, 6, 1297.

(62) Craplik, W. M.; Mayer, M.; Jacobi von Wangelin, A. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2009, 48, 607.

(63) Nishii, Y.; Wakasugi, K.; Tanabe, Y. Soulett 1998, 67.

(64) Dongol, K. G.; Koh, H.; Sau, M.; Chai, C. L. L. Adv. Synth. Catal. 2007, 349, 1015.

(65) Caddick, S.; Fitzmaurice, R. Tetrahedrow 2009, 65, 3325.

(66) Kappe, C. O.; Dallinger, D. Mol. Divers. 2009, 13, 7.

(67) Kirschning, A.; Solodenko, W.; Mennecke, K. Chem. Eur. J. 2006, 12, 5972.

(68) Nilsson, P.; Olofsson, K.; Larhed, M. Top. Curr. Chem. 2006, 266, 103.

(69) Kappe, C. O.; Dallinger, D.; Murphree, S.; Practical Microware Synthesis for Organic Chemistric Strategies, Instruments, and Protocols; Wiley-VCH: Weinheim, 2008.

Chapter 2. Synthesis and Characterization of Amine-bis(phenolate) Ligands and Iron (III) Complexes 21 Introduction and research objectives

The focal group has providely reported that translations anti-biolytomologtheritericilli complexes categoring metalities with principal descoding alget halidas hearing 3-bipdrogens.² The Egado and was eauly synthesized and profracconfined P(E) halidae complexes that were also and meinter-selfs. The cost of hearing and the synthesized and the second second second second formation of individuel to generated and analytics and decremes or identical the final to the discident of age commend analytics and decremes and hypothesis, including the appendixed of the products on described in Chapter 1. Equation 2.1 advances and the second second principant, care sites and the synthesis and the individue of the application of the second second second second second algel balies, are second principant, care sites and by balieshalaquation, by and a law occurding transmism, the mession and contern pays second a product and algel balies, therefore, its interipant the windows light would be accurate a proreservice or complex. Therefore, its interipant the windows light pairs would have be excittance on the second second second second second second second second second and the second second second second second second second second and algel balies. Therefore, its interipant the windows light pairs would have be excittance on these.



Equation 2.1 Iron-catalyzed C-C cross-coupling reactions.

2.2 Synthesis of the [O2N] - type ligands

Lipsel preserves were specifications is a modified Manchia condensation reaction is wear? There are single per restances using a phonet, an annies and formalidadyde (Schume 21). The ministers were refluted for 21 is weare and the solidal were specification specifications. Some of the products were distanted as inclusions; schwo with which were collevely the sections of the products the specification of the products are while solidar, the residue with mechanical allocation from to extended. It is particularly of evenes multitudes was prepared. Distabilishing the phone, pressures (mechy, ihop) and from groups were employed while the animes presented other approprit, budy and from groups were employed while the animes presented other approprit, property from 20 program (Figure 21).





















2.3 Characterization of the ligands

The ¹H and ¹¹C NMR spectra confirmed the formation of the ligands. The signal of the phrendic OH cannot be identified clearly, this may be because the protons of the phrendic OH undergo exchange. A representative ¹H NMR spectrum of a pure ligand, L1, is shown in Figure 22, which will be discussed in detail below.





Figure 2.2: ¹H NMR spectrum of (LI) H₂[O₂N]^{DuMod}

The ¹H MMs spectrum for L1 measured in CPCDs (Figure 22), cohistics too singless at 7.03 ppm and 6.75 ppm. These singless compound to the assume 14 means of the bisconter rgg. The single at 3.04 ppm is 0.650. This means there is the increation is solution resulting is single-tail ppm in solutions. The right et al. 24 ppm is ningle of SPCLGL, which the list is not required in the fit allows of the methylese approx $p_{\rm eff}$. The repetted inglet at 2.75 ppm composite the the influences of the methyle propus on the biscness relation of the single single at 0.45 ppm excess the fit allows of the methylese propus of the biscness relation of the list of the single single at 1.45 ppm excession. The single at 1.45 ppm excession flue at 1.66 ppm excession flue the biscness relation of the presention. The single at 1.45 ppm excession flue the the interflue single at 1.45 ppm excession flue the biscness relation of the biscness relation of

Protons	No. of equiv. protons	Chemical Shift (δ)	Peak	Proton types
H ^{III}	2 .	7.03	5	Aromatic
H^G	2	6.76	5	Aromatic
H ^e	4	3.66	s	ArCH ₂
Ha	2	2.48		NCH2CH2
HD	6	2.27	5	ArCH ₃
$H^{\mathbb{Z}}$	2	1.65	m (tq)	CH2CH2CH
HC	18	1.42	5	$C(CH_3)_3$
H ^B	3	0.89	t	CH2CH2CH

Table 2.1: Assignment of resonances in the ¹H NMR spectrum of L1

2.4 Synthesis of Fe(III) complexes

As neurinoid abore, intelli) complexes of stratest animo-his/phoneitit ligath catalyze resourceopting mediums with primary and secondary alsh tables using physiquess. The hard proclean all mode above of new liquesh analyze metals in higher residution states and it was anticipated tridentic ligated may give more matcher analyzes. The Foreunplexes can be prepared by a genomolysis reaction between the listand resource mode and advantion 2111 mission.

A TH the values of analysisses Feed, was added assigning an HTP values of the ligned are own sequences (Selver 21-). A data sharp polyse values was asymetrate, to which NEy, was added to somethine the IEC produced. However, additions of excess have any result in a syldne-howen procedure. Solving was contributed for 22. The initiative was listed medays (Cell and the shorth and address value) and the syndhese two removed in waves. A data backs program and a schedure address and any synthese transformed for Height Productions with the short hand address and the synthese transformed for Feld, when using mixing the short hand address and was address and the short backet of the source adjustments. In baddies to finding was adjusted from theme of the source adjustments. In baddies to finding was equile of Hills, the promotion of the source adjustments. In baddies to finding was equiled in the hydrosited of the source adjustments. In backeting to finding was equiled in Hills, the promotion of the source adjustments. In backeting to finding was equiled in Hills, the promotion of the source adjustments the protein barries backeting to adjust the source protein source adjustments the protein barries and the source adjustment of 1.16 sources adjustments the protein barries adjustment of 1.16 sources adjustments adjustments the protein barries adjustment of 1.16 sources adjustments adjustment adjustment barries adjustment adjustme













Figure 2.3: Library of iron(III) complexes synthesized
2.5 Characterization of Fe(III) complexes

2.5.1 MALDI-TOF MS

MALDI-TOF mass spectrometry was used to analyze the metal complexes. Anthracene was the chosen matrix. The mass spectrum exhibited peaks at masses higher than expected for the monometallic complexes shown in Figure 2.3. This suggested the formation of multimetallic species, such as dimers, in the gas phase. For complex 1, a fragment possibly arising from the (FeCIIO-NI^{Bulloth})> (2M) complex was observed [2M-CI]*, (965.4531) in addition to the molecular-ion and fragment peaks of the monometallic complexes, namely, [M]*, (m/z = 499.1992); [M-CI]*, (m/z = 464.2276); [M-FeCI]*, (m/z = 411.315) under mass-spectrometic conditions (Figure 2.4), Aminebis(phenolate) complexes of iron(III) previously reported by the Kozak group typically show loss of the halide ligand and the [M"] ion peak is very weak. For tridentate ligands the iron halide complexes would be four-coordinate. Therefore, it is possible for the metal centre to achieve a more stable five- coordinate geometry through bridging ligands. Both the halide ligand and the phenolate-oxygen donors possess additional lone pairs capable of forming bridges between two iron centres. Thus, the mass spectrometric data may give some indication that dimeric structures of the iron(III) complexes may be expected in the solid state. Indeed, such structures were observed via single crystal X-ray diffraction. which will be discussed in the next section.



Figure 2.4: MALDI-TOF MS for [FeCI[O:N]BaMody]; (1)

The mass spectrum obtained for 54 diffus singlely from that calculated for 1. Then, it is then for spectrum of $1 \le 0$ produces spectra for the spectrum of $1 \le 0.05 \text{ M}^{-2}$ mm (2) Mi ware altered. Instant, only lower mass figures, mannly [MC47], (no.) = 512.2118 and [M-67, [C], no.) = -63.0187) were absenced under MALDH emithem (Figure 5.2), and [M for [K, K] in interpret to relate some preference and magnetizes for complexes 1 and 5.4. comparison of the F-CL and F-O dimenses shows that these bools lengths in 5 are longer than these is 1, manning the Fa-CL and Fe-O hance and enough to 5 are lower than the in 1. Thus, it is likely that Impairmention of 5 a state MALDH conditions in more continuive than its 1, flowering in the magnetized or discussion of the source of the Subconditions. Similar discussions are the state the magnetized modernee of the Subtra conditions. This is 0, flowering in the magnetized modernee of the Subtra conditions. This is 0, flowering in the magnetized modernee of the Subst conditions. This is 0, flowering in the magnetized modernee of the Sub-



Appendix Figure A7), but a high mass peak (m/z = 8%4744, presently unassigned) was also observed.

Figure 2.5: MALDI-TOF MS for (FeCI[O2N]Babalis]2 (5)

The includate line for TellED_(2014)^{10,000} (B) was observed as well as apprecised fragment inner (MP, 6004 – 605,5001); (D4,007, 6004 – 655,500); (D4,206), 7004 – 65032); (D4,406, 7004 – 606,2007) under Allon Combinion ((Fuper 2-0). These results are initiality in lengt(II) benois complexes that the K-onk group previously spended.¹⁵ Tel.(MP) is peak in very weak, while peak axising from hous of one or who include liquids are lengthe in internaly. United association, is one difference on addetacid from tensors peatrums. However, the presence of a peak of the 25,2003 agreement on excitonce of a peatrum external metal and an internal amountion

fragment, and two bromides on an iron ion. Alternatively, the phenolate oxygen may remain protonated leaving the missgen atom to act as a neural doner. Clerrly, molecular structure data obtained from single crystal X-ray diffraction is required to assequinccally confirm the nature of these complexes, at least in the solid state. These data will be discussed in the neura testion.



Figure 2.6: MALDI-TOF MS for FeBr₂[O₂NH]^{BallasPr} (8)

2.5.2 Molecular structure determinations

In the solid state, complex 1 exhibits a centrosymmetric dimeric structure resulting in trigonal bipyramidal Fe^{III} centres bridged by chloride ligands as shown in Figure 2.7.

Complete Tables of bond lengths, angles and torsion angles are given in the Apppendix. The Fe(1)--Fe(2) interatomic distance of 3.4658(7) Å precludes any bonding interaction between the metal centres. The two phenolate occore donor atoms and a bridging chloride occupy the equatorial plane around Fe, where the sum of bond angles is 359.88* indicating near perfect planarity. The amine nitrogen and another bridging chloride take up the axial positions, eiving a Ci(2)-Fe(1)-N(1) bond angle of 178.32/9/7. The cisorientated chloride ligands are nearly orthogonal with a Cl(1)-Fe(1)-Cl(2) bond angle of 87.36(4)*. The asymmetric nature of the bridging chlorides is demonstrated by the different Fe-Cl bond lengths of 2.298(2) for Fe(1)-Cl(1) and 2.4911(18) Å for Fe(1)-Cl(2). Since the Kozak eroup has newlowely reported mononuclear trigonal birogramidal iron(III) complexes of related tetradentate diamine-bis(phenolate) ligands (abbreviated [O₂NN'], where N' represents a pendant dimethylaminoethyl or pyridyl arm),4 an informative comparison of bond distances can be made. For example, the terminally bonded Fe-Cl bond lengths in FeCIIO-NN'1 of 2.3051(10) and 2.2894(5) Å are very similar to the shorter Fe/C1 interaction observed in 1. The Fe/N distance of 2 183(3) Å is shorter than those observed in previously reported mononuclear iron(III) complexes from the Kozak group, which show Fe-N distances of 2.2706(15) and 2.248(2) Å between the fivecoordinate iron atom and the central amine nitrogen donor. The phenolate oxygen atoms exhibit bond distances of 1.818(2) and 1.817(2) Å for Fe(1)-O(1) and Fe(1)-O(2). respectively. These interactions are shorter than those observed in Kozak's FeCIO-NN'I complexes, where average Fe-O distances of 1.86 Å are observed. Detailed crystallographic data and refinements for 1 are shown in Table 2.2.



Figure 2.7: Molecular structure (ORTEP) and partial atom labelling of 1.

Ellipsoids shown at 50% probability. Hydrogen atoms omitted for clarity.

Table 2.2: Crystallographic data and refinements for 1

Chemical formula	C34H34Cl2Fe3N2O4	17 Å ³	1331.9(16)
Formula weight	1001.82	z	1
T/\mathbf{K}	123	D ₂ /g cm ⁻³	1.249
Crystal color, Habit	black, chunk	µ(Mo-Ka)/cm ⁻¹	6.88
Crystal dimensions/mm	$0.31\times0.23\times0.21$	F(000)	534
Crystal system	Triclinic	θ range for collection/"	2.5 to 31.1
Space group	P-1 (#2)	Reflections collected	10935
aí Å	9.997(6)	Independent reflections	5309
NĂ	11.386(8)	R(int)	0.0467
el A	12.879(9)	R, wR^2 (all)	0.0961, 0.2516
$\alpha^{\prime\prime}$	80.65(5)	$R, wR^2 [I \ge 2\sigma(I)]$	0.0916, 0.5309
h^{n}	71.77(4)	GOF on F2	1.104
70	73.69(5)		



Figure 2.8: Molecular structures (ORTEP) and partial atom labelling of 2 (top) and 5 (bottom). Ellipsoids shown at 50% probability. Hydrogen atoms omitted for clarity.

Structures of two other iron(III) chloride complexes (2 and 5) were obtained and are shown in Figure 2.8. Detailed crystallographic data and refinements for 2 and 5 are shown in Tables 2.4 and 2.5, respectively. Complexes 2 and 5 exhibit similar dimetric attention remaining an integrant longitudin [1⁻⁶ arms biology by checked liganch, linking by the divergent of these three more as comparison of the science hold burght and angles of these three complexes, which shows the efficient of different substitutions of the ligands (LL L2 and L5). The FeQ. To N and FeG distances in L4 and S are experimentally simical as each stretc. The both angles sound acids has content of the ligands (LL L2 and L5). The FeQ. To N and FeG distances in L4 CHG O both angles, which holes/mainter variation. Most studies in the difference angles thereas for a persphericities containing 1 and 2 sounds stightly water O To-CHG or hangles. The ligand L2 possessing 2.4-stretchies/large improvements display theory terms risk dimension is and long the assessing the stretchies of person transitions in the energy lands processor 2.4-stretchies (large marked to a startestions risk dimension). The display dimension of the stretchies of evolutions in the energy lands processor 2.4-stretchies (large marked to a startestion risk dimension). The display and the risk content market differences. Databed capatility priority dimension of the stretchies and 2.5-stretchies, and and a stretchies in the energy lands processor 2.4-stretchies and 2.5stretchies.

	1	2	5
Fe(1)-O(1)	1.818(3)	1.825(4)	1.8276(13)
Fe(1)-O(2)	1.817(3)	1.834(4)	1.8222(12)
Fe(1)-N(1)	2.183(4)	2.184(4)	2.1819(10)
Fe(1)-Cl(1)	2.298(2)	2.315(3)	2.3290(4)
Fe(1)-Cl(1)*	2.4911(18)	2.495(3)	
Fc(1)-Cl(2)			2.5025(3)
O(1)-Fe(1)-O(2)	124.63(14)	128.99(17)	119.36(5)
N(1)-Fe(1)-Cl(1)	93.92(10)	91.86(12)	93.59(3)
N(1)-Fe(1)-Cl(1)*	178.32(9)	176.57(11)	
N(1)-Fe(1)-Cl(2)			177.28(3)
Cl(1)-Fe(1)-Cl(1)*	87.36(6)	91.27(9)	
Cl(1)-Fe(1)-Cl(2)			\$4.341(14)
Fe(1)-Cl(1)-Fe(1)*	92.64(6)	88.73(9)	
Fe(1)-Cl(1)-Fe(2)			95.384(14)
O(1)-Fe(1)-Cl(1)	113.18(11)	118.89(14)	114.96(4)
O(1)-Fe(1)-Cl(1)*	89.86(11)	89.23(13)	
O(1)-Fe(1)-Cl(2)			88.91(3)
O(2)-Fe(1)-Cl(1)	122.08(12)	112.12(13)	125.52(4)
O(2)-Fe(1)-Cl(1)*	89.41(11)	89.18(12)	
O(2)-Fe(1)-Cl(2)			92.60(3)

Table 2.3: Selected bond lengths (\hat{A}) and bond angles (*) of 1, 2 and 5. Symmetry operators used to generate equivalent atoms: (*)-x+1, -y+1, -z+1.

O(1)-Fe(1)-N(1)	88.99(13)	88.04(16)	90.38(4)	
O(2)-Fe(1)-N(1)	90.62(13)	90.93(16)	90.03(4)	

Table 2.4: Crystallographic data and refinements for 2

Chemical formula	CasH22Cl2Fe2N2Oa	177 Å ³	1663(2)
Formula weight	1170.14	Z	1
77K	123	D _c /g cm ⁻³	1.168
Crystal color, Habit	dark brown	µ(Mo-Ku)/cm ⁻¹	0.560
Crystal dimensions/mm	0.22×0.19×0.15	F(000)	630
Crystal system	Triclinic	θ range for collection/*	2.7660 to 30.8904
Space group	P-1 (#2)	Reflections collected	11654
a' Å	10.248(8)	Independent reflections	5702
5/ Å	11.616(9)	R(int)	0.1134
c/ Å	14.662(12)	R, wR^2 (all)	0.1381, 0.3987
w"	99.827(14)	$R, wR^2 [I \ge 2\sigma(I)]$	0.1327, 0.3793
j@°	104.057(12)	GOF on F ²	1.627
7*	92.03(2)		

Table 2.5: Crystallographic data and refinements for 5

Chemical formula	CapHagClaFe3N2Oa	F7 Å ³	2917.2(10)
Formula weight	1097.91	Z	2
77K	153	D _c /g cm ⁻³	1.250
Crystal color, Habit	Dark purple, prism	µ(Mo-Ka)/cm ⁻¹	6.35
Crystal dimensions/mm	$0.46\times0.41\times0.30$	F(000)	1164
Crystal system	Triclinic	θ range for collection $^{\prime\prime}$	2.3254-30.5381
Space group	P-1 (#2)	Reflections collected	27483
a/ Å	13.052(3)	Independent reflections	11990
NĂ	13.686(3)	R(int)	0.0215
d Å	18.072(3)	$R_1 \approx R^2$ (all)	0.0382, 0.0948
a*	100.960(2)	$R_{v} = R^{2} [I \ge 2\sigma(I)]$	0.0361, 0.0928
p*	101.664(3)	GOF on F2	1.045
7 ¹⁰	106.866(2)		



Figure 2.9: Molecular structure (ORTEP) and selective atom labelling of 8. Ellipsoids shown at 50% probability. Hydrogen atoms, except for H17, are omitted for clarity.

In the weld attac, empiles & exhibits a momentic intrature resulting in technologi full centres as thoses in Figure 29. Tables of boal implify, single and tables and the single size in the Appendix (Tables A7, 54 and A9). Unlike complexes 1, 2, and 8, and also utilize the provides properlia (steff)) complexes of attitues higherentary lignabs reported by the Koring aroug, the higherentary lignab the line material size of the size of the attitue of the size of the size of the 25.1, the mans spectrumetry data suggested a complex processing an ion anne, two breatming and a suggested and complexe and existing the complexity of the complexity of the control input is the complexity and at momproximated antisochyptowhead by gand. Le (DoN)II. The single world Xiveog difference and complexes and existing of the contexity and instrumer of

complex 8. The central amine nitrogen atom is protonated resulting in a quaternized amonium group. The two phenolate groups remain anionic, thereby resulting in a net nonoationic anonium-bis(phenolate) ligand. The iron(III) centre is further bonded to two beomide ions, hence the four-coordinate iron(III) centre is formally anionic, resulting in an overall zwitterionic complex. The two phenolate oxygen donor atoms and two bromide ions commose the tetrahedral lionad sphere around Fe. The bond angles around the metal range from 105.23(15)° to 112.88(11)°, which are only moderately distorted from the ideal tetrahedral anele of 109.5°. The bond lengths of Fe-Br(1) and Fe-Br(2) are slightly asymmetrical at 2.3569(7) and 2.3723(7) Å, respectively. Since the Kozak group has previously reported mononuclear square pyramidal iron(III) bromide complexes of related linear tetradentate N.N-dimethyl-N.N-bis(2-methylene-4-methyl-6-terrbutyInhenolateJethylenediamine ligand (abbreviated IO-N-I).4 an informative comparison of bond distances can be made. For example, the terminally bonded Fe-Br bond length in FeBe[O₂N₂] of 2.3683(11) Å appears to be intermediate of the two Fe-Br bond lengths observed in 8. The phenolate occupen atoms exhibit bond distances to iron of 1.828(3) and 1.836(3) Å for Fe(1)-O(1) and Fe(1)-O(2), respectively. These interactions are similar to those observed in FeBrIO-N-I complexes, where average Fe-O distances of 1.837 Å are observed. Detailed crystallographic data and refinements for 8 are shown in Table 2.6.

Table 2.6: Cryst:	allographic data and ref	inements for 8
-------------------	--------------------------	----------------

Chemical formula	C3130HauBr3FeNO2	17 Å ³	3213.3(9)
Formula weight	672.34	Z	4
77K	123	D/g cm ⁻³	1.390
Crystal color, Habit	black, irregular	µ(Mo-Ka)/cm ⁻¹	29.82
Crystal dimensions/mm	$0.30\times0.29\times0.28$	F(000)	1384.0
Crystal system	Monoclinic	θ range for collection ''	2.3498-30.8607
Space group	P2 ₁ /n (#14)	Reflections collected	40002
a/ Å	11.5336(18)	Independent reflections	6630
6/ Å	16.678(3)	R(int)	0.0494
d'Å	16.891(3)	R, wR^2 (all)	0.0618, 0.1674
43 ¹⁰	98.510(3)	$R, wR^2 [I \ge 2\sigma(I)]$	0.0573, 0.6630
p*	90	GOF on F ²	1.075
710	90		

Although large number of yours containing the high-rays, textubul (FGC) anisms are known?¹⁶ there are fee search, benefaptic tandachad invest[10] complexes in the finanzae, [Feld[20] hypothage/A4xa] of e "Coho[20, Ka, ez-22-(21, 24) Me² and the histores month) kolida complex [Feld[20] Max[2] are two camples. Moreovtandachad invest[10] complexes bended to use histics sums comutily exhibit direct inductions. The Lamoff group has reputed too used camples, [Feld[2045050a];[0];² and [Feld[20] Max[20, Max[20, Max]20] (Figure 21, B). The second standard structure, A comparison of selected hood lengths for 4, [Feld[2045050a];[0]; and [Feld[2044];MaxPAS050a];[0];² in shown in the Toritotic of the second structure and structure theory matter that the transforment structure of the first structure of a selecter that their the transfor-

bridged dimeric complexes.



(FeB4(MesN(SiMe_1))_C)_

(FebryLifMeyPhN(SMey()_O()

Figure 2.10: The structures of {FeBr[MesN(SiMe2)]2O}2 and

(FeBr₂Li[Me₃PhN(SiMe₂)]₂O)₂ from references 20 and 21

FeBr ₂ [O ₂ NH] ^{BaMeePr}	[FeBr[MesN(SiMe_1)]_O}2	$\{FeBr_{2}Li[Me_{3}PhN(SiMe_{2})]_{2}O\}_{2}$
Fe-Br(1): 2.3569(7)	Fe-Br(1): 2. 471(2)	Fe-Br(1): 2.4601(11)
Fe-Br(2): 2.3723(7)	Fe-Be(2): 2.503(2)	Fe-Br(2): 2.4313(11)
Fe-O(1): 1.828(3)	Fe-N(1): 1.864(8)	Fe-N(1): 1.905(4)
Fe-O(2): 1.836(3)	Fe-N(2): 1.880(7)	Fe-N(2): 1.877(5)
Fe ··· N(6): 3.435(3)		FeO(1): 3.330

Table 2.7: Comparison of selected bond lengths in 8 and related complexes

2.5.3 UV-visible Spectroscopy

Elements absorption spectra of all the synthesized intentil) complexes these milliple intense hash in the U and visible regime. The spectra of these complexes ware obtained in a variety of solvents for examination of solvent polarity effects. Elements absorption spectra of 1, 8 and 8 are shown in Figures 211, 212, 202 at 212, regimes (between 100 mm) of the solvent solvent in the survelture entropy in the regimes are also observed in the survelregimes (between 100 mm) of the solvent in the survelture entropy in the regimes are also observed in the survelture entropy in the regimes are also observed in the survelture entropy in the regimes are also observed in the survelture entropy in the solvent entropy of the solvent entropy of the entropy observed entropy of the solvent entropy of the solvent entropy of entropy of the entropy of the solvent entropy of the solvent entropy of entropy of the entropy of the solvent entropy of the solvent entropy of entropy of the entropy of the solvent entropy of the solvent entropy of the entropy of the entropy of the solvent entropy of the solvent entropy of the entropy of the entropy of the solvent entropy of the solvent entropy of the entropy of the entropy of the solvent entropy of the solvent entropy of the entropy of the entropy of the solvent entropy of the solvent entropy of the entropy of the entropy of the solvent entropy of the the entropy of the entr

In complex 1, the absorption spectrum in MeOH shows the visible band at lowest wavelength (596 nm) compared to other solvents examined. The absorption spectra in MeCN, THF and pentane display similar LMCT bands around 490 nm (Figure 2.11).

In complex 8, the absorption spectrum in MeOH shows the wavelength of the lowest energy visible hand at a wavelength of 600 nm. The absorption spectra in THF displays an obvious shift of this band to higher energy toward the near-UV region (Figure 2.13).







Figure 2.11: UV-vis spectra for {FeCl[O2N]^{Bablosh}}2 (1)

In complex 5, the absorption spectrum in MeOH shows the visible band at a wavelength of 519 nm. The absorption spectra in MeCN, THF and pentane display similar this LMCT band around 490 nm (Figure 2.12).



Figure 2.12: UV-vis spectra for {FeCl[O2N]^{BaMdBa}}2 (5)

Complex	FeCI[O ₂ N] ^{thMody}	FeBr ₂ [O ₂ NH] ^{BaMesPr}	FeCI[O2N] ^{BableBa}
Solvent	$\lambda(\mathbf{n}\mathbf{m}), c(\mathbf{L}, \mathbf{mof}^{-1}\mathbf{cm}^{-1})$	$\lambda(nm), c(L,mol^2cm^2)$	λ(nm), c(L mol ⁺ cm ⁻¹)
MeCN	λ(499) = 2583	λ(486) = 1266	$\lambda(499)=2010$
MeOH	λ(596) = 2121	$\lambda(333) = 1363$ $\lambda(600) = 936$	- λ(519) = 999
	$\lambda(334)=2262$	$\lambda(328) = 1668$	$\lambda(323)=1797$
THF	$\lambda(491) = 2796$ $\lambda(323) = 2934$	$\lambda(486) = 2028$ $\lambda(325) = 2334$	$\lambda(499) = 1890$ $\lambda(321) = 2796$
Pentane	$\lambda(480) = 2805$ $\lambda(323) = 3039$	$\lambda(497) = 1252$ $\lambda(339) = 1698$	$\lambda(490) = 1124$ $\lambda(320) = 1296$

Table 2.8: Comparison of the molar absorptivity values of the chloride and bromide

2.5.4 Magnetic studies

compounds

Variable supportance mapping insurprisingly subdise wave performance on representative complex 4. The $\mu_{00} \approx t_{1}$ Pale for 1 is shown in Figure 3.44. However, the representar dependent mapping behavior of 1 vacuum of the mapping of 22 to 200. K. Variable transportance mapping studies do not a vary weak decrease in the mapping moments from 2.61 μ_{00} at 200 K to 2.26 μ_{00} at 0.6 K per moles of dime complex (3.62 μ_{00} m) moments from 2.61 μ_{00} at 200 K to 2.26 μ_{00} at 0.6 K per moles of dime complex (3.62 μ_{00} m) moments in diplety lower than expected for two magnetizably dime high typical ℓ insome their avoid ℓ and the districe, which of ℓ to 2.26 μ_{00} at 25 μ_{00} m) ℓ m (3.62 μ_{00} m) ℓ obeys the Curie-Weiss law $[\chi_0 = C(T - d)]$ (Figure 2.15) with C = 7.5 cm³ K mol³ and θ = -5.4 K (C is Curie constant and θ is Weiss Constant, a negative θ value indicates antiferromagnetic intermolecular interactions between iron(III) centres). These results confirm the presence of high-spin θ Fe² centres (5 = 5/2) and minimal coupling between the ion atoms of theirs.



Figure 2.14: Magnetic moment vs. temperature plot



Figure 2.15: 1/2 vs. temperature

The shows of immunolatio coupling horses into accurs in 1 is proper springling. The similar reconstraints, recell thick bridged dimon via the disturtion of the shows to exhibit the sum of magnetic holizate theory and proper 2.163, have been shown to exhibit the sum of magnetic holizate (horse in quantum mathanial spheroidates)²¹. This regord enspires the holizate quark end of $4.5 \,\mu$ st 100 K, shiki is much hower than the expected spin-only value for a parts s = 52 higher straints ($\mu_{ce} > 53$, $\mu_{ce} > 52$) intermaliant spin state ($\mu_{ce} = 3.37 \,\mu_{ee}$ for these respected destions), thereases, the data are reading exploited if the Feff) match correspond in a provide science of spin administry. Alternative theory is more of spin extremponds are provide science of spin administry. Alternative is viable regress or responded howers of horizon of spin administry. Alternative in the visibulity represents of spin administry. Alternative in the science is a part of the two simple and of the mations, which ere on the science is a part of > 2 spin similar theory is the science of the administry. Alternative theory is a part of the science is a part of > 2 spin similar theory is the science of the administry. Alternative theory is a part of part of the part of the science is a part of > 2 spin similar.

For comparise puppose, selected took langths in $(167C(2005)^{km/hm/h}_{-1}(t))$ and (162C(2h6k)(5h6k)(2b)) as shown in the Table 2.8. More modely, the instantion for (162C(2h6k)(5h6k)(2b)) complex. However, the FoC1 book langths in the root complexer with a different step. One of the FoC1 book langths in the two complexes with a different step. One of the FoC1 book langths in (162C(2h6k)(5h6k)(2b)), where that the temporability dimension 1.4 as easily, it is haby due to stronger overlaps between the tem and advised-accurated outsides in (172C(2h6k)(5h6k)(2b)), which gives in the singute magnetic behaviour of this complexe. The Fo-O and FoC4 interaction in any displacing difference between the size complexes, but this is explained by the matter of the charactive and lighted. Whereas its complexes, but this is explained by the matter of the charactive and lighted. Whereas its complexes, but this is explained by the matter of the charactive and lighted. Whereas its complexes, but this is explained by the matter of the charactive and lighted. Whereas its complexes the the Advance in the two displaces of the theorem the between in its and a Larkis has an etypically imager than the corresponding band between two box.



Figure 2.16: Molecular structure of (FeCI['BuN(SiMe2)]2O}2.

$\{FeCl[O_2N]^{BaMosPr}\}_2$	Â	[FeCI['BuN(SiMe2)]2O]2	Å
Fe(1)Fe(2)	3.4658(7)	Fe(1)Fe(2)	3.4784(20)
Fe(1)-Cl(1)	2.2976(12)	Fe(1)-Cl(1)	2.3181(19)
Fe(1)-Cl(2)	2.4912(14)	Fe(1)-Cl(2)	2.4652(17)
Fe(1)-O(1)	1.818(2)	Fe(1)-N(1)	1.887(5)
Fe(1)-O(2)	1.817(2)	Fe(1)-N(2)	1.894(4)
Fe(1)-N(1)	2.183(3)	Fe(1)-O(1)	2.597(4)

Table 2.9: Selected bond lengths of (FeCl[O2N]^{Bulloth})2 and (FeX['BuN(SiMe2)]2O)2

2.6 Experimental Section

2.6.1 Materials

Chemical reagents were purchased from Aldrich, Alfa Acear or Strem. Commercially available reagents were used without further partification except for solvests, which were diela asing other an Milleaun solvent partification system or, in the case of THF, distilled under nitrogen using sodium hemospherose keyl. The amines were kanded carefully on the hore enough sorth.

2.6.2 Methods

All reactions for synthesizing the ligands and the iron complexes were carried out in a well ventilized funes hood. All of the complexes were synthesized under nitrogen using Schlenk techniques. The iron complexes were stored in a given box and all recystallization attempts were performed therein.

Subdet crystals of 2, 2,5 and 5 were activate and rowards or a different lowuing Parame-N oil and fracting to -150 °C. All measurements were made to a Kipak Saran CCD are abateved to a pipake monochromatol Mo-Ke radiation. The data were processed² and corrected for Lorenz and parlamization effects and homerican³. Names and correctly and in monochrogen management of the same homerican³ And an explored fraction of the same strength and the discontrained facility for X-ray Crystallingweigh.³¹ The structures were tached by direct methods¹² and coprodied data fraction of the same strength and the discontrained discontrained (home fractions were tached by direct methods¹² and coprodied data).³² All non-hydrogen amounts are effected and Michaley.³⁴ The values for hears and meanuming to effort monochrome Creaped and Michaley.³⁴ The values for hears are meaned as using the Crystallineare^{24,45} crystallingweights undrease package accept for reflerennet, which was performed using MICHALEN.³⁴

2.6.3 Instruments

¹HAMR and ¹⁰CNMR were recorded in CDCs, on Broker Assume300 or Assumed10-300 foruing Transform performances with Mex3 as an intermet standard. Data we reported as filters, examined at the multiplet, the signed at a databate of doubtes, 1 = signes, b = hmad, m = multiplet, compling constant (1, 10), assignment and intergration. ¹HAMR and ¹⁰CNMR spectra were processed using Montelbus voltance.

The MALDI-TOF MS spectra were recorded on an Applied Biosystems Voyager DE-PRO equipped with a reflectron, delayed ion extraction and high performance

nitrogan laner (337 mm). Samples were prepared at a concentration of 0.01 mg L⁴In methanel. Marks (anthracene) was minda a a concentration of 0.01 mg L⁴In promote desception and ionization. UV-41s spectra were recorded on an Ocean Optics US14000spectrophotometer. CIDS analyses were carried on by Canadian Microanalytical Services. Dela, Biolità Columbia, Canada.

The crystal structures were solved on a AFCb-Staten 70 single crystal X-ray diffractometer from Righku/MSC, quipped with an X-atraum 2000 low temperature system. The collimator capillary measure 0.3 mm and Crystalcher othware was used for data collection and processing. The variable temperature magnetic measurements were run os 4 Quantum Degine MMPAS SQUED magnetometer.

2.6.4 Synthesis

Untersmutch, the characterization of several compounds in incomplete due to lack of time. Complete characterization for the ligands should include ¹H and ¹C 1NIR, and for L2 ¹T. Novelkan, either elemental analysis or high providiem mass spectrometry is till required for several two complexes. The ligands L1, L2, L5 and L4 have been described previously. However, so characterization data was given, except for L2.

H2[O2N]BaMasPr (L1)

A mixture of 2-e-butyl,4-methylphenol (20.24 g, 0.123 mol), n-propylamine (3.64 g, 0.0615 mol), and 37% aqueous formaldehyde (9.17 mL, 0.123 mol) in deionized



water (7) the Line without and refinance for (2 Ls. Upon cooling, as white provplane frame of the fiscal plane was a behavior whichins. The upper planes was document and the maining only reliables was themated with and an entropy of the strength strength

H2[O2N] Ballanty (L2)23.24

A mixture of 2,4-di-t-butylphenol (25.62 g. 0.123 mol), n-propylamine (3.64 g. 0.0615 mol), and 37% aqueous formaldehyde (9.17 mL, 0.123 mol) in deionized water (75 mL) was stiered and refluxed for



12 h. Upino config. 1 yellion-bows suff formst. The liquid plane was ducument and the critical galaxies. The second second second second second second second second to (2017) galaxies. The MRR (2018) MBC (2015), and 2015 (2014), and 2015 (2014) (2015) galaxies. The MRR (2018) MBC (2015), and 2015 (2014), and 2015 (2015) (2

H2[O2N]BaMePr (L3)

A mixture of 2+butyl-4-methylphenol (20.24 g, 0.123 mol), isopropylamine (3.64 g, 0.0615 mol), and 37% aqueous formaldehyde (9.17 mL, 0.123 mol) in deionized water (75 mL) was stirred and refluxed for 12 h. Upon



config. 2 pair yoline provides forms. The figid phase was downlid and be summing ally makes as turned with out instantion by pine a price. Web product (15.3 g, 60%). TI NMR (200. MBC, CCG, 10, 7.3 (A, AM, ZH), K-M, CH, 21.5 (A, C, CH, H, LL), 21.6 (specific CH, 110; 2.5 K, C, D, 2.4 (C, L), 100; 11.0 (A, C, CH, H, L), 21.6 (specific CH, 110; 2.5 K, C, CH, L), 21.6 (specific CH, 100; 11.0 (A, CH, CH, L), 21.6 (specific CH, 110; 2.5 K, CH, 21.6 (specific CH, 21.6 (sp

H₂[O₂N]^{BuBuTr}(L4)

A mixture of 2,4-e-butylphenol (25.62 g, 0.123 mol), isopropylamine (3.64 g, 0.0615 mol), and 37% aqueous formaldehyde (9.17 mL, 0.123 mol) in



detailed water (2) and 3) was nitred and reflexed for 12 Å. Upon cooling, a 3/ellow-berne studi filmed. The liquid plane was documed and the remaining oilly residue was hirared with oill and methanic of upon a pure, while powder (221 g. 279a; ¹). Work (190 MHz, CDCb, 19: 725 (x. Ard, 210; 659 (x. Ard, 210; 3.24 (x. Cls, 40); 3.20 (nr, Cl, 110; 1.42 (x. Cls, 100; 1.31 (x. Cls, 100; 1.21 (x. Cls, 40); 3.27 (x. Cls, 40); 3.20 (nr, Cl, 110;1.42 (x. Cls, 110; 1.31 (x. Cls, 110; 1.21 (x. Cls, 40); <math>3.27 (x. Cls, 40); 3.20 (nr, Cls, 110; 1.21 (x. Cls, 40); 3.20 (nr, Cls, 110; 1.31 (x. Cls, 110; 1.31 (x. Cls, 110; 1.31 (x. Cls, 110; 1.31 (x. Cls, 40); 3.20 (nr, Cls, 110; 1.31 (x. Cls, 110; 1

123.1 (Ar); 52.4 (CH₂); 49.0 (CH₂); 35.3 (C(CH₃)₃); 30.3 (C(CH₃)₃); 21.5 (CH); 17.4 (CH₃).

H2[O2N]BaBaBa (L5)125

A mixture of 2,4-di-t-busylphenol (25.62 g, 0.123 mol), benzyl amine (6.62 g, 0.0615 mol), and 37% aqueous formaldehyde (9.17 mL, 0.123 mol) in deionized water (75 mL) was stirred and refluxed for



H2[O2N]^{thMeBs}(L6)³

A mixture of 2-o-butyL4-methylphenol (20.24 g, 0.123 mol), benzyl amine (6.62 g, 0.0615 mol), and 37% aqueous formaldehyde (9.17 mL, 0.123 mol) in deionized water (75 mL) was stirred and refluxed for



12 h. Upon cooling, a pale yellow procipitate formed. The upper phase was decanted and the remaining oily residue was triturated with cold methanol to give a pure, while powder

(146 g, 669). ¹H NBR (169 BML; CDCL, 18; 7.37 G, ARI, 116; 7.35 G, ARI, 116; 7.39 G, ARI, 116; 7.29 G, ARI, 115; 7.29 G, ARI, 7.30 S, 7.20 G, 7.20 G,

H₂[O₂N]^{TEP7}(L7)

A mixture of 2,4-diffuorophenol (16.02g, 0.123 mol), *i-propylamine* (3.64 g, 0.0615 mol), and 37% squeous formaldehyde (9.17 mL, 0.123 mol) in deionized water (75 mL) was stirred and reflexed for



12 h. Upon cooling, a white solid formod. The upper phase was decanted and the remaining oily residue was trianuated with odd methanels to give a pure, white powder (570 g. 27%). ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCh, ii): 6.78 (m, AdJ, 211); 6.42 (m, AdJ, 212); 3755, CdF, 40F2; 311 Genet, CZ, R1; 127 (64, CD), 401.

{FeCI[O2N] BallesPr]2 (1)

To an ethnolic shary of negotialized Li (2.44 g, 4.52 mms) was added a solution of aduptions IP-CI (1.06 g, 4.52 mm/) in THF enabling in an itemes papel solution. To this solution was added trichylamet (2.52 g, 1.04 mms) and the runshing minute was strend for 2 h then fibered through Celliz, Romoval of the solvent under vacarm sylicidital adupt parties and (2.25 g, 3.08%), Anal, adued for 1; C. (4.52 i), R. 311, N. P. Frande, C. Schler, T. 24 N. 32 M. Schler M. 2017 DV rev (Ns. 1001 11 Ch ML. FgC([]), 464.2 (100, [M-C(]]), 499.2 (20, [M]]), 965.45 (10, [2M-C(])), UV-ii Ja_{min} nn (s): (Pistane) 480 (2005), 323 (2009); (McCN) 499 (2203), 323 (2736); (McOB) 596 (2121), 314 (2262); (T182) 491 (2796), 323 (2934), just (solid, 27 °C) 7.67 µ₀ per nol of dimer.

(FeCI[O2N]Bellarity]2 (2)

To an enhancine sharey of encoursellation 4.2 (20.2) g, 6.5.2 mmol) was added a solution of anhydrone FeCh₁ (1.66 g, 6.52 mmol) in THF resulting in an isome parely distribution. To this solution and adder introllymetic (2.2) g, 1.01 mmol) and the resulting mixture was similar for 2.6 them filtered through Cellics. Removed of solvest under vacuum yielded a data paring product (2.5) g, 75%, MS (MALDH-107) are; 7(6, ion). 495.4 (25, MS-4CE(17), 548.1 (100, FACT)).

{FeCl[O2N]^{BeMePr}]2 (3)

(FeCl(O₂N)^{BulletPr}}₂(4)

To an ethanolic slurry of recrystallized L4 (3.23 g, 6.52 mmol) was added a volution of anhydrous FeCh (1.06 g, 6.52 mmol) in THF resulting in an intense purple

solution. To this solution was added sriethytamize (1.22 g. 13.0 mmol) and the resulting mixture was stired for 2 h then filtered through Cellue, Removal of solvent under vacuum yielded a dark pupie product (3.31 g. 87%), MS (MALDETOP) m2 (%, ion): 495.4 (100, IM-FeCT), 549.3 (5. MCPL), 549.4 (5. MCP).

{FeCl[O2N]BuMells }2 (5)

To an enhancine damy of enzymitation 4.5 \times 20% p. 6.5 \times 300 \times 3

{FeCl[O2N]^{Balladle} }2 (6)

To an exhancic shary of enzystilled L4 (3.54 g, 6.52 mm/) was adde 3 solution of anhydrous Field, (3.66 g, 6.52 mm/) in THF resulting in an innum purple solution. To this solution was added tristophum (1.25 g, 1.13 mm/) and for resulting mixture was solved for 2.1 then Ellevel through Cellin. Removal of solvent under vacuum sjoiled a dada, parkje product (3.51 g, 8%3). 85 (MALDE-1070) we 7(%, ion) 540 4 (67, MF-6FGT). 593-674 (MACT). 643-104 (MA).

(FeCI[O2N]2007)2 (7)

To an enhancies stary of encyclationel 3.7 (22.8 g, 6.52, mmol) was added a solution of analysisous FeCu, (1.86 g, 6.52, mmol) in Till Frendhing in an instance party definition. To this solution and add in withoutine (2.22, 0.13 mmol) and the resulting mixture was sized for 2.3 then Branch Collar, Removed of solvent sub-traveaum sjolded a data partyle product (1.58 g, 730, 585 (MaLDH-OD) are 7(6, ion); 342.1 (10), [MeCCT_3]), 397.64 (MeCT_3).

FeBr₂[O₂NH]^{BaMenPr}(8)

To an extensive stary of encounteralities 4.1 (2.64 g, e.5.8 mm)) was added a solution of analysions (Fibs) (3.82 g, 6.52 mm0) in THF reading in an intense provided in the resulting minute was stirted for 2.3 them Human Humay Cellin. Removed of solution trades was intended for 2.5 them Human Humay Cellin. Removed of solution trades was intended for 2.5 them Human Humay Cellin. Removed of solution trades was intended for 2.5 them Human Humay Cellin. Removed of solution trades was intended for 2.5 them Human Humay Cellin. Removed of solution trades was intended for 2.5 them Human Humay Cellin. Removed of solution trades was intended for the trades and trades was intended for the trades of the

2.7 Conclusions

A small library of ligands has been synthesized using modified Marnich condensation to produce diprotic tridentiat ligands. The tridentiat ligands were coordinated to Fe(III) ions. The yields of the complexes were good and they were quite instruct to synthesize. The mass secret data indicate that the metal complexes fragment

consistively under MALER conditions. Interestingly, (FCE(Q)A/Ma²⁰)), seem nore statik to fragmentation than (FoC(Q)A)²⁰⁰⁰); so of the sight completion symbolicule, and the transmission of the selection structure of the sight and set affaution. It by an is the base in microarbit glucasticities by single symbol atomatic trigonal biogenetial generative around Fa₀ sobress B is Encoding transmission biogenetial generative around Fa₀ sobress B is Encoding transmission of the U-via data show the simplement cabilities may light to read drange transmit (SUCT) bands. Margine taskes about the response transmitted to the simplex of the simplex of the simplex of the simplex I is an amplexed fill that high-sight equation.

2.8 References:

- Chowdhury, R. R.; Crane, A. K.; Fowler, C.; Kwong, P.; Kozak, C. M. Chem. Commun. 2008, 94.
- (2) Rothenberg, G. Catalysis, Wiley-VCH: Weinheim, 2008.
- (3) Kerton, F. M.; Holloway, S.; Power, A.; Soper, R. G.; Sheridan, K.; Lynam, J. M.; Whitwood, A. C.; Willars, C. E., Can. J. Chem. 2008, 86, 435.
- (4) Hasan, K.; Fowler, C.; Kwong, P.; Crane, A. K.; Collins, J. L.; Kozak, C. M. Dalton Trans. 2008, 2991.
- (5) Pohl, S.; Sank, W. Z. Awarg, Allg. Chem. 1985, 522, 25; Sank, W. Z.; Pohl, S. Awarg, Allg. Chem. 1987, 552, 186, Naham, S. M. in Camprelennite Coordination Chemistry, Yol. 4 (Eds.: Wilkinson, G.; Gillard, R. D.; McCleverty, J. A.) Pergamon Press, Oxford, 1987, 217.

- (6) Nishijo, J.; Miyazaki, A.; Enoki, T.; Watanabe, R.; Kuwatani, Y.; Iyada, M. *Inorg. Chem.* 2005, 44, 2493.
- (7) Stokes, S. L.; Davis, W. M.; Odom, A. L.; Cummins, C. C.; Organowetallics. 1996, 15, 4521.
- (8) Pohl, S.; Bierbach, U.; Saak, W. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. Engl. 1989, 28, 776.
- (9) Das, A. K.; Moatazedi, Z.; Mund, G.; Bennet, A. J.; Batchelor, R. J.; Leznoff, D. B. Inorg. Chem. 2007, 46, 366.
- (10) Mund, G.; Vidovic, D.; Batchelor, R. J.; Brinen, J. F.; Sharma, R. D.; Jones, C. H. W.; Leznoff, D. B. Chons. Eur. J. 2003, 9, 4757.
- (11) Mund, G.; Batchelor, R. J.; Sharma, R. D.; Jones, C. H. W.; Leznoff, D. B. Chem. Soc. Dation Trans. 2002, 136.
- (12) Pflugrath, J. W. Acta Cryst. 1999, 55, 1718.
- (13) Larson, A. C. Crystallographic Computing, ed. Ahmed, F. R.; Muriksgaard, Copenhagen, 1979, 291.
- (14) Cremer, D. T.; Waber, J. T. International Tables for X-ray Crystallography, vol. IV, The Kynoch Press, Biemingham, England, Table 2.2 A, 1974.
- (15) Altomare, A.; Cascarano, G.; Giacovazzo, C.; Guagliardi, A.; Burla, M.; Polidori, G.; Camalli, M. J. Appl. Crost. 1994, 27, 435.
- (16) Beurskens, P. T.; Admiraal, G.; Beurskens, G.; Bosman, W. P.; de Gelder, R.; Ionet, R.: Smits, J. M. M. DIRDIFPS, The DIRDIF-99 program instem, Technical

Report of the Crystallography Laboratory, University of Nijmegen, The Netherlands, 1999.

- (17) Ibers, J. A.; Hamilton, W. C. Acta Crystallogr. 1964, 17, 781.
- (18) Creagh, D. C.; McAuley, W. J. International Tables for Crystallography, vol C, (Wilson, A. J. C. ed.), Klawer Academic Publishers, Boston, Table 4.2.6.8, pages 219-222, 1992.
- (19) Creagh, D. C.; Hubbell, J. H. International Tables for Crystallography, vol C, (Wilton, A.J.C. ed.), Kluwer Academic Publishers, Boston, Table 4.2.4.3, pages 200-206, 1992.
- (20) CrystalStructure 3.7.0: Crystal Structure Analysis Package, Rigaku and Rigaku/MSC, 2010-2005.
- (21) Watkin, D. J.; Prout, C. K.; Carrathers, J. R.; Betteridge, P. W. CRISTALS Issue 10, Chemical Crystallography Laboratory, Oxford, UK, 1996.
- (22) Sheldrick, G. M. SHELX97, 1997.
- (23) Tuhuya, E. Y.; Goldberg, I.; Kol, M.; Goldshimidt, Z. Inorg. Chem. 2001, 40, 4263.
- (24) Tshuva, E. Y.; Goldberg, I.; Kol, M.; Goldshimidt, Z. Organowetallics. 2091, 20, 3017.
- (25) Chmura, A. J.; Chuck, C. J.; Davidson, M. G.; Jones, M. D.; Lumn, M. D.; Mahon, M. F. Dahow Trans. 2006, 887.
Chapter 3. Iron-Catalyzed sp³-sp² Kumada C-C Cross-coupling Reactions 3.1 Introduction

Turniskin medi andysid Gippale ones-copile ji is in properts them of C2bod forming metacine, including nick-an alpha dilation-natives of kamsAC ones couplings of Gippale reagons with ergenshalides.¹⁴ Recently, following early reports by Kohk' and in the interest of institubility (horer cost and insticky), there has been a require here also of institubility (horer cost and institubility), there has been a require here also of institubility (horer cost and institubility). The order has one early and hered using Ni or Pd data to competing alphyside minimum. However, early and been done of the production of alphyside minimum. However, alphysical costing of any "periodicity alphyside minimum. However, alphysical costing of any "periodicity alphyside minimum. However, Alon, there have been free reports of the synthesis of alphysime been reported.¹¹⁴ Alon, there have been free reports of the synthesis of alphysime broad bar products required the cost of any interface and ones the found here products required the cost of any interface and endormality in required month interfacess.¹¹ A study you min term and sheet contromings is required.¹¹⁴

The breadth of ion-catalyzed methods used for Kamada-type cross-coupling is diverse.^{11,10} Use of FACL, whether on its own or to generate an active catalyst in rate, is often inconvenient on a large scale because it is highly hypotopoing and yields vary according to its parity and commercial origin.²¹ Although Fe(acach, is a more commernient, test hypotopoing training material,¹¹ mine additives are often employed to achieve high

\$8

conversion and yields of consc-output products.¹⁰ At an any use, new hypergeodysingle component cardyet presentses is, therefore, bit200²⁵ solvers haves have single component cardyet presentses in the constant of the sector transformation of the sector present sector of the sector regulater hashing.^{11,10,12} and the most community used adverses for these reactions, defind the and THE, have relatively how holling priorit. However, used in alconverse relation to a subvector product formation providency higher advectors before any there product formation providency higher advectors before as a under the consciously and the sector output presents.¹¹ Sector has a new form of constraints in the days high advectors before as the above distances to infinite the high yield and the conscipting between set Grapment and performance and the set of microavece-anisted having have, to are knowledge, not then reserving the forme on-autification.

The focus group has previously properlish to patholis of remains and induktio composes in remarkness mice biological inputs of and the use a catalytics encouraging of any Gaganat reagons with primary and secondary addy halidas." In order to generate more mories catalyses, yet utill maintain the robote status of the catalyse presents interflations was tuned to sufface. The development of the interflation state states of the catalystic activity of a secondary presents, interflations of the catalystic activity of any Gaganat materials haliphonical intellity complex for C-C errors coupling of any Gaganat magnets with addy halidas. Furthermore, reactions for a secondary addy clathering, including benegati charitas, Furthermore, reactions for the variability having the primer conversions at non tremement were found by varias with haliph halidar.

3.2 Results & Discussion

3.2.1 General Procedure

Because were free careful or using a tuberate naive-hyperbody low products as cardyot. Eliferent Griganet engages and electrophile streams reaction, and the sumperimetry and the stream of the stream of the stream reaction contribution, such as sumperimetry. A straight building of π stream of H^{-1} simplet H^{-1} (https: 3.1) was able to find for the stream of the total part (https: 3.1) was able to find for the stream of the total part requires. The state of Griganet Reagent to the table stream of the total part formation of reduced for an the above species, which is generated by exerce Griganet regards. The machine induces was stream of the formation of reduced for an the above species, which is a generated by stream Griganet regards.⁻¹² The machine stream of the stream of the stream of the stream (10 to $2.0 \times 3.0 \times 3.0 \times 3.1$). The product system was equivalent by GG GG GAMS (reduced to a stream of the stream of t



Figure 3.1 Structure of {FeCl[O2N]^{BaMosPr}} (1)

3.2.2 Cyclohexyl halides as substrates

Based or provisos work in the Scota group with Fe² composeds segrented by theoretizen mice bio-Scherberg device. It is surpleyed under similar reaction conditions for any prelimitary investigation. It was provisedly found that dishy ether is support to THF as a solvent of reaction gradient strengtmen with any likelisa using these composes," inferritive is was bestwent of choice for the current study. Also, it was previously found that reactions performed at two supervisedly on the support of the same effective catalys for reaccoupling of typical substants and receilem signals were abstanted for some temperatures. Under these conditions, 55 wide's complet 1 was an effective catalys for reac-coupling of typical substants and receilem signals were abstanted for somethy alky hiddes, regularity calculatory. halds (Table 31, mays [1, Eucline) yields ware also obtained with swahity and pmontheneys (Gapanel, Bold 31, meros 2 and 31, Mindering and machinelliholy een at a datachand awar-position, or with charmergative groups in the pure-position. The more mirrolul datamaking 2.6-dimbis/high-high-paragraphic methods was attempted. Understandards, non-more complications with any obtained the section of the adar microwave, hearing us 100 °C (Table 31, euror 54, Minders 40) merode and maccache for obstance combinations (see bolws). Builderd has reported a similatication of 2.6-discliphenty-hange-minite hierarchic us undergo crass-configs with systems (the solution). The specific systems with the solution of the solution of the systems (the mirachic-Table 7). Reaction of the solution tare on solution with explosing hindlink, however, grave a moders with (Table 1, nore 5).

Cyclicheory database aus finand as pipe moderu ta good yields, depending met de (Segural mengar, F-pipe) spacements inneits (Rela 13, emers) (gauer penery yield of cross-emploid product than a-web/magnetism humidae (Talei 13, 1, emers) (as tama superior to Mi Konki gaueri, gareolosisy reported reads.⁴⁷ Cyclicheol databat gaueri propriadas with gareologonosism humidae, end with Callei 13, emers (bi. Marsonese fording to 100 °C. for 10 minutes, however, improved the conversion mandad) for explainacyl databate, giving the converses poling under a pipe states with gareologonosism humidae, end with the minutes of the same and assignments from data end with the same states in the despines of the sources area web (astic menses thanking, the mentation is the despines of the sources area web (astic menses that mentation is the despines of the sources area web (astic menses that mentation is the despines of the sources area web (astic menses that mentation is the despines of the sources area web (astic menses that mentation is the despines of the sources area web (astic menses that mentation is the despines of the sources area web (astic menses that mentation is the despines of the sources area web (astic menses that mentation is the despines of the sources area web (astic menses that mentation is the despines of the sources area web (astic menses the despines area the sources area web (astic menses that menses are mentation areas and the despines areas web (astic menses that despines areas and astic menses the despines areas and astic menses areas web (astic menses and menses the despines areas and the sources areas and the despines areas and the despines areas and the sources areas web (astic menses and the despines areas and the sources areas and the despines areas and the despines areas and the despines areas and the despines areas and the despi

Eatry	ArMgBr	Alkyl Halide	Product	Yield (%)
1	Ph	()-⊮	$\bigcirc \bigcirc$	>95°
2	m-Anisyl		™ ⊖-⊖	>95
3	p-FPh		r-⊘O	>95
4	2,6-Me ₂ Ph		фo	Trace ^b
5	I-Naphthyl	*	8-0	36
6	p-Tolyl	a	-0-0	47
7	ø-Tolyl		60	86
8	p-Anisyl		M0-	22
				264
				91 ^b
				04

Table 3.1: Kumada type sp¹-sp² cross-coupling using cyclohexyl halides as substrates

⁴ Reaction performed using 1.60 g of alkyl halide. ³ Microwave heating for 10 min at 100 ⁴C. ^c Performed for 30 min at 40 ⁴C. ⁴ Microwave heating for 10 min at 100 ⁴C in the absence of compound 1.

3.2.3 Benzyl halides as substrates

Eatry	ArMgBr	Alkyl Halide	Product	Yield (%)
1	a-Tolyl	0-°	(1)	>95
2	2,6-Me ₂ Ph	⊘_*	quo	78
3	e-Tohi		ß	>95
4	2,6-Me ₂ Ph	-	ß	19

Table 3.2: Kumada type sp³-sp² cross-coupling by using benzyl halides as substrates

3.2.4 Primary alkyl halides as substrates

A competitive arylation maxima of A-boson-3-distorptogene multiple in selective stank: at the bosonise data, meaning in a modates spikel of 1-0-distorptoge/1distributiones (Table 33.2, early 1). Arylation by p-filosopherplangueenin bosonise use pore, net under microwave leading conditions (Table 3.3, early 3). Interestingly, while databate spikelos of 1-6-distributions with a-ship/suppetition bronder was not theread; an exertion yield of the singly arguind 1-(4-distribution)/5-2 methylbeamer was in theited (Table 3.3, early 3). Argin, 2.0 appix, of Gegueré regnert were required per builds forctional energy.

Other primary halides were also screened (Table 3.3, entries 4-8). The previous report from the Kozak aroun showed very good yields for cross-coupling of a tols/managian beomide with mosts/beomide 13 house are importanted whether this reaction could be performed on a larger scale. Reaction of 1.0 gram of n-octvlbromide with 2.0 equiv. of Grignard reagent gave very good yield of cross-coupled product (Table 3.3. entry 43. Using the more sterically demanding 2.6-dimethylphenylmagnesium bromide gave trace quantities of product when the reaction was conducted at room temperature but, unlike the reaction with evclohesed bromide (Table 3.1, entry 4). microscope irradiation to 100 %" for 10 minutes increased the yield to 94% (Table 1.1 entry 5). In comparison, Havashi reported the cross-coupling of 2.4.6trimethylphenylmannesium bermide with mostylbermide in 60% yield using Felaracy, in reflection distuid other 17 Better results were obtained for Lindonsonane, where crosscoupling to a-tolylmagnesium bromide and a-fluorophenylmagnesium bromide routled in 76% and 67% yields, respectively (Table 3.3, cettries 6 and 7). Again, 2.6dimethylphenylmagnesium beomide gave trace quantities of product at room temperature but microwave irradiation must the needest in \$8% vield (Table 1.3, entry \$). This contrasts with the selectivity for double erubation new with heaved balide substrates (Table 1.2 onto: 3)

Entry	ArMgBr	Alkyl Halide	Product	Yield (%)
1	o-Tolyl	a~~br	\sim	61
2	p-FPh	-	"ano	28ª
3	o-Tobil	a~~~a	C	90 ^h
4	o-Tolyl	${\it n}{\rm -}C_{\rm g}H_{\odot}Br$	$\operatorname{Ci}_{c_{\mathcal{H}_{r}}}$	85°
5	2,6-Me ₂ Ph	n-C ₈ H ₁₂ Br	C-c.H.o	Trace 94*
6	a-Tolyl	\sim	α_{\sim}	76
7	p-FPh	-	r-(>-/-	67
8	2,6-Me ₂ Ph	-	¢	Trace 88°

Table 3.3: Kumada type sp¹-sp² cross-coupling by using primary alkyl halides as

substrates

³ Microwave heating for 10 min at 100 °C.³ Ratio between alkyl halides to aryl Grignard reagent is 12.5:1.⁶ Reaction performed using 1.00 g of alkyl halide.

3.2.5 Acyclic secondary alkyl halides as substrates

Acycle consolve) ballies were and associated. Clubinstands, the bindered 2diandrelyblenylmagnesium tensities theread as conscoreding product with 2biomolecule, cern sub-missioners balling (2014) 2-4, and y. 1]. Howeves, since promising results were absented far ties his/hards and y. O (signaris with and) clubicits. Execution of 2-doritomises with writes: Gliquer length are results with and) clubicits. These are free response of Essenberghe consocietying using sciencelly also 1 distants. These are measuring processors where microarese heating (Table 3-4, enrice 2-4 s). These are measuring processors under gravity and the science of the tension and the science of the measurement of the science of the science of the science of the science measurement of the science of the science of the science of the measurement of the science of the science of the science of the measurement of the science o

Entry	ArMgBr	Alkyl Halide	Product	Yield (%)
1	2,6-Me ₂ Ph		¢-r	Trace ⁸
2	p-Anisyl	~	MO-()-(`	35 374
3	o-Tolyl		0-r	20 30*
4	n		\odot	30 ⁵ 36
5	p-Tolyl		-0-(64

Table 3.4: Kumada type sp¹-sp² cross-coupling by using acyclic secondary alkyl halides as substrates

³ Microwave heating for 10 min at 100 °C. ³ Microwave heating for 10 min at 180 °C.

3.2.6 Functional-group alkyl halides as substrates

Proceedings of a part of the second s

well as the nature of the machenylate.¹⁰ When the brancs group was present in the tposition of the entry, an excitation yield of cross-coupled product was observed for a characteristic strength of the strength of the strength of the observation of the strength of th

Entry	ArMgBr	Alkyl Halide	Product	Yield (%)
1	o-Tolyl	Ç.	°-D	61
2	o-Tolyl	но^^^^ вг	CX M4 OH	54
3	o-Tolyl	80 ⁴ H ₅ ^{Br}		91
4	p-FPh	-	ul y lot	30 32 ⁴
5	o-Tolyl	m of	mlott	0 0*
6	o-Tolyl	Br~~0~	\mathbb{C}^{A}	19
7	o-Tolyl	2.	20	93 99*

Table 3.5: Kumada type sp¹-sp² cross-coupling by using functional-group alkyl halides as substrates

* Microwave heating for 10 min at 100 °C.

3.3 Mechanistic Studies

Recently, iron-based catalytic systems have attracted increasing interest from many groups because of their unique catalytic properties and low environmental impact. Iron is able to cross-couple a wide variety of sp³ and sp² racecophiles and electrophiles.

Until very recently, however, link was known about the mechanisms of iron-catalyzed reactions because of the paramagnetic nature of F and the instability of the allylion intermediates.³³ Genniss can only propose some possible pathways according to their results and otherwations. This section will discuss the mechanistic study of $w^{3}-w^{2}$ Kmath GC error-coupling prototed by ion.

Firstner²⁴² and co-workers demonstrated that well-defined iron-complexes of oxidation states Fo(-1)Fo(-3), Fo(0)Fo(-2), and Fo(-2)Fo(0) can all be active catalysis openies, according to the acquired data that C-C bond formations can accord, a priori, along different catalysis cycles sharing between metal centres of the formal oxidation states (Figure 2).



Figure 3.2 One of many conceivable scenarios of

interconnected catalytic redox cycles

Hayashi et al. illustrated a plausible mechanism according to the distribution of products in the reaction of aryl Grignard reagent and alkyl halide bearing a Ji-H (Figure 3.3). ¹⁷ This cross-coupling cycle explains the formation of alkene, alkane and biaryl by-



products. By screening the ratio of product by-product distribution one can obtain details regarding stability of intermediates and qualitative rates of the different steps in the cycle.

Figure 3.3: Plausible mechanism for the aryl-alkyl coupling from Hayashi et al

In Nationaria's into eachyst of ϕ^{2} Kennik type C.C. more conflicts grave², dray showed different reaction modifies in add to different reaches when physical Giogrand amper contribute with a 1-mono-3-means was added to a structure of TMEDA and FiCI, at "31" Cail Assumed to some integration, the product of related initiation ring choings and the physical constraints, the product of related initiation ring choings and the physical constraints, the product of related initiation ring choings. This suggested the existence of the physical constraints of the structure of a long fior-idealized r⁽¹⁶⁾ physical constraints of the effect of TMEDA was performed by using (TMEDA/Gio/Andre et also the differe of TMEDA was performed by using (TMEDA/Gio/Andre et also the differe of TMEDA was performed by using (TMEDA/Gio/Andre et also the differe of TMEDA was performed by using (TMEDA/Gio/Andre et also the differe of TMEDA was performed by using (TMEDA/Gio/Andre et also the differe of TMEDA was performed by using (TMEDA/Gio/Andre et also the differe of TMEDA was performed by using (TMEDA/Gio/Andre et also the differe of TMEDA was performed by using (TMEDA/Gio/Andre et also the differe of the difference), grave a support of the transmitter of the instant of the structure of the structure

mixture of cyclic- and alkenyl products. This implied single electron transfer was involved in the reaction. A processed cycle is shown in Figure 3.4.



Figure 3.4: Plausible mechanism from Nakamura et al.

Belief of al., suggested a possible media-thesaid coupling methanism.^{10,123} When in the presence of their analysis (T_{c} theirs in T_{c} by hopping, T_{c} beam to morpholos), hepsel (Gaptara Tangues mass with homosomelysis (suppose of a chosen to Figure 3.3, the Gaptara Tanguest from mass with their in presenting the starts and water ion species in during an analysis of the adayly haller by the transfer of a media of their presence an adayl radiated (via the intermediate formation of a mediat anisot and an $P_{c}^{(2-N)}$) (appears, Transmithtiles to give an angae-ion species is followed by mediator effective mediate.



Figure 3.5: Plausible mechanism for the aryl-alkyl coupling from Bedford et al.

Calcitor and an owned are suggested at two-maps indipote-letters transfer mediatism²⁰ ²¹ band on the mpoors of For a $t^{10,1}$ and their owned horizontains, For and no-wetters based that the second-gat algeb blatche data ratio means in their difficult calcitophics at the mathetic addition is two show. They believe the mains means in term effects. However, from the results of Calcie involving items cancelystic, how its much difference herems mergins and ascenario and the states. The horizontain the strength there secondary algeb humiles can be und ascenarily. Therefore, Calcier proposal at more subside-textom transfer admines in the calcier (exist as down in Figure 1.8.).



Figure 3.6: Plausible mechanism for the aryl-alkyl coupling from Cabiez et al.

In our conditions, meating of solid () Gliqued with biomorphychoprogene in the presence of ($Pet(Q_i A_i)^{(2n)}(x)$) ((3)) (old a mixture of the cycloprop) and alters that presence compare having the conductive conditions and solid reduction transfer presences compare during the conductive conditions of solid presence, meaning on Gliqued with 4-biomori-biceness gave prediministic different product in (81) (s) (14) 9CC the continuit and on Gring specing of cyclopropyrimhty finding is (1.3 × 10⁴ Me² s²) and of 2-biceness (1.4 mixed) and $Path² = 1/2^{-10^2}$ The above means suggest ratio the fideline of the resultion in (3.6 × 10⁴ Me² s²).²¹ The above means suggest ratio are conclus having meanging to solve the predict firing previous (2.4 mcCyclopropyrimhty) radial. Also, successful coupling with society wigh balance as electrophile solvement and or indiced coupling with society wigh balance as electrophile solvement and on the states and the indice of the cyclopropyrimethy first and also previous the state of the cyclopropyrimethy first and also previous the state of the cyclopropyrimethy first and also previous the state of the cyclopropyrimethy first and also previous the state of the cyclopersystem of the cycloper



3.4 Experimental

3.4.1 Instrumentation

Notik opens wer resolut in CCCC, on a Bolar Assess 200 spectrometry cohomorogaphy may any estimation (CCC), on a Bolar Assess 200 services and the Tachenique 1990 CC system coupled to an Agihost Tachenique 1990 CC system observe advance (MDD). The chormaligness, and an 1995 SM onliness. Al entity of the system were performed on a Kadhay Carenard Backso¹⁰, Twefter 6 and transition thus were final with threaded Technic cape spaipped with solver for connection to the instrumt are standard Technic cape spaipped with solver for connection to the instrumt are standard transition approximation of the instrumtion of response. Microwave backsories are performed using a Biologe Initiation²⁰⁰ Eight nitrarever ventorizes.

3.4.2 General Procedures

All experimental manipulations were carried out under an atmosphere of dry nitrogen using standard Schlerk techniques and glovebox. Solvents were dried using either an MBraun solvent purification system or distilled under nitrogen using the

spropriated drying agents. Dodecane was used as the internal standard and diethyl ether was used as the solvent for preparation of samples for GC-MS. The analyte concentration was 1×10^{4} g L⁻¹. CDCh with TMS was the solvent for ¹H NMR analysis.

3.4.2.1 Catalytic Method for Microwave assisted

Concourseling measures in a given bus, 19, g_1 , g_1 , g_1 , g_2 , g_1 , g_2

3.4.2.2 Catalytic Method at Room Temperature

Catalyst 1 (50 mg, 0.1 mmol, 5.0 mol% vs. alkyl halide) in CH₂Cl₂ (3 mL) was added to the reaction flack followed by removal of the solvent *in* vacuo. To the catalyst

we addet [0,0] is A_{ii} , and its a_{ij}^{ij} handles i_{ij}^{ij} handles. The any Glogant (4 mmo) was addet and efficit and the meaning mattern was under at most transports. Also 30 min, dedecate (2.8 mm/s as internal standard) was added and thus the restrict was specified with B(1) (a_{ij} , $2A_{ij}$, m_{ij} and the segmic plane was constant with $B_{ij}(0)$ (a_{ij}) and $B_{ij}(1)$ and dedecate with $B_{ij}(1)$ (a_{ij} , A_{ij} , m_{ij}) and the segmic plane by GC-MS and quantified using 11 MM and eff. C. SMR simples was prepared by cardid removal of solvert under some model double there there is a CCCA.

3.5 Conclusion

In summy, we have developed a new early prepared, airwahle, silvershow the properties $V^{(0)}$ complex that analyzes that $C(\psi)C(\psi)$ by both forming reactions between one) Gaipund reagons and addy halidae, including printary as well as cyclic or acyclic secondary addy tabelies. The system shows improved mentity for metrologimaniform proceedings, in an 2-4-denstybuly-magnetism benefits, and has dominante informations and it also be during while both beneryl bermides and abeliades. Lacky, microwave leating of dately either solutions to 100 °C gives improved conversion for neural alternation combinitions.

3.6 References

 Diederich, F., Stang, P. J. Metal-Catalyzed Cross-Coupling Reactions, 2nd ed. Wiley-VCH: Weinheim, 2004.

(2) Cardenas, D. J. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2003, 42, 384.

(3) Frisch, A. C.; Beller, M. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2005, 44, 674.

(4) Netherton, M. R.; Fu, G. C. Adv. Synth. Catal. 2004, 346, 1525.

(5) Kochi, J. K. Acc. Chem. Res. 1974, 7, 351.

(6) Czaplik, W. M.; Mayer, M.; Jacobi von Wangelin, A. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2019, 48, 607.

(7) Fürstner, A. Angese. Chem. Int. Ed. 2009, 48, 1364.

(8) Rudolph, A.; Lautens, M. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2009, 48, 2656.

(9) Sherry, B. D.; Fürstner, A. Acc. Chem. Res. 2008, 41, 1500.

(10) Fürstner, A.; Martin, R. Chem. Lett. 2005, 34, 624.

(11) Martin, R.; Fürstner, A. Angew, Chem. Int. Ed. 2004, 43, 3955.

(12) Zhou, J.; Fu, G. C. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2003, 125, 12527.

(13) Frisch, A. C.; Shaikh, N.; Zapf, A.; Beller, M. Angess. Chem. Int. Ed. 2002, 41, 4056.

(14) Kirchhoff, J. H.; Dai, C.; Fu, G. C. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2002, 41, 1945.

(15) Chowdhary, R. R.; Crane, A. K.; Fowler, C.; Kwong, P.; Kozak, C. M. Chow. Commun. 2008, 94.

(16) Bedford, R. B.; Huwe, M.; Wilkinson, M. C. Chem. Comman. 2009, 600.

(17) Nagano, T.; Hayashi, T. Org. Lett. 2004, 6, 1297.

- (18) Bedford, R. B.; Bruce, D. W.; Frost, R. M.; Goodby, J. W.; Hird, M. Chon. Commun. 2004, 2822.
- (19) Firstner, A.; Leitner, A.; Méndez, M.; Krause, H. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2002, 124, 13856.

(20) Fürstner, A.; Leitner, A. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2002, 41, 609.

(21) Fürstner, A.; Krause, H.; Lehmann, C. W. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2006, 45, 440.

- (22) Bedford, R. B.; Betham, M.; Bruce, D. W.; Danopoulos, A. A.; Frost, R. M.; Hird, M. J. Org. Chem. 2006, 71, 1104.
- (23) Bedford, R. B.; Betham, M.; Bruce, D. W.; Davis, S. A.; Frost, R. M.; Hird, M. Chen, Commun. 2006, 1398.

(24) Bedford, R. B.; Bruce, D. W.; Frost, R. M.; Hird, M. Class. Commun. 2005, 4161.

(25) Nakamura, M.; Matsuo, K.; Ito, S.; Nakamura, E. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2004, 126, 3686.

(26) Cahiez, G.; Habiak, V.; Duplais, C.; Moyeux, A. Angese. Chem. Int. Ed. 2007, 119, 4442.

(27) Cahiez, G.; Duplais, C.; Moveux, A. Org. Lett. 2007, 9, 3253.

(28) Bica, K.; Gaertner, P. Org. Lett. 2006, 8, 733.

(29) Caddick, S.; Fitzmaurice, R. Tetrahedron 2009, 65, 3325.

(30) Karne, C. O. Chem. Soc. Rev. 2008, 37, 1127.

(31) Appukkuttan, P.; Van Der Eycken, E. Eur. J. Org. Chem. 2008, 1133.

(32) Kappe, C. O. Annew, Chem. Int. Ed. 2004, 43, 6250.

(33) Straass, C. R. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2002, 41, 3589.

(34) Lidström, P.; Tiemev, J.; Wathev, B.; Westman, J. Tetrahedron 2001, 57, 9225.

(35) Walla, P.; Kappe, C. O. Chem. Commun. 2004, 10, 564.

(36) Hasan, K.; Fowler, C.; Kwong, P.; Crane, A. K.; Collins, J. L.; Kozak, C. M. Daltov Trans. 2008, 2991.

(37) Guérinot, A.; Reymond, S.; Cossy, J. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2007, 46, 6521.

- (18) Kleimark, J.; Hedström, A., Larsson, P.; Johansson, C.; Norrby, P. ChewCarChew 2009, 152.
- (39) Noda, D.; Sunada, Y.; Hatakeyama, T.; Nakamura, M.; Nagashima, H. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2009, 131, 6078.

(40) Saito B.: Fu G. C. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2007, 129, 9602.

(41) Son, S.; Fu, G. C. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2008, 130, 2756.

(42) Vechorkin, O.; Proust, V.; Hu, X. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2009, 131, 9756.

Chapter 4. Iron-catalyzed Double C-Cl Bond Cleavage in Dichloromethane and Chloroform

4.1 Introduction

Transitionment outprint CC conscion(ing is a powellt tool in organic synthesis and significant advances have been made using set) and alteryd halds and synthesis and an oby a for examples of the fail haldse. Investre, continue in you a schullings¹² and only a for examples of CC complysion using adji chalcular in particular have been reported.¹² How foreir reports railer of contribution regularing of dior applicablematianes with adjacementation submitting. Furtilately submetting is the Nicontribution of CDC, and CDC, landing to solve CC boost formation with additionation of CDC, and CDC, landing to solve the CC boost formation with additionation and the contrast.



Figure 4.1: Ni-catalyzed activation of CH-Ch and CHCh

Related Ni(II) aikyl complexes (Figure 4.2) can react slowly with CH₂Cl₂ (765 outiv), at 110 °C, but no organic evoluct was identified.²⁰



Figure 4.2: PNP pincer Ni(II) alkyl complexes

Furthermore, Ag-catalyzed insertion of a carbone into one C-Cl bond of CH₂Cl₂, CHCl₃ and CCl₄ forming a new C-C bond has also been reported (Figure 4.3).¹¹



Figure 4.3: Ag-catalyzed insertion of a carbene into one C-CI bond of CH2Cl2

The use of iron for catalytic C-C cross coupling is undergoing a remainsance and various incred-based processes have been described.^{11,13,13} Iron is cheap, non-twoic and environmentally benjm; therefore, the use of readily prepared iron catalysts that are easily hundled is extermely derinable. The ability of increditly safe to catalyste orosacoupling reactions of dichloro systems with Grigrand reagents was demonstrated by Tarabe and co-workers using gem-dichlorocyclopropanes as electrophilic partners.³³



Figure 4.4 Cross-coupling reactions of gem-dichlorocyclopropanes with methyl Grignard

reagent

Herein we report the first example of multiple cleavage of C-CI bonds with any/benzy[GrigmarFragmins] pFq[II]) under mild conditions. The products of the reroscoupling are diasylnethanes, but sometimes diarylethanes and other diarylatkanes are obtained as miner products.

4.2 Results & Discussion

4.2.1 General Procedure

Bailyong sampling was performed at alther room importants, et al. 100 ° clung interpret national descenting. An an antisoholispherindin jan en complex, (FrCQUON/Perferm²), (13, er FCA, was used initially as cathyos. Different iron with singularity and Gragand reagons were then semandi, and poor yielding methatisms were granical with meganetic at different tractions confidents. A cathyo handle in different transition configured reagons of FrE(T)-complex or FCA, was added in fields followed by CLCA. Gragand reagons of FrE(T)-complex or FCA, was added in fields followed by CLCA. The Gragand reagons of the field configured reagons that expendently was found to the Gragant reagons. The low ratios of Gragant Teagens to the approximation for all to Cl-querk reagons, that is was assembled for 30 finite at room megnetizes or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room megnetizes or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room megnetizes or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room strengtement or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room strengtement or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room strengtement or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room strengtement or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room strengtement or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room strengtement or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room strengtement or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room strengtement or 10 are 100°C. Cl-the schedule was assessed for 30 finite at room strengtement or 100°C.

coupled products (Scheme 4.1) were detected using GC-MS and ¹H NMR, with dodecane as the internal standard.



Scheme 4.1 General dichloromethane activation cross-coupling reactions

4.2.2 Catalyst Loading Study

The fields of cadage leading was investigated (Table 6.1), however, the first and of travens the way Googen request study does not be the discipative term found (Table 4.1, eartice 1 to 3). Is has here proposed that inno cadagend error coupling of Grigor argums, with descopidible possible by the firmation of robusile 1 as a the argument of the study of the study of the travel of robusile 1 as the travel process, which are promoted by the travel of robusile 1 as the travel process, which are promoted by the travel of the study of the balang commons more Grigand request, which is the limiting request since the shifty hadrie (disknowned) they proved in the presence.

The optimum loading of I was found to be 1.25 mol% versus Grigtand (Table 4.1, entry 1) giving RDs yield of cross-coupled product. Lowering the catalyst concentration to 0.5 mol% causes lower yields of diarytmethane (Table 1, entry 4). The absence of I gives no cross-coupled products (Table 4.1, entry 5). This optimization was not repeated for FeCLs.

Entry	Catalyst	Loading (mol%)	Grignard Reagent	Ratio	Product A	Product B
1*	1	1.25	o-tolyl	1:12.5	83	13
2*	-	2.5	-	-	72	7
3*	-	5	-	-	69	7
4	-	0.5	-	-	56	7
5			-	-	0	0

Table 4.6: Condition Optimization: Different [cat] loading

average of two runs. " Grignard reagent:CH₂Cl₂

4.2.3 Effects of Nucleophile to Electrophile Ratio, Addition Rate and

Temperature

Increasing the CH₂Cl₂-to Grigund ratio also lowers yield of diaryimethane (Table 42, cony 1). A 2.1 loading of Grigund to CH₂Cl₂ results in much lower yields of diaryimethane and no diaryichthane (CH₄ 4.2, cony 2). Show addition of Grigand rangest over a portiod of 20 minutes using a systeng name (Table 4.2, contex 3 and 4) docrones the visiof diaryimethane, und see conducting the results of 20 minutes 4.2, contex 5.

Entry	Catalyst	Leading (mol%)	Grignard Reagent	Ratio	Product A	Product B
1	1	1.25	o-tolyl	1:25	51	10
2		1.25	-	2:1	27	0
3^{ab}	-	1.25	-	1:12.5	56	10
4*3	-	2.5	-	1:12.5	58	14
5°	-	1.25	-	1:12.5	48	9

Table 4.7: Condition Optimizing: Nucleophile to Electrophile Ratio, Grignard Addition Rate and Temperature

⁸ average of two runs.^b 3.8 mmol Grignard reagent was added dropwise by syringe pump over 20 min.^c 0 °C.^c Grignard reagent.CH₂Cl₂

4.2.4 Variation of Iron Salt and Use of Additives

Internatingle, using firstly, pare losses yields of displortment (Fable 4.3, and 1). In the of distribut and (Fable 4.4, and 1). This and individuals was sub-served. The restation is the image's algorithm of the GG gamed respect. The GG gamed and phenyl GG gamed respect, highlight starting and disploration are sub-mortal in agreementative quark yield. Microwave-annials banding to 100 °C significantly messands the yield whenyl GG gamed respect mouth with GFGs (Figle 4.3, and 7.2). Less maintains mark to mits bandeed to be involved along the catching interploy of Fig-starbyted strengtheness theorem is bandeed and transform framework and the start of the starbyte gamed strength (Figle 4.3, and 7.2). Less maintains of the starbyted strength str

may first react with RMgX and form an anionic complex, then react with alkyl halides. These catalysts are effective for cross-coupling reactions. Thus, we screened different ligands, use a anine or a-carbon type ligands, but from the results we can find they do not give a remarkable increase in the yield of cross-coupling products (Table 4.3, entries 3-0).

The mane inputtion of locally and, copper, pathalium and other most and have also been shown to strongly influence the yields of reson-coupling reactions where also been also and a catalysm,¹⁶ therefore we should various other implet mutiation for their ability to reactions. The hapes transmitty, FCL; howes a paability to catalyzer enso-coupling (Table 5.4, core 7), whereas G-CAI and Callity, (Table 5.4, core 7) and 7 yields or alter protection. A or 8.1, Using Friedway, but without FMDA does not catalyze reson-coupling them phong Gragout regars reases with GL(G), builty that we should also the protection of the gragest regars with the GL(G), builty that we should also the protection of the gragest regars reases with GL(G), builty that we should be also the phong Gragout regars reases with Graguate reagest reast with CL(G). It is now howing had NA catalyst produce protect discurdance, are hower products.

Entry	Catalyst ^d	Grignard Reagent	Product	Product B
1	FeBr ₃	o-tolyl	56	0
2	FeCl ₃	phenyl	21/43*	25/27*
35	FeCI ₅ + TMEDA		17	25
43	FeCl ₃ + DMF	-	16	5
57	FeCI ₃ +1- Octene	-	33	17
6	FeCl ₃ + COD	-	25	21
7	FeC12	o-tolyl	12	10
8	CaCl	a-tolyl	0	0
9	CuBr ₂	-	0	0
10	Fe(acac) ₃	phenyl	trace	trace
11*	Fe(acac) ₃ + TMEDA	-	trace	trace
12	Fe(acac) ₅	a-tolyl	90	trace
13"	Fe(acac) ₅ + TMEDA		81	7
14	Pd(OAc) ₂	-	23	51
15	PdCl ₂		13	31

Table 4.8: Different Metal Salts and Use of Additives

^a microwave-assisted 100 °C, 10 min.^b 1 equiv. ligand to Grignard reagent.^c 10 mol% additives to Grignard reagent.^d 2.5 mol% cat. vs. Grignard.

4.2.5 Different Grignard Reagents

A range of Giuguel regimes were also screened. When p-toplic and photphagnetism branks schedures were added to schedure of 1 in CIC,5 it rend photphagnetism branks dis displanchmar were used to the control of the 4. Control is and 2, but in the case of photp (Giganet, 1,2-diplen; that we may product, abbit is poor yield. The presence of the orbin-only group may be by in the making of recay intermediate. Use of example, and private photphage the making of recay intermediate. Use of example, and private photphage the making of recay (Giganet Machine) and private photphage the schedure of the schedure of the SU(1) complexes where goad yield of coreas coupling products were theread using ally interschedure (Giganet Control and the schedure).

Enries 7.9 in table 4.4 show that various aninyl Grignards all gave prov yields. It is worth noting that when 4-methocyphenyl Grignard reagent was reacted with CH₂Cb₂ in addition to diarylmethane and diarylenhane, 1,3-diarylpropane and 1,4-diarylbritne were show detected by OCMS.

When the simple insus ski, PCL, was used as the precentity, n-tolyl Gingman rengest gare porora yields compared to 1, but a-solyl Gingmand gare hear yield of displementan bati. PLate 44, aniori (n). Disrosinghy, shus: 2.6.dm/stylphonyl Gingmand rengest was reacted with CHCCs, only product B, disrylshnaw was obtained. Microwave assisted hearing to 100⁴ C could be used to increase the cross-coupling molecularity (Table 4, one) 23.

Both electron-donating and withdrawing functional group-containing herey! Grigated reagents were reacted with CH₂Cl₂ and gave good yields of cross-coupling products (Table 4.4, entry 5, 6, 13). For 4-methoxybenzyl Grigated reagent, 1 is a more reflexive enalty than FeCl₂.

No encoupling predicts were detended when adyl and 2-methylophyllofogunet rengents were andread with CHCC, CHC and CA, ency 14, 11) winter FCR. However, 4-Hamphung Geganat regards match with CHCLs by their moders, 3-fold diarghambara and diarjobetture products. Historing to 100 °C discussed for global refree models, and caused all geging proget products that the solid solit for a specific solitor of the solitor of the solitor of the solitor of the anny 16, 3-bapting Geganat reagent only genes product A in moders, 3-fold (Faller 4.4, any 16). Specific global genes products that moders, 3-fold (Faller 4.4, any 16).
Eatry	catalyst	Grignard Reagent	Ratio	Product A	Product B
1	1	phenyl	1:12.5	11	22
2	-	p-tolyl	1:25	21	10
3	-	cyclohexyl	1:12.5	1.3	0.8
4	-	<i>n</i> -butyl	-	0	0
5	-	4-methoxybenzyl	-	71	9
6	-	4-flourobenzyl	-	60	0
7	FeCI ₃	2-methoxyphenyl	-	36	19
8	-	3-methoxyphenyl	-	18	18
9	-	4-methoxyphenyl	-	23	13
10	-	p-tolyl	1:25	14	10
11	-	o-tolyl	1:12.5	90	trace
12	-	2,6-dimethylphenyl	-	trace	16:40*
13		4-methoxylbenzyl	-	38	9
14	-	allyl	-	0	0
15	-	2-methylnaphthalyl	-	0	0
16	-	4-fluorophenyl	~	33/18*	10/7*
17	-	I-naphthyl	-	35	

Table 4.9: Effect of Grignard Reagent on Cross-coupling

a microwave-assisted, 100 °C, 10 min.

4.2.6 Results for CDCI₁ Activation

Using advantum as the chample, only 12-disbined 2-dispitation was an imposed on the star of the star of the star of the star of the Gapanel (Table 42-mints 1 and 2) whereas p-th/) Griganel regard again gain gave a lower spital (may 2). This must in pickin in similar to that observation (DeLS), advantum, that the databations may and with the bislower (Gapanel regard 2-dispitation) magnation theoremics, 12-dispitations was obtained as the product (may 4). All the yickin en qui proce.

Eatry	Catalyst	Grignard Reagent	Ratio	Product	Yield %
1	1	o-tolyl	1:12.5	aio	12
2	1	p-tolyl	1:25	Via	6
3	FeCl ₃	o-tolyl	1:12.5	aio	11
4	FeCl ₃	2,6-dimethylphenyl	1:12.5	q j	5

Table 4.10: Results for CDCI₃ Activation

4.3 Conclusions

The nearlysis is and anapping with the first part (spins), our canapter multiple CeI basel avaiations in CeICC, and CHC, the this is the first pert in the first. The effect of wapping the type of the Griganet magnets are associated products are associated on the second perturbation of the second magnetic perturbation wave obtained in high yields. The results are associated perturbation methods are used on the second perturbation of the second of the term of the second perturbation of the second perturbation of the second perturbation of the second perturbation and the Griganet enqueries in the basics society by perturbation of the second perturbation of the second perturbation of the second perturbation perturbation of the second perturba

The formation of diapolations in the convectingling of CL(C), with how despited regions regions (regions) and the formation of an architecture of the dispolations produces are been under apprecision (see the second second second second second second state artificated conditions, the matima of argoinship databat which on include the product dispolation (second second seco spon formation with Fe to generate Ar-CDCI[®] radical, which undergoes homocoupling to give the 1_2-dichtores1_2-dimylethane product. Further studies to extend the scope of this methodology and to gain detailed mechanistic insight are currently underway in our bisonere.

Another hypothesis that may be proposed is during the catalytic cycle a carbenintermediate (DLC) may cours since GCAMS can dottet 1.3 disrylpropose and 1.4disrylbrates as products (for example, Table 4.2, unity 2.7 able 4.4 ables 9 and 16). Moreover, in the presence of atrung heae, such as potentian *r-batecide*, organicitation or Grigunat regards, chordrow and appece a-H elimination and may hore one CP to from a carbinet CFIRM eAD.

Figure 4.5: Carbene formed from chloroform under basic conditions

Dihalomethanes also give similar reactions that form zinc or copper carbenoids. As shown in Figure 4.5.³⁶⁻⁴⁰



Figure 4.6: Dihalomethane insertion reactions via carbene

Thus, it is proposed that dickloromethane may react with the Golgared reagent and form a Mg carbenoid. This intermediate may react with the low exidation state iron intermediate, as shown in a hypothetical mechanistic model shown in Equation 1. This model may also explain why a redox catalyst such as Fe is important and why adding the General reasers to show hy all discuss the vide/Table 4.23.

$$|Fe|Ae_2 + n \left(H_2 C \lesssim \frac{|Mg|G|}{G}\right) \longrightarrow Ar_1 (GH_2)_{1/2} Ar$$
(Eq.1)

4.4 Experimental

4.4.1 Instrumentation

Diskl opens war mendel is CCC, in a Bindra Atance 500 spectrumtr. On charmingspity mass spectrum org (CCC Ma) subset was performed with using in Alphter Technologies 1990 CC system coupled to an Alphter Technologies 1990 CC system exclusion advance (MDS). The charmange binds is capacity of with electronic present county, hereitypithen and resolution ingineses, and an 1995 Astonator. Al endpoint resultion ware performed on a Kadhey Caronat Rescu¹⁰. Further 6 mit results in their ware final with threaded Technologue applying with values for technologue of magnetic Macrosceb and a spectrum and any size for the immediation of rengems. Microsceb endpoint and reading a technique listing leaf light microsce ventrices:

4.4.2 General Procedures

Dates observing study, all manipations were performed under an unsequence of do synapsite animyses) by sensus of studieds blocks or plots to testingies. Athylansa delapt letter and THF were stared over sizees and distilled from softant branephanese keyls under rilningen in the case of THF or particle by an MHInas Softwar MHIRadinsi Nyami in the case of distiphies. Regimes were parabased either from Aktieh, AM, and ere STRUM and used without further perficiency to quarity barget were analyzed by GCMS after being quarable within distant ElCicing to quarity barget performance of the size of the structure of the size of the si

4.4.2.1 Catalytic Method at Room Temperature

Catalog 14 (0.05 mm, 1.25 mm), 54 mm, 54 mm,

4.4.2.2 Catalytic Method for Microwave Heating

In a gate box 1.23 meV is 42×30^{-1} for $22 \times$

4.4.2.3 Catalytic Method at 0 °C

Catalyst 1 (0.05 mmol, 2.5 mol%s to Gejand reagest) or FeG1 (07% parity, 0.02 g. 5 mol%s vs. Gejand reagest) in C16(2); (3 mJ) was added to the reaction flask. The solution was stried at 0 ° 20 min, and the Gejand reagest was added slowly. The work-up procedure is the same as for the room temperature reaction.

4.5 References

 de Meijere, A.; Diederich, F. Eds. Metal-Catalyzed Cross-Coupling Reactions. 2nd ed.; Wiley-VCH: Weinheim, 2004.

(2) Frisch, A.C.; Beller, M. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2005, 44, 674.

(3) Netherton, M.R.; Fu, G.C. Adv. Synth. Catal. 2004, 346, 1525.

(4) Martin, R.; Fürstner, A. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2004, 43, 3955.

(5) Zhou, J.R.; Fu, G.C. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2003, 125, 12527.

(6) Frisch, A.C.; Shaikh, N.; Zapf, A.; Beller, M. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2002, 41, 4056.

(7) Kirchhoff, J.H.; Dai, C.Y.; Fu, G.C. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2002, 41, 1945.

(8) Terno, J.; Watanabe, H.; Bumi, A.; Kuniyasu, H.; Kambe, N. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2002, 124, 4222.

(9) Cvok, Z.; Vechorkin, O.; Harkins, S.B.; Scopelliti, R.; Hu, X. L. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2008, 130, 8156.

(10) Liang, L. C.; Chien, P. S.; Lin, J. M.; Huang, M. H.; Huang, Y.L.; Liao, J. H. Organizarenallics 2006, 25, 1399.

(11) Dias, H. V. R.; Browning, R. G.; Polach, S. A.; Diyabulanage, H. V. K.; Lovely, C. J. J. An. Chem. Soc. 2003, 125, 9270.

(12) Czaplik, W. M.; Mayer, M.; Cvengros, J.; von Wangelin, A. J. ChemSharChem 2009, 2, 396.

(13) Sherry, B. D.; Fürstner, A. Acc. Chem. Res. 2008, 41, 1500.

(14) Fürstner, A. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2019, 48, 1364.

(15) Czaplik, W.M.; Mayer, M.; von Wangelin, A.J. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2009, 48, 607.

(16) Fürstner, A.; Martin, R.; Krause, H.; Seidel, G.; Goddard, R.; Lehmann, C.W. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2008, 130, 8775.

(17) Fürstner, A.; Martin, R. Chem. Lett. 2005, 34, 624.

(18) Fürstner, A.; Krause, H.; Lehmann, C.W. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2006, 45, 440.

(19) Scheiper, B.; Bonnekessel, M.; Krause, H.; Filrstner, A. J. Org. Chem. 2004, 69, 1041.

(20) Seidel, G.; Laurich, D.; Fürstner, A. J. Org. Chem. 2004, 69, 3950.

(21) Neumann, S.M.; Kochi, J.K. J. Org. Chem. 1975, 40, 599.

(22) Tamura, M.; Kochi, J. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 1971, 93, 1487.

(23) Tamura, M.; Kochi, J. Sombesis 1971, 303.

 Nakamura, M.; Matsuo, K.; Ito, S.; Nakamura, B. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2004, 126, 3686.
 Bedford, R.B.; Bruce, D.W.; Frost, R.M.; Goodby, J.W.; Hinl, M. Chem. Commun. 2004, 2822.

(26) Bedford, R.B.; Brace, D.W.; Frost, R.M.; Hird, M. Chem. Commun. 2005, 4161.

(27) Bedford, R.B.; Betham, M.; Brace, D.W.; Danopoulos, A.A.; Frost, R.M.; Hird, M. J. Org. Chem. 2006, 77, 1104.

(28) Nagano, T.; Hayashi, T. Org. Lett. 2004, 6, 1297.

(29) Bica, K.; Gaertner, P. Org. Lett. 2006, 8, 733.

(30) Cahiez, G.; Habiak, V.; Duplais, C.; Moyeux, A. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2007, 46, 4364.

(31) Cahiez, G.; Chaboche, C.; Mahuteau-Betzer, F.; Ahr, M. Org. Lett. 2005, 7, 1943.

(32) Chowdhury, R.R.; Crane, A.K.; Fowler, C.; Kwong, P.; Kozak, C.M. Chem. Commun. 2008, 94.

(33) Nishii, Y.; Wakasugi, K.; Tanabe, Y. Sunlett. 1998, 67.

(34) Terao, J.; Kambe, N. Acc. Chem. Res. 2008, 41, 1545.

(35) Bedford, R.B.; Nakamara, M.; Gower, N.J.; Haddow, M.F.; Hall, M.A.; Hawe, M.; Hashimeto, T.; Okopie, R.A., Tetrahudwar Lett. 2009, 50, 6110.

(36) Yvex, J. Molecular Orbitals of Transition Metal Complexes. Oxford, New York, 2005 (p 275.

(17) Grasse, P. B.; Brauer, B. E.; Zupancic, J. J.; Kaufmann, K. J.; Schuster, G. B. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 1983, 105, 6833.

(38) Nemirowski, A.; Schreiner, P. J. Org. Chem. 2007, 72, 9533.

(39) Skell, P. S.; Woodworth, R. C. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 1956, 78,4496.

(40) Von E. Doering, W.; Hoffmann, A. K. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 1954, 76,6162.

Chapter 5. Future Work

5.1 Introduction

Iron-catalyzed cross-coupling reactions have matured to an advanced stage and show as vessatile range of organic synthesis rootes.⁴ Although iron is the most abundant meal and iron subs are quite cheap, researchers have started working in depth in this area very recently. This chapter deals with the discussion of some current tupics related to iron catalysis.

5.2 Further Studies of Iron-Catalyzed CH₂Cl₂ Activation Reactions

As the loss catajonel CHCG, reactions does interrupting results, findher optimization of the maximic catastation to strain home yields of the coupled protects. The coupled protects characteristic catastation of the strain of catastatic system for a variety of CoCgund reagons, inderesting regarding the mechanism of into-entryped c concourses protections may be resulted through type affirmst iron table. Eighth and supresentations.

Iron salts (or complexes), such as Fr(dmt); (dmt = dibexxy/textidd) or the iron(-fl) complex [Li/modul][Fr(C/Li/h] should be investigated because they also efficient califyie ability for cores-coupling reactions of gran disklosm;c)teprepture with modul) Griganal reagen² and addyation of any Grigand reagens¹, respectively. Some disk islash of low-solutie inon complexes may be also work investigating¹. This work

may illustrate new vistas in iron catalysis, which is currently a "hot area" of research due to the cheap, non-toxic nature of iron and its diverse applications.

5.3 Iron-catalyzed Sonogashira C-C cross-coupling reaction

And shapes are very imperter compounds in chemical industry and phramacutants¹¹.¹² The Songashita-Haghare search tas here howns as the resoingelievest and effection models to fine $O(\phi^2)(x)$ books. Although transitionneard finer Songashita-Haghare searches here here previsedy reported, they require very light models and the phenese end if spin end a copper or enables. However, densities will never cause to find a cheaper and son-trule cardyic system that requires mild modifiers, the inverse is find and a sequely and solver. However, densities will never cause to find a cheaper and non-trule cardyic system that requires mild modifiers, the inverse is in spin stated as a valuable alternative candidates used is Songabire courge memoirs.

Several outstanding reports have been published already in the field of inncatilyzed Sonogashin reactions of any isolides with terminal allyzes. One is from Born and co-wetters, who found the simple inno salt, Field, as the combined with the non-toxic and charp amine, mota, in the presence of C₂(C₂), when combined with the non-toxic terminal altyses efficiently (Figure 5.1).⁽⁶⁾



Scheme 5.1: Iron-catalyzed Sonogashira reactions by Bolm et al.

Another report is then Vapil et al., who developed an efficient enably/c system using Federachy, and Call as enablys (Figure 5.2), No tenderspensive Equal is negative. 100 MOR, DBOS OF OWER serve used an assolution may also hore piped the rise of ligand.¹¹ Furthermore, nictarwave heating can be employed efficiently to shorten the reaction inter sharply, while European be high joild, Mass et al. also neprode a similar heating to speet Net Systems¹¹. The Hones the Program the hore CACO, with KPAD, her also achieved excellent yields (parts 99%), it should be result that Vargel showed that the unique enablest transitive of Erdicachy, compared to other inter using, such like FeCO, and FeCO.



Scheme 5.2: Iron-catalyzed Sonogashira reactions by Vogel et al.

As previously metritored, the iron complex is an efficient catalys for use in Kunsala cross-coupling reactions, therefore, they may be suited for the Sorogan in a reaction. More making more from the role of the shore and the choice of bane. Also microwave bearing may be a valuable tool for shortening the reaction time and increasing the yields. Moreover, for some sunctive substitute, such as C+Cl tood activation, the more-handled antice-behaviourity reactivity.

5.4 C-H Functionalization

Direct C2 and C4 emutation book formation via C-11 book advances in a longer of interest to advance bases can be interesting over different attract. However, this trak is primarily advanced from gas for any end or quenter transition metals used as $F_{\rm L}$ for a diff $r_{\rm L}$ and $r_{\rm L}$ are the rest in the re achieved by others. However, the development of efficient iron-catalyzed C-C functionalization is still limited to activated substrates, such as those containing heteroatoms or directing groups.

Nakamar et di devlepda in ino-andipid CC hodi demigi raticito through inital CH bodi advados.¹⁰ The evently synthesis transformation formally represent the tacologibili displasment of the ordebolgeness and by an arybics moleculus. Presentedness is used as ligand. 1.2-dishters2-methylorepare maybe axis as as destron acceptor. It as also soste that TMEDA was indigenable additive for obtaining devide blob.



Scheme 5.3: Iron-catalyzed C-H activation by Nakamura et al.

Shi and co-workers developed a novel inter-atalyzed $((\phi^2), C(\phi^2))$ houd-doming reaction between alcohols and cleffins through direct $C(\phi)$ -14 functionalization, and various substrates proved to be well interacted.¹⁷ This protocol provides an economical at target of efficient access to structurality diverse secondary alcohols.



Scheme 5.4: Iron-catalyzed C-H activation by Shi et al.

Another novel and useful method to construct C-C bonds via iron-catalyzed direct benzylic C-H transformations with functionalized olefins was reported.¹⁰ DTBP acts as an oxidant and provides a significant effect on the catalytic cycle.



Scheme 5.5: Iron-catalyzed C-H activation by Shi et al.

As there have been some excellent reports that showed C-II activation of unctivated substrates is possible,^{11,21} it is of possibilities that it click variety of hydrocarbon can be used as feedbacks for the synthesis of value added compounds. Iron catalysts will understadly become as indipensable such for sustainable syntheses of complex nucleols.

5.5 References

- Plietker, B. Irow catalysis in organic chemistry: reactions and applications; Wiley-VCH: Weinheim, 2008.
- (2) Nishii, Y.; Wakasugi, K.; Tanabe, Y. Sunlett 1998, 67.

(3) Martin, R.; Fürstner, A. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2004, 43, 3955.

(4) Färstner, A.; Martin, R.; Krause, H.; Seidel, G.; Goddard, R.; Lehmann, C. W. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2018, 130, 8773.

(5) Chinchilla, R.; Najera, C. Chem. Rev. 2007, 107, 874.

(6) Li, C. C.; Xie, Z. X.; Zhang, Y. D.; Chen, J. H.; Yang, Z. J. Org. Chem. 2003, 68, 8500.

(7) Hiroya, K.; Matsumoto, S.; Sakamoto, T. Org. Lett. 2004, 6, 2953.

(8) Nicolaou, K. C.; Bulzer, P. G.; Sarlah, D. Annew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2005, 44, 4442.

(9) Odlo, K.; Klaveness, J.; Rongved, P.; Hansen, T. V. Tetrahedron Lett. 2006, 47, 1101.

(10) Carril, M.; Correa, A.; Bolm, C. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2008, 47, 4862.

(11) Rao Volla, C. M.; Vogel, P. Tetrahedrow Lett. 2008, 49, 5961.

(12) Mao, J.; Xie, G.; Wu, M.; Guo, J.; E, S. Adv. Synth. Catal. 2008, 350, 2477.

(13) Godula, K.; Sames, D. Science 2006, 312, 67.

(14) Bergman, R. G. Nature 2007, 446, 391.

(15) Davies, H. M. L.; Manning, J. R. Nature 2008, 451, 417.

- (16) Norinder, J.; Matsumoto, A.; Yoshikai, N.; Nakamura, E. J. Am. Chem. Soc. 2018, 130, 5858.
- (17) Zhang, S.; Tu, Y.; Fan, C.; Zhang, F.; Shi, L. Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. 2009, 48, 8761.
- (18) Song, C. X.; Cai, G. X.; Farrell, T. R.; Jiang, Z. P.; Li, H.; Gan, L. B.; Shi, Z. J. Chem. Commun. 2009, 6002.

Appendix







Figure A2: ¹H NMR spectrum for L2.



Figure A3: ¹H NMR spectrum for L3.



Figure A4: ¹H NMR spectrum for L4.



Figure A5: ¹H NMR spectrum for L6.



Figure A6:: ¹H NMR spectrum for L7.











Figure A9: MALDI-TOF spectrum for {FeCI[O2N]BaBaPr }(4)







Figure A11: MALDI-TOF spectrum for {FeCI[O2N]FEP}2(7)



Figure A12: Molecular structure (ORTEP) and complete atom labeling

of {FeCl[O2N]^{BaMonPr}}2. Ellipsoids shown at 50% probability.

Hydrogen atoms omitted for clarity.

Table A1: Bond lengths (Å) for {FeCI[O2N] BaMesPr};

atom	atom	distance	atom	atom	distance
Fe(1)	CI(I)	2.2976(12)	Fe(1)	C(1) ¹⁾	2.4912(14)
Fe(1)	O(1)	1.818(2)	Fe(1)	O(2)	1.817(2)
Fe(1)	N(1)	2.183(3)	O(1)	C(1)	1.336(4)
0(2)	C(27)	1,350(4)	N(1)	C(12)	1.489(5)
N(1)	C(13)	1.484(5)	N(1)	C(16)	1.487(4)
C(1)	C(2)	1.402(5)	C(1)	C(11)	1.390(6)
C(2)	C(3)	1.534(6)	C(2)	C(7)	1.381(6)
C(3)	C(4)	1,516(6)	C(3)	C(5)	1.529(7)

C(3)	C(6)	1.527(6)	C(7)	C(8)	1.382(7)
C(8)	C(9)	1.498(6)	C(8)	C(10)	1.374(5)
C(10)	C(11)	1.385(5)	C(11)	C(12)	1.480(5)
C(13)	C(14)	1.516(8)	C(14)	C(15)	1.515(9)
C(16)	C(17)	1.497(6)	C(17)	C(18)	1.393(5)
C(17)	C(27)	1.394(7)	C(18)	C(19)	1.373(7)
C(19)	C(20)	1.520(6)	C(19)	C(21)	1.371(8)
C(21)	C(22)	1.409(6)	C(22)	C(23)	1.515(8)
C(22)	C(27)	1.396(6)	C(23)	C(24)	1.528(6)
C(23)	C(25)	1.531(6)	C(23)	C(26)	1.534(7)

Symmetry Operators: (1) -x + 1, -y + 1, -z + 1

Table A2: Bond angles (*) for {FeCl[O₂N]^{BaMosPr}}₂

atorn	adoren	atom	angle	atom	atom	atom	angle
CI(1)	Fc(1)	CI(1) ⁽³⁾	87.36(4)	Cl(1)	Fe(1)	O(1)	122.07(9)
CI(1)	Fc(1)	O(2)	113.18(9)	Cl(1)	Fe(1)	N(1)	93.92(9)
CI(1) ¹⁾	Fe(1)	O(1)	89.41(11)	Cl(1) ¹⁾	Fe(1)	O(2)	89.86(11)
CI(1) ⁽³⁾	Fe(1)	N(I)	178.32(9)	O(1)	Fe(1)	O(2)	124.63(13)
O(1)	Fe(1)	N(1)	89.00(13)	O(2)	Fe(1)	N(1)	90.63(13)
Fe(1)	CI(1)	Fe(1) ¹⁾	92.64(5)	Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	135.5(3)
Fe(1)	O(2)	C(27)	134.6(2)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(12)	105.3(2)
Fe(1)	N(1)	C(13)	111.0(2)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(16)	106.3(2)
C(12)	N(1)	C(13)	112.7(3)	C(12)	N(1)	C(16)	111.3(2)
C(13)	N(1)	C(16)	110.0(3)	O(1)	C(1)	C(2)	120.3(4)
0(1)	C(1)	C(11)	118.5(3)	C(2)	C(1)	C(11)	121.2(3)
C(I)	C(2)	C(3)	120.8(3)	C(1)	C(2)	C(7)	116.8(4)
C(3)	C(2)	C(7)	122.5(3)	C(2)	C(3)	C(4)	108.8(4)
C(2)	C(3)	C(5)	109.7(3)	C(2)	C(3)	C(6)	111.2(3)
C(4)	C(3)	C(5)	111.4(4)	C(4)	C(3)	C(6)	108.1(3)
C(5)	C(3)	C(6)	107,6(4)	C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	123.4(3)
C(7)	C(8)	C(9)	120.2(3)	C(7)	C(8)	C(10)	118.2(3)
C(9)	C(8)	C(10)	121.6(4)	C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	121.2(4)
C(1)	C(11)	C(10)	119.3(3)	C(1)	C(11)	C(12)	120.2(3)
C(10)	C(11)	C(12)	120.5(4)	N(1)	C(12)	C(11)	112.8(2)
N(1)	C(13)	C(14)	115.5(3)	C(13)	C(14)	C(15)	110.3(4)
N(1)	C(16)	C(17)	114.4(4)	C(16)	C(17)	C(18)	120.5(4)
C(16)	C(17)	C(27)	120.5(3)	C(18)	C(17)	C(27)	119.0(4)
C(17)	C(18)	C(19)	120.7(5)	C(18)	C(19)	C(20)	119.8(5)
C(18)	C(19)	C(21)	119.3(4)	C(20)	C(19)	C(21)	120.9(4)
C(19)	C(21)	C(22)	123.0(4)	C(21)	C(22)	C(23)	122.4(4)
C(21)	C(22)	C(27)	116.0(4)	C(23)	C(22)	C(27)	121.5(3)
C(22)	C(23)	C(24)	110.3(4)		C(23)	C(25)	112.4(4)

C(22)	C(23)	C(26)	109.9(4)	C(24)	C(23)	C(25)	107.3(3)
C(24)	C(23)	C(26)	109.6(4)	C(25)	C(23)	C(26)	107.2(4)
0(2)	C(27)	C(17)	117.8(3)	O(2)	C(27)	C(22)	120.1(4)
C(17)	C(27)	C(22)	122.1(3)				

Symmetry Operators: (1) -x + 1, -y + 1, -z + 1

Table A3: Torsion angles (*) {FeCI[O2N] BaMmPr}2

atom1	atom2	atom3	atom4	angle	atom 1	atom2	atom3	atom4	angle
Cl(1)	Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	85.6(3)	O(1)	Fe(1)	CI(1)	Fe(1) ¹⁾	87.64(14)
CI(1)	Fe(1)	O(2)	C(27)	-110.0(3)	O(2)	Fc(1)	Cl(1)	Fe(1)10	-88.72(12)
CI(I)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(12)	-159.64(18)	CI(1)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(13)	-37.4(2)
ciú	Fe(1)	N(I)	C(16)	82,1(2)	N(I)	Fe(1)	CI(1)	Fe(1) ¹⁾	178.92(7)
C(I)	Fe(1)	0(1)	C(1)	172.1(3)	O(1)	Fc(1)	CI(1) ¹¹	Fe(1)10	-122.15(9)
CI(I)	Fe(1)	O(2)	C(27)	163.0(4)	O(2)	Fe(I)	CI(1) ¹	Fe(1)10	113.21(9)
CI(I) ¹	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(12)	-20(2)	Cl(1) ¹	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(13)	102(2)
C(I)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(16)	-138(2)	N(1)	Fc(1)	Cl(1) ¹¹	Fe(1) ¹⁰	-140(2)
0(1)	Fe(1)	0(2)	C(27)	73.8(4)	O(2)	Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	-98.5(3)
0(1)	Fe(1)	N(I)	C(12)	-37.6(2)	O(1)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(13)	84.7(2)
0(1)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(16)	-155.8(2)	N(1)	Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	-8.4(3)
O(2)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(12)	87.1(2)	O(2)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(13)	-150.7(2)
O(2)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(16)	-31.2(2)	N(1)	Fe(1)	O(2)	C(27)	-15.4(4)
Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	C(2)	-149.3(3)	Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	C(11)	29.2(5)
Fe(1)	O(2)	C(27)	C(17)	32.7(5)	Fe(1)	O(2)	C(27)	C(22)	-146.4(3)
Fe(1)	N(1)	C(12)	C(11)	69,7(4)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(13)	C(14)	-171.4(3)
Fe(1)	N(1)	C(16)	C(17)	65.2(3)	C(12)	N(1)	C(13)	C(14)	-53.6(4)
C(13)	N(I)	C(12)	CIII	-51.4(5)	C(12)	N(1)	C(16)	C(17)	-49.0(5)
C(16)	N(1)	C(12)	C(11)	-175.5(4)	C(13)	N(1)	C(16)	C(17)	-174.6(3)
C(16)	N(1)	C(13)	C(14)	71.2(4)	O(1)	C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	0.7(6)
0(1)	C(1)	C(2)	C(7)	179.6(3)	O(1)	C(1)	C(11)	C(10)	-179.4(3)
0(1)	C(1)	CIIII	C(12)	1.3(6)	C(2)	C(1)	C(11)	C(10)	-0.9(6)
C(2)	C(1)	C(11)	C(12)	179.8(3)	C(11)	C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	-177.7(4)
C(11)	C(1)	C(2)	C(7)	1.2(6)	C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	C(4)	62.7(5)
C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	C(5)	-59.4(5)	C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	C(6)	-178.3(4)
C(1)	C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	-1.0(6)	C(3)	C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	177.9(4)
C(7)	C(2)	C(3)	C(4)	-116.1(4)	C(7)	C(2)	C(3)	C(5)	121.8(4)
C(7)	C(2)	C(3)	C(6)	2.9(6)	C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	C(9)	-177.9(4)
C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	C(10)	0.6(6)	C(7)	C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	-0.2(5)
C(9)	C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	178.2(4)	C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	C(1)	0.4(6)
C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	C(12)	179.7(4)	C(1)	C(11)	C(12)	N(1)	-55.6(5)
C(10)	C(11)	C(12)	N(1)	125.1(4)	N(I)	C(13)	C(14)	C(15)	-174.9(4)
N(1)	C(16)	C(17)	C(18)	126.3(4)	N(I)	C(16)	C(17)	C(27)	-56.2(5)
C(16)	C(17)	C(18)	C(19)	178.0(4)	C(16)	C(17)	C(27)	O(2)	2.7(5)

C(16)	C(17)	C(27)	C(22)	-178.2(3)	C(18)	C(17)	C(27)	O(2)	-179.7(3)
C(18)	C(17)	C(27)	C(22)	-0.6(6)	C(27)	C(17)	C(18)	C(19)	0.5(6)
C(17)	C(18)	C(19)	C(20)	179.1(4)	C(17)	C(18)	C(19)	C(21)	0.3(6)
C(18)	C(19)	C(21)	C(22)	-0.8(7)	C(20)	C(19)	C(21)	C(22)	-179.7(4)
C(19)	C(21)	C(22)	C(23)	179.6(4)	C(19)	C(21)	C(22)	C(27)	0.7(6)
C(21)	C(22)	C(23)	C(24)	122.1(4)	C(21)	C(22)	C(23)	C(25)	2.4(5)
C(21)	C(22)	C(23)	C(26)	-116.9(4)	C(21)	C(22)	C(27)	O(2)	179.2(3)
C(21)	C(22)	C(27)	C(17)	0.1(4)	C(23)	C(22)	C(27)	O(2)	0.2(5)
C(23)	C(22)	C(27)	C(17)	-178.9(3)	C(27)	C(22)	C(23)	C(24)	-59.0(5)
C(27)	C(22)	C(23)	C(25)	-178.7(3)	C(27)	C(22)	C(23)	C(26)	62.0(5)

Symmetry Operators: (1) -x + 1, -y + 1, -z + 1

The sign is positive if when looking from atom 2 to atom 3 a clock-wise motion of atom 1 would superimpose it on atom 4.



Figure A13: Molecular structure (ORTEP) and complete atom labeling of [FeCI](Q:N)^[labAth]). Ellipsoids shown at 50% probability. Hydrogen atoms omitted for clarify.

Table A4: Bond lengths (Å) for {FeCl[O2N]BaMeB9}2

asom	atom	distance	atom	atom	distance

Ec(1)	CI(1)	2.3290(4)	Fc(1)	Cl(2)	2.5025(3)
Fe(1)	O(1)	1.8276(13)	Fe(1)	O(2)	1.8222(12)
Fe(1)	N(1)	2,1819(10)	Fe(2)	Cl(1)	2.5023(3)
Fe(2)	CI(2)	2.3305(5)	Fc(2)	O(3)	1.8228(13)
Fe(2)	0(4)	1.8282(13)	Fc(2)	N(2)	2,1771(10)
O(1)	C(1)	1.344(2)	O(2)	C(31)	1.3499(17)
0(3)	C(32)	1.346(2)	O(4)	C(62)	1.3489(17)
N(I)	C(12)	1.495(2)	N(1)	C(13)	1.513(2)
N(1)	C(20)	1,497(2)	N(2)	C(43)	1.502(2)
N(2)	C(44)	1.506(2)	N(2)	C(51)	1.494(2)
C(I)	C(2)	1.414(2)	C(1)	C(11)	1.400(2)
C(2)	C(3)	1.540(2)	C(2)	C(7)	1.394(2)
C(3)	C(4)	1.538(3)	C(3)	C(5)	1.531(2)
C(3)	C(6)	1.533(3)	C(7)	C(8)	1.393(2)
C(8)	C(9)	1.512(2)	C(8)	C(10)	1.394(2)
C(10)	C(11)	1.396(2)	C(11)	C(12)	1.516(2)
C(13)	C(14)	1.5123(18)	C(14)	C(15)	1.391(2)
C(14)	C(19)	1.392(2)	C(15)	C(16)	1.388(2)
C(16)	C(17)	1.377(2)	C(17)	C(18)	1.377(3)
C(18)	C(19)	1.386(2)	C(20)	C(21)	1.507(2)
C(21)	C(22)	1.3975(19)	C(21)	C(31)	1.399(2)
C(22)	C(23)	1.384(2)	C(23)	C(24)	1.509(2)
C(23)	C(25)	1.391(2)	C(25)	C(26)	1.396(2)
C(26)	C(27)	1.534(2)	C(26)	C(31)	1.413(2)
C(27)	C(28)	1.535(3)	C(27)	C(29)	1.544(2)
C(27)	C(30)	1.538(2)	C(32)	C(33)	1.413(2)
C(32)	C(42)	1.4052(19)	C(33)	C(34)	1.537(2)
C(33)	C(38)	1.398(2)	C(34)	C(35)	1.534(2)
C(34)	C(36)	1.534(2)	C(34)	C(37)	1.532(3)
C(38)	C(39)	1.394(2)	C(39)	C(40)	1.515(2)
C(39)	C(41)	1.390(2)	C(41)	C(42)	1.395(2)
C(42)	C(43)	1.513(2)	C(44)	C(45)	1.5141(18)
C(45)	C(46)	1.388(2)	C(45)	C(50)	1.386(2)
C(46)	C(47)	1.382(2)	C(47)	C(48)	1.379(3)
C(48)	C(49)	1.372(3)	C(49)	C(50)	1.387(2)
C(51)	C(52)	1.506(2)	C(52)	C(53)	1.3942(19)
C(52)	C(62)	1.404(2)	C(53)	C(54)	1.382(2)
C(54)	C(55)	1.508(2)	C(54)	C(56)	1.392(2)
C(56)	C(57)	1.389(2)	C(57)	C(58)	1.534(2)
C(57)	C(62)	1.418(2)	C(58)	C(59)	1.533(3)
C(58)	C(60)	1.535(2)	C(58)	C(61)	1.532(2)

Table A5: Bond angles (*) for {FeCl[O2N]BaMd8*}2

atom	atom	atom	angle	atom	atom	atoman	glo
CED	Fe(1)	CI(2)	84,341(14)	Cl(1)	Fe(1)	0(1)11	4.96(4)
CI(I)	Fe(1)	O(2)	125.52(4)	Cl(1)	Fe(1)	N(1) 93	.59(3)
Cl(2)	Fe(1)	O(1)	\$8.91(3)	Cl(2)	Fe(1)	O(2) 92	.60(3)
Cl(2)	Fe(1)	N(1)	177.28(3)	O(1)	Fe(1)	O(2) 11	9.36(5)
0(1)	Fe(1)	N(1)	90.38(4)	O(2)	Fe(1)	N(1) 90	.03(4)
Cl(1)	Fe(2)	CI(2)	\$4.316(14)	Cl(1)	Fe(2)	O(3) 91	.63(3)
CKD	Fe(2)	O(4)	\$9.53(3)	Cl(1)	Fe(2)	N(2) 17	7.64(4)
CK2)	Fe(2)	O(3)	109.27(4)	Cl(2)	Fe(2)	O(4) 12	9.40(4)
Cl(2)	Fe(2)	N(2)	94.23(3)	O(3)	Fe(2)	O(4) 12	1.10(6)
O(3)	Fe(2)	N(2)	90.60(5)	O(4)	Fe(2)	N(2) 89	.97(4)
Fe(I)	CI(1)	Fe(2)	95.384(14)	Fe(1)	Cl(2)	Fc(2)	95.341(15)
Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	134.96(8)	Fe(1)	O(2)	C(31)	136.27(9)
Fe(2)	O(3)	C(32)	134.55(8)	Fe(2)	O(4)	C(62)	136.88(10)
Ee(1)	N(I)	C(12)	106.53(7)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(13)	110.51(8)
Fe(1)	N(I)	C(20)	106.63(8)	C(12)	N(1)	C(13)	110.29(12)
C(12)	N(1)	C(20)	110.37(13)	C(13)	N(1)	C(20)	112.28(11)
Fe(2)	N(2)	C(43)	106.94(7)	Fe(2)	N(2)	C(44)	108.61(9)
Fe(2)	N(2)	C(51)	107.00(8)	C(43)	N(2)	C(44)	111.34(12)
C(43)	N(2)	C(51)	109.95(13)	C(44)	N(2)	C(51)	112.72(11)
0(1)	C(1)	C(2)	119.87(12)	0(1)	C(1)	C(11)	118.82(15)
C(2)	C(1)	C(11)	121.31(14)	C(1)	C(2)	C(3) 12	1.34(15)
C(I)	C(2)	C(7)	116.34(14)	C(3)	C(2)	C(7) 12	2.30(17)
C(2)	C(3)	C(4)	109.38(14)	C(2)	C(3)	C(5) 11	1.29(15)
C(2)	C(3)	C(6)	111.36(15)	C(4)	C(3)	C(5) 10	9.28(15)
C(4)	C(3)	C(6)	107.02(17)	C(5)	C(3)	C(6) 10	8.39(16)
C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	123.66(17)	C(7)	C(8)	C(9) 12	0.61(17)
C(7)	C(8)	C(10)	118.06(16)	C(9)	C(8)	C(10)	121.32(14)
C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	120.73(13)	C(1)	C(11)	C(10)	119.43(16)
C(1)	C(11)	C(12)	121.01(14)	C(10)	C(11)	C(12)	119.53(13)
N(1)	C(12)	C(11)	114.96(14)	N(1)	C(13)	C(14)	116.95(13)
C(13)	C(14)	C(15)	120.49(14)	C(13)	C(14)	C(19)	120.77(15)
C(15)	C(14)	C(19)	118.60(13)	C(14)	C(15)	C(16)	120.34(16)
C(15)	C(16)	C(17)	120.36(18)	C(16)	C(17)	C(18)	119.85(14)
C(17)	C(18)	C(19)	120.15(17)	C(14)	C(19)	C(18)	120.64(17)
N(1)	C(20)	C(21)	114.41(14)	C(20)	C(21)	C(22)	119,49(13)
C(20)	C(21)	C(31)	121.20(12)	C(22)	C(21)	C(31)	119.27(16)
C(21)	C(22)	C(23)	121.36(13)	C(22)	C(23)	C(24)	121.18(14)
C(22)	C(23)	C(25)	117.94(13)	C(24)	C(23)	C(25)	120.88(17)
C(23)	C(25)	C(26)	123.55(17)	C(25)	C(26)	C(27)	122.18(16)
C(25)	C(26)	C(31)	116.71(13)	C(27)	C(26)	C(31)	121.05(13)
C(26)	C(27)	C(28)	111.64(13)	C(26)	C(27)	C(29)	108.50(16)
C(26)	C(27)	C(30)	111.50(15)	C(28)	C(27)	C(29)	108.03(17)
-------	-------	-------	------------	-------	-------	-------	------------
C(28)	C(27)	C(30)	107.41(18)	C(29)	C(27)	C(30)	109.71(14)
0(2)	COD	C(21)	119.07(15)	O(2)	C(31)	C(26)	119.86(12)
C(21)	C(31)	C(26)	121.06(13)	0(3)	C(32)	C(33)	119.63(12)
0(3)	C(32)	C(42)	118.82(16)	C(33)	C(32)	C(42)	121.54(15)
C(32)	C(13)	C(34)	121.01(15)	C(32)	C(33)	C(38)	116.51(13)
C(34)	C(33)	C(38)	122.44(16)	C(33)	C(34)	C(35)	109.92(13)
C(33)	C(34)	C(36)	110.80(15)	C(33)	C(34)	C(37)	111.25(15)
C(35)	C(14)	C(36)	109.35(15)	C(35)	C(34)	C(37)	107.37(17)
C(36)	C(34)	C(37)	108.06(15)	C(33)	C(38)	C(39)	123.34(17)
C(38)	C(39)	C(40)	120.15(17)	C(38)	C(39)	C(41)	118.27(16)
C(40)	C(19)	C(41)	121.57(13)	C(39)	C(41)	C(42)	121.20(13)
C(32)	C(42)	C(41)	118.97(16)	C(32)	C(42)	C(43)	120.66(15)
C(41)	C(42)	C(43)	120.36(12)	N(2)	C(43)	C(42)	114.41(14)
N(2)	C(44)	C(45)	118,72(14)	C(44)	C(45)	C(46)	120.48(14)
C(44)	C(45)	C(50)	120.81(15)	C(46)	C(45)	C(50)	118.21(14)
C(45)	C(46)	C(47)	120.45(19)	C(46)	C(47)	C(48)	120.7(2)
C(47)	C(48)	C(49)	119.60(17)	C(48)	C(49)	C(50)	119.85(18)
C(45)	C(50)	C(49)	121.19(19)	N(2)	C(51)	C(52)	115.18(14)
C(51)	C(52)	C(53)	119.70(13)	C(51)	C(52)	C(62)	121.08(12)
C(53)	C(52)	C(62)	119.13(16)	C(52)	C(53)	C(54)	121.57(14)
C(53)	C(54)	C(55)	121.05(14)	C(53)	C(54)	C(56)	117.87(13)
C(55)	C(54)	C(56)	121.05(17)	C(54)	C(56)	C(57)	123.62(17)
C(56)	C(57)	C(58)	121.99(16)	C(56)	C(57)	C(62)	116.79(13)
C(58)	C(57)	C(62)	121.20(12)	C(57)	C(58)	C(59)	112.24(12)
C(57)	C(58)	C(60)	111.02(15)	C(57)	C(58)	C(61)	109.28(16)
C(59)	C(58)	C(60)	107.51(18)	C(59)	C(58)	C(61)	105.98(16)
C(60)	C(58)	C(61)	109.72(14)	O(4)	C(62)	C(52)	119.10(15)
O(4)	C(62)	C(57)	120.11(12)	C(52)	C(62)	C(57)	120.78(12)

Table A6: Torsion angles (*) for {FeCl[O2N]^{BuMeBe}}2

atom1	atom2	atom3	atom4	angle	atcen1	atom2	atom3	atom-4	angle
CI(1)	Fe(1)	CI(2)	Fe(2)	6.18(2)	Cl(2)	Fe(1)	CI(1)	Fe(2)	-5.75(2)
CKD	Fe(1)	O(I)	C(I)	-102.38(15)	0(1)	Fe(1)	CI(1)	Fe(2)	-91.90(3)
ckú	Fe(1)	O(2)	C(31)	92,34(17)	0(2)	Fe(1)	CI(1)	Fc(2)	83.40(3)
CID	Fe(1)	N(I)	C(12)	78.89(10)	CKD	Fe(1)	N(I)	C(13)	-40.93(10)
CID	Fe(1)	NO	C(20)	-163.22(10)	N(I)	Fe(1)	CI(1)	Fe(2)	176.01(4)
CI(2)	Fe(1)	0(1)	C(1)	174.37(15)	0(1)	Fe(1)	C1(2)	Fe(2)	121.39(4)
CI(2)	Fe(1)	O(2)	C(31)	177.24(16)	O(2)	Fe(1)	CI(2)	Fc(2)	-119.26(4)
CI(2)	Fe(1)	N(I)	C(12)	38,7(9)	Cl(2)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(13)	-81.2(9)
CI(2)	Fe(1)	NÜ	C(20)	156.5(8)	N(I)	Fe(1)	CI(2)	Fc(2)	46.6(9)
0(1)	Fe(1)	0(2)	COM	-92.54(17)	O(2)	Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	82.00(15)
ôm.	Fe(1)	N(I)	C(12)	-36.14(10)	0(1)	Fe(1)	N(I)	C(13)	-155.96(10)

000	E _n (1)	NOD	C(20)	91 76(11)	N(T)	En(1)	OT	COD	-8 25(15)
000	Pa(1)	NUT	C(17)	166 61/100	000	Ew(I)	NO	CID	84.67(10)
0(2)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(20)	-27.62(11)	N(I)	Ee(D)	000	com	-2.09(17)
C1(1)	E-CD	CICD	E _s (1)	\$ 740(10)	00	Ea(7)	CIO	EcD	6 18(7)
CI(I)	Pe(2)	CRAF	COTTO	160.45(15)	000	Ea(7)	CI(I)	Er(1)	-103 03(4)
CI(I)	PO(2)	0(5)	C(52)	178 84(17)	000	5-(2)	CIO	Earl	125 83(4)
CI(I)	Pe(2)	0(4)	C(02)	-178.84(17)	(1)	10(2)	2000	CIAD	6 4(10)
CI(I)	Pe(2)	N(2)	C(43)	-120.0(9)	20(1)	FO(2)	CICI	E(1)	58.0(9)
CIO	PQ(2)	(0(2)	0(31)	106.01(10)	000	5-(2)	CICI	Er(1)	91 99(3)
CI(2)	Pd(2)	0(3)	C(52)	00.01(15)	003	5-(3)	CICI	Er(1)	00.45(4)
CI(2)	Pd(2)	0(4)	C(62)	-90.39(17)	(10)	10(2)	2000	CIAD	45 20(10)
CI(2)	Pe(2)	N(2)	C(43)	-74.90(10)	C(2)	PO(2)	(10)2)	C(44)	176 11(0)
CI(2)	Fe(2)	N(2)	C(51)	167.25(10)	N(2)	PO(2)	0(2)	P0(1)	70.01(16)
O(3)	Fe(2)	O(4)	C(62)	89.54(18)	0(4)	10(2)	0(3)	C(32)	-/9.01(10)
0(3)	P0(2)	N(2)	C(43)	34.41(11)	0(3)	10(2)	0(2)	C(77)	11 22(16)
O(3)	Pe(2)	N(2)	C(51)	-83.37(11)	N(2)	10(2)	0(3)	C(32)	84 22(10)
O(4)	Pe(2)	N(2)	C(43)	155.51(11)	U(4)	10(2)	N(2)	C(44)	-54.22(10)
O(4)	Fe(2)	N(2)	C(51)	37.73(11)	N(2)	F0(2)	O(4)	C(62)	-1.14(18)
Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	C(2)	-149,42(12)	Fe(1)	0(1)	C(I)	000	30.4(2)
Fe(1)	O(2)	C(31)	C(21)	20.7(2)	Fd(1)	0(2)	0000	C(20)	22.4(2)
Fo(2)	O(3)	C(32)	C(33)	146.82(15)	F0(2)	0(5)	0(32)	C(42)	-32.4(2)
Fo(2)	O(4)	C(02)	C(52)	-15.8(2)	F0(2)	U(4)	C(62)	000	104.32(14)
Fe(1)	N(1)	C(12)	C(11)	64.70(12)	Fe(1)	N(1)	C(15)	C(14)	-178.33(11)
Fe(1)	N(1)	C(20)	C(21)	05,44(13)	C(12)	20(1)	0(15)	0(14)	120 24(11)
C(13)	N(1)	C(12)	C(11)	-175.33(10)	Q(12)	20(1)	C(20)	0(21)	-179.24(11)
C(20)	N(1)	C(12)	C(11)	-50.69(13)	Q(15)	28(1)	C(20)	0(21)	-33.73(13)
C(20)	N(1)	C(13)	C(14)	-59.43(18)	HO(2)	N(2)	C(45)	C(42)	-04.04(13)
Fe(2)	N(2)	C(44)	C(45)	179.95(12)	Fe(2)	N(2)	C(SI)	C(52)	-04.08(13)
C(43)	N(2)	C(44)	C(45)	-62.57(17)	C(44)	19(2)	C(45)	C(42)	(1.20(10)
C(43)	N(2)	C(S1)	C(52)	179.52(11)	0,51)	N(2)	C(45)	C(42)	51.20(14)
C(44)	N(2)	C(51)	C(52)	54.65(15)	0(51)	N(2)	((++)	C(45)	173 1((14)
O(1)	C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	8.5(2)	0(1)	C(I)	CUD	can	-173.10(14)
0(1)	C(I)	C(III)	C(10)	174,008(14)	0(1)	COD	COLD	C(12)	176 16(14)
C(2)	C(1)	C(III)	C(10)	-0.1(2)	0(2)	C(I)	con	COD	7.0(7)
C(11)	C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	-1/1.28(15)	CIII)	000	0(2)	COD	65.8(2)
C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	C(4)	55.0(2)	C(I)	0(2)	((3)	0(3)	2 2(2)
C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	C(6)	173.11(16)	C(I)	(12)	C()	C(8)	122,23,23
C(3)	C(2)	C(D)	C(8)	176.09(16)	000	02)	(0)	C(4)	-123.17(18)
0(7)	C(2)	(15)	C(5)	113.98(19)	000	00	000	COM	2.6(2)
C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	C(9)	177.23(16)	0(2)	00	C(8)	CILD	176 17/161
C(7)	C(3)	C(10)	C(II)	4.0(2)	0(9)	C(8)	C(10)	CUD	177.86(15)
C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	C(1)	0.1(2)	C(8)	(10)	CIII)	C(12)	177,80(13)
C(I)	C(11)	C(12)	(N(1))	-48.37(18)	C(10)	(11)	(110)	COL	06.6(7)
N(1)	C(13)	C(14)	U(15)	-87.8(2)	(1)	C(15)	C(14)	C(19)	127.60(18)
C(13)	C(14)	C(15)	C(16)	-1/3.00(19)	C(15)	C(14)	C(19)	C(18)	2.0(1)
C(15)	C(14)	C(19)	C(18)	2.0(3)	C(19)	Q(4)	C(15)	C(16)	-2.7(3)

C(14) C(15) C(16) C(17) 2.0(3)	C(15) C(16) C(17) C(18) -0.0(2)
C(16) C(17) C(18) C(19) -0.9(3)	C(17) C(18) C(19) C(14) -0.0(2)
N(1) C(20) C(21) C(22) 130.61(15)	N(1) C(20) C(21) C(31) -51.8(2)
C(20) C(21) C(22) C(23) 179.10(17)	C(20) C(21) C(31) O(2) 3.6(2)
C(20) C(21) C(31) C(26) -175.95(16)	C(22) C(21) C(31) O(2) -178.85(16)
C(22) C(21) C(31) C(26) 1.6(2)	C(31) C(21) C(22) C(23) 1.5(2)
C(21) C(22) C(23) C(24) 176.83(18)	C(21) C(22) C(23) C(25) -2.6(2)
C(22) C(23) C(25) C(26) 0.7(3)	C(24) C(23) C(25) C(26) -178.76(19)
C(23) C(25) C(26) C(27) -175.22(18)	C(23) C(25) C(26) C(31) 2.3(2)
C(25) C(26) C(27) C(28) -3.0(2)	C(25) C(26) C(27) C(29) 116.0(2)
C(25) C(26) C(27) C(30) -123.1(2)	C(25) C(26) C(31) O(2) 177.09(16)
C(25) C(26) C(31) C(21) -3.4(2)	C(27) C(26) C(31) O(2) -5.4(2)
C(27) C(26) C(31) C(21) 174,13(17)	C(31) C(26) C(27) C(28) 179.65(18)
C(31) C(26) C(27) C(29) -61.4(2)	C(31) C(26) C(27) C(30) 59.5(2)
0(3) ((32) ((33) ((34) -5.3(2)	O(3) C(32) C(33) C(38) 176.77(14)
O(3) C(32) C(42) C(41) -176.99(14)	O(3) C(32) C(42) C(43) 2.3(2)
C(33) C(32) C(42) C(41) 3.8(2)	C(33) C(32) C(42) C(43) -176.83(15)
C(42) C(32) C(33) C(34) 173,83(15)	C(42) C(32) C(33) C(38) -4.1(2)
C(12) C(13) C(14) C(15) -57.7(2)	C(32) C(33) C(34) C(36) 63.2(2)
C(32) C(33) C(34) C(37) -176.52(16)	C(32) C(33) C(38) C(39) 1.1(2)
C(34) C(33) C(38) C(39) -176.82(16)	C(38) C(33) C(34) C(35) 120.05(19)
C(38) C(33) C(34) C(36) -118,97(19)	C(38) C(33) C(34) C(37) 1.3(2)
C(13) C(18) C(19) C(40) -178,62(16)	C(33) C(38) C(39) C(41) 2.1(2)
C(18) C(19) C(41) C(42) -2.4(2)	C(40) C(39) C(41) C(42) 178.33(16)
C(39) C(41) C(42) C(32) -0.5(2)	C(39) C(41) C(42) C(43) -179,79(15)
C(32) C(42) C(43) N(2) 50.33(19)	C(41) C(42) C(43) N(2) -130.36(15)
N(2) C(44) C(45) C(46) 96.8(2)	N(2) C(44) C(45) C(50) -91.5(2)
C(44) C(45) C(46) C(47) 171.5(2)	C(44) C(45) C(50) C(49) -173.42(19)
C(46) C(45) C(50) C(49) -1.5(3)	C(50) C(45) C(46) C(47) -0.5(3)
C(45) C(46) C(47) C(48) 1.6(4)	C(46) C(47) C(48) C(49) -0.8(4)
C(47) C(48) C(49) C(50) -1.1(4)	C(48) C(49) C(50) C(45) 2.3(3)
N(2) C(51) C(52) C(53) -131,47(16)	N(2) C(51) C(52) C(62) 51.8(2)
C(51) C(52) C(53) C(54) -178.20(17)	C(51) C(52) C(62) O(4) -6.1(2)
C(51) C(52) C(62) C(57) 173.54(16)	C(53) C(52) C(62) O(4) 177.17(16)
C(53) C(52) C(62) C(57) -3.2(2)	C(62) C(52) C(53) C(54) -1.4(2)
C(52) C(53) C(54) C(55) -173.86(18)	C(52) C(53) C(54) C(56) 4.1(2)
C(53) C(54) C(56) C(57) -2.3(3)	C(55) C(54) C(56) C(57) 175.68(19)
C(54) C(56) C(57) C(58) 176.18(19)	C(54) C(56) C(57) C(62) -2.1(3)
C(56) C(57) C(58) C(59) -1.1(2)	C(56) C(57) C(58) C(60) 119.2(2)
C(56) C(57) C(58) C(61) -119.64(19)	C(56) C(57) C(62) O(4) -175.52(17)
C(56) C(57) C(62) C(52) 4.8(2)	C(58) C(57) C(62) O(4) 6.2(2)
C(58) C(57) C(62) C(52) -173.47(17)	C(62) C(57) C(58) C(59) 177.07(18)
C(62) C(57) C(58) C(60) -62.6(2)	C(62) C(57) C(58) C(61) 58.6(2)

The sign is positive if when looking from atom 2 to atom 3 a clock-wise motion of atom 1



Figure A14: Molecular structure (ORTEP) and complete atom labeling of FeBr₂[O₂NH]^{BabluePr}. Ellipsoids shown at 50% probability.

Hydrogen atoms omitted for clarity.

Table A7: Bond lengt	hs (A) for FeBr:	[O ₂ NH] ^{Bustearr}
----------------------	------------------	---

atom	atom	distance	atom	atom	distance
Br(1)	Fe(1)	2.3569(7)	Br(2)	Fc(1)	2.3723(7)
Fc(1)	O(1)	1.828(3)	Fe(1)	O(2)	1.836(3)
O(1)	C(1)	1.337(5)	O(2)	C(24)	1.357(5)
N(6)	C(12)	1.509(6)	N(6)	C(13)	1.517(5)
N(6)	C(25)	1.516(6)	C(1)	C(2)	1.417(5)
C(1)	C(11)	1.413(5)	C(2)	C(3)	1.532(5)
C(2)	C(7)	1.394(6)	C(3)	C(4)	1.548(6)
C(3)	C(5)	1.539(6)	C(3)	C(6)	1.538(6)
C(7)	C(8)	1.398(6)	C(8)	C(9)	1.513(6)
C(8)	C(10)	1.386(6)	C(10)	C(11)	1.389(6)
C(1))	C(12)	1.498(6)	C(13)	C(14)	1.493(6)
C(14)	C(15)	1.396(6)	C(14)	C(24)	1.411(6)
C(15)	C(16)	1.391(6)	C(16)	C(17)	1.520(7)
C(16)	C(18)	1.376(6)	C(18)	C(19)	1.412(6)
C(19)	C(20)	1.535(6)	C(19)	C(24)	1.412(6)
C(20)	C(21)	1.546(7)	C(20)	C(22)	1.528(6)
C(20)	C(23)	1.540(6)	C(25)	C(26)	1.581(17)
C(25)	C(26A)	1.507(11)	C(26)	C(27)	1.56(4)
C(26)	C(26A)	1.24(2)	C(26)	C(27A)	1.19(3)
C(27)	C(26A)	1.51(5)	C(27)	C(27A)	0.48(5)
C(28)	C(29)	1.358(19)	C(29)	C(30)	1.413(11)
C(29)	C(31) ¹⁹	1.396(13)	C(30)	C(31)	1.376(13)
C(26A)	C(27A)	1.50(3)			

Table A8: Bond angles (*) for FeBr2[O2NH]Ba3teePr

atom	atom	atom	angle	ators	Horn	MORE	anala
Be(1)	Fe(1)	Be(2)	109.54(2)	Br(1)	Fe(1)	0(1)	110.72(9)
Be(1)	Fe(1)	O(2)	112.87(10)	Be(2)	Fe(1)	0(1)	109.42(10)
Be(2)	Fe(1)	O(2)	108.93(9)	0(1)	Fe(1)	0(2)	105.24(15)
Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	166.7(2)	Fe(1)	0(2)	C(24)	159.6(2)
C(12)	N(6)	C(13)	109,7(3)	C(12)	N(6)	C(25)	113.5(3)
C(13)	N(6)	C(25)	112.7(3)	O(I)	COL	C(2)	122.0(3)
0(1)	C(I)	C(11)	118.2(3)	C(2)	cm	C(1)	119.8(3)
C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	121.7(3)	C(1)	C(2)	C(7)	116.8(3)
C(3)	C(2)	C(7)	121.6(3)	C(2)	C(3)	C(4)	109.6(3)
C(2)	C(3)	C(5)	109.9(3)	C(2)	C(3)	C(6)	111.7(3)
C(4)	C(3)	C(5)	110.8(3)	C(4)	C(3)	C(6)	107.6(3)
C(5)	C(3)	C(6)	107.2(4)	C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	124.2(4)
C(7)	C(8)	C(9)	121.5(4)	C(7)	C(8)	C(10)	117.7(4)

C(9)	C(8)	C(10)	120.9(4)	C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	120.9(4)
C(1)	C(11)	C(10)	120.7(3)	C(1)	C(11)	C(12)	118.9(3)
C(10)	C(11)	C(12)	120.4(3)	N(6)	C(12)	C(11)	112,7(3)
N(6)	C(13)	C(14)	112.2(3)	C(13)	C(14)	C(15)	120.5(4)
C(13)	C(14)	C(24)	119.6(4)	C(15)	C(14)	C(24)	119.9(4)
C(14)	C(15)	C(16)	120.9(4)	C(15)	C(16)	C(17)	120.4(4)
C(15)	C(16)	C(18)	118.0(4)	C(17)	C(16)	C(18)	121.5(4)
C(16)	C(18)	C(19)	124.3(4)	C(18)	C(19)	C(20)	121.6(4)
C(18)	C(19)	C(24)	116.2(4)	C(20)	C(19)	C(24)	122.2(4)
C(19)	C(20)	C(21)	111.8(4)	C(19)	C(20)	C(22)	110.0(3)
C(19)	C(20)	C(23)	109.3(3)	C(21)	C(20)	C(22)	106.8(3)
C(21)	C(20)	C(23)	107.9(3)	C(22)	C(20)	C(23)	111.1(4)
O(2)	C(24)	C(14)	117.4(4)	O(2)	C(24)	C(19)	121.9(3)
C(14)	C(24)	C(19)	120.6(4)	N(6)	C(25)	C(26)	109.0(7)
N(6)	C(25)	C(26A)	115.0(5)	C(26)	C(25)	C(26A)	47.1(8)
C(25)	C(26)	C(27)	115(2)	C(25)	C(26)	C(26A)	63.3(8)
C(25)	C(26)	C(27A)	126(2)	C(27)	C(26)	C(26A)	64(2)
C(27)	C(26)	C(27A)	13(2)	C(26A)	C(26)	C(27A)	77(2)
C(26)	C(27)	C(26A)	47.4(16)	C(26)	C(27)	C(27A)	33(6)
C(26A)	C(27)	C(27A)	80(7)	C(28)	C(29)	C(30)_	121.4(10)
C(28)	C(29)	C(31)10	120.6(9)	C(30)_	C(29)	C(31) ¹⁰	117.8(8)
C(29)	C(30)	C(31)	122.5(8)	C(29)10	C(31)	C(30)	119.7(7)
C(25)	C(26A)	C(26)	69.6(9)	C(25)	C(26A)	C(27)	124(2)
C(25)	C(26A)	C(27A)	110.6(14)	C(26)	C(26A)	C(27)	69(2)
C(26)	C(26A)	C(27A)	50.2(16)	C(27)	C(26A)	C(27A)	18(2)
C(26)	C(27A)	C(27)	134(8)	C(26)	C(27A)	C(26A)	53.1(15)
C(27)	C(27A)	C(26A)	81(7)				

Table A9: Torsion angles (*) for FeBr2[O2NH]BaMosPr

atom 1	atom2	atom3	atom4	angle	ation 1	atom2	atom3	atom4	angle
Br(1)	Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	-152.7(13)	Br(1)	Fe(I)	O(2)	C(24)	124.0(8)
Br(2)	Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	-31.9(13)	Br(2)	Fe(I)	O(2)	C(24)	2.1(9)
O(1)	Fe(1)	O(2)	C(24)	-115.1(8)	O(2)	Fe(I)	O(1)	C(1)	85.0(13)
Fe(1)	O(1)	C(1)	C(2)	152.5(11)	Fe(I)	O(1)	C(1)	C(11)	-27.8(15)
Fe(1)	O(2)	C(24)	C(14)	56.1(10)	Fe(I)	O(2)	C(24)	C(19)	-126.3(7)
C(12)	N(6)	C(13)	C(14)	-162.1(3)	C(13)	N(6)	C(12)	C(11)	162.1(3)
C(12)	N(6)	C(25)	C(26)	139.7(8)	C(12)	N(6)	C(25)	C(26A)	89.1(6)
C(25)	N(6)	C(12)	C(11)	-70.9(4)	C(13)	N(6)	C(25)	C(26)	-94.8(8)
C(13)	N(6)	C(25)	C(26A)-145.4(6)	C(25)	N(6)	C(13)	C(14)	70.4(4)
O(1)	C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	-2.5(6)	O(1)	C(1)	C(2)	C(7)	178.0(3)
O(1)	C(1)	C(11)	C(10)	-178.3(4)	O(1)	C(1)	C(11)	C(12)	4.7(6)
C(2)	C(1)	C(11)	C(10)	1.4(6)	C(2)	C(I)	C(11)	C(12)	-175.7(3)

C(11)	C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	177.8(3)	C(11)	C(1)	C(2)	C(7)	-1.6(6)
C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	C(4)	61.9(4)	C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	C(5)	-60.2(5)
C(1)	C(2)	C(3)	C(6)	-179.0(4)	C(1)	C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	1.4(6)
C(3)	C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	-178.1(4)	C(7)	C(2)	C(3)	C(4)	-118.7(4)
C(7)	C(2)	C(3)	C(5)	119.2(4)	C(7)	C(2)	C(3)	C(6)	0.4(5)
C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	C(9)	178.6(4)	C(2)	C(7)	C(8)	C(10)	-0.8(7)
C(7)	C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	0.4(6)	C(9)	C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	-178.9(4)
C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	C(1)	-0.8(6)	C(8)	C(10)	C(11)	C(12)	176.2(4)
C(1)	C(11)	C(12)	N(6)	-67.2(5)	C(10)	C(11)	C(12)	N(6)	115.8(4)
N(6)	C(13)	C(14)	C(15)	-121.2(4)	N(6)	C(13)	C(14)	C(24)	60.5(5)
C(13)	C(14)	C(15)	C(16)	-177.1(4)	C(13)	C(14)	C(24)	O(2)	-2.8(6)
C(13)	C(14)	C(24)	C(19)	179.6(3)	C(15)	C(14)	C(24)	O(2)	178.9(3)
C(15)	C(14)	C(24)	C(19)	1.2(6)	C(24)	C(14)	C(15)	C(16)	1.2(6)
C(14)	C(15)	C(16)	C(17)	178.9(4)	C(14)	C(15)	C(16)	C(18)	-2.6(6)
C(15)	C(16)	C(18)	C(19)	1.8(6)	C(17)	C(16)	C(18)	C(19)	-179.8(4)
C(16)	C(18)	C(19)	C(20)	-176.8(4)	C(16)	C(18)	C(19)	C(24)	0.5(6)
C(18)	C(19)	C(20)	C(21)	-1.0(5)	C(18)	C(19)	C(20)	C(22)	-119.4(4)
C(18)	C(19)	C(20)	C(23)	118.4(4)	C(18)	C(19)	C(24)	O(2)	-179.6(3)
C(18)	C(19)	C(24)	C(14)	-2.0(6)	C(20)	C(19)	C(24)	O(2)	-2.3(6)
C(20)	C(19)	C(24)	C(14)	175.3(3)	C(24)	C(19)	C(20)	C(21)	-178.1(4)
C(24)	C(19)	C(20)	C(22)	63.4(5)	C(24)	C(19)	C(20)	C(23)	-58.8(5)
N(6)	C(25)	C(26)	C(27)	-68(2)	N(6)	C(25)	C(26)	C(26A)	-106.9(9)
N(6)	C(25)	C(26)	C(27A)-60(2)	N(6)	C(25)	C(26A) C(26)	93.2(10)
N(6)	C(25)	C(26A)C(27)	49(2)	N(6)	C(25)	C(26A) C(27A) 63.6(17)
C(26)	C(25)	C(26A)C(27)	-44(2)	C(26)	C(25)	C(26A) C(27A) -29.6(17)
C(26A	(C(25)	C(26)	C(27)	38(2)	C(26A)C(25)	C(26)	C(27A)	47(2)
C(25)	C(26)	C(27)	C(26A)-38(2)	C(25)	C(26)	C(27)	C(27A)	149(11)
C(25)	C(26)	C(26A	C(27)	141(2)	C(25)	C(26)	C(26A) C(27A) 142.9(19
C(25)	C(26)	C(27A)C(27)	-35(12)	C(25)	C(26)	C(27A) C(26A) -41.9(18)
C(27)	C(26)	C(26A)C(25)	-141(2)	C(27)	C(26)	C(26A) C(27A) 2(2)
C(26A	C(26)	C(27)	C(27A)-173(11)	C(27)	C(26)	C(27A) C(26A)-7(10)
C(27A	C(26)	C(27)	C(26A)173(11)	C(26A)C(26)	C(27A) C(27)	7(10)
C(27A	C(26)	C(26A)C(25)	-142.9(19)	C(27A)C(26)	C(26A) C(27)	-2(2)
C(26)	C(27)	C(26A)C(25)	45(2)	C(26)	C(27)	C(26A) C(27A) -4(5)
C(26)	C(27)	C(27A)C(26.4)5(8)	C(26A)C(27)	C(27A) C(26)	-5(8)
C(27A	(C(27)	C(26A)C(25)	49(8)	C(27A)C(27)	C(26A) C(26)	4(5)
C(28)	C(29)	C(30)	C(31)	-174.5(11)	C(28)	C(29)	C(31).	'C(30)''	174.5(11)
C(30)	C(29)	C(31)	°C(30)	0.0(12)	C(31) ³	'C(29)	C(30)	C(31)	-0.0(12)
C(29)	C(30)	C(31)	C(29)	0.0(12)	C(25)	C(26A)C(27A) C(26)	37.1(19)
C(25)	C(26A)C(27/	i)C(27)	-138(7)	C(26)	C(26A)C(27A) C(27)	-175(7)
C(27)	C(26A)C(27A	QC(26)	175(7)					

The sign is positive if when looking from atom 2 to atom 3 a clock-wise motion of atom 1 would superimpose it on atom 4.

H NMR data of cross-coupled products and radical clock experiments

(for Chapter 3)

Table 3.1, Entry 1: 1-cyclohexylbenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 5): 2.44 (m, 1H, ArCH); 1.36-1.80 (m, 10H, CH₂).

Table 3.1, Entry 2: 1-cyclohexyl-3-methoxybenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 3.79 (s. 3H, OC/*h*): 2.47 (m. H. A/C/F): 1.46-1.86 (m. 10F).

Table 3.1, Entry 3: 1-cyclobexyl-4-fluorobenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 5): 2.47 (m, 1H, ArC/R: 1.39-1.84 (m, 10H, CH-).

Table 3.1, Entry 5: 1-cyclobexylnaphthalene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 3.32 (m, 111, ArC/I): 1.55-2.03 (m, 10H, CH-3).

Table 3.1, Entry 6: 1-cyclohexyl-4-methylbenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 5): 7.08 (m, 440); 2.45 (m, 1H, ArCH₂); 2.30 (s, 3H, ArCH₃); 1.81 (m, 5H CH₂); 1.27 (m, 5H, CH₅).

Table 3.1, Entry 7: 1-cyclohexyl-2-methylbenzene.¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 5): 7.14 (m. 4H, AzH); 2.270 (m. 1H, AsCH); 2.33 (s, 3H, ArCH₃); 2.15 (m. 5H, CH₂); 1.53 (m. 2H, CH₂): 1.59 (m. 3H, CH₃).

Table 3.1, Entry 8: 1-cyclohexy1-4-methoxybenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDC1₅, δ): 7.13 (d, 2H); 6.34 (d, 2H); 3.79 (s, 3H, OCH₃); 2.44 (m, 1H, ArCH); 1.81 (m, 5H, CH₂); 1.30 (m, 5H, CH₂).

Table 3.2, Entry 1: 1-benzyl-2-methylbenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 8): 3.79 (s, 2H, CH₂); 2.33 (s, 3H, ArCH₃).

Table 3.2, Entry 2: 2-benzyl-1,3-dimethylbenzene. ¹Η NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 4.05 (s, 2H, ArCH₂Ar); 2.23 (s, 6H, ArCH₂).

Table 3.2, Entry 3: 1,3-bis(2-methylbenzyl)benzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 3.93 (s, 4H, ArCH₂Ar); 2.23 (s, 6H, ArCH₃).

Table 3.2, Entry 4: 1,3-bis(2,6-dimethylbenzyl)benzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 3,74 (s, 4H, Cf6): 2,24 (s, 6H, ArCH3).

Table 3.3, Entry 1: 1-(3-chloropropyl)-2-methylbenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCI₅, δ): 3.51 (z, 2H, CH₂CI); 2.70 (z, 2H, AuCH₂); 2.33 (s, 3H, AuCH₃); 1.84 (m, 2H, AuCH₂CH₂).

Table 3.3, Entry 2: 1-(3-chloropropyl)-4-fluorobenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 3.51 (dd, 2H, CH₂Cl); 2.75 (t, 2H, ArCH₂); 2.05 (t, 2H, CH₂).

Table 3.3, Eatry 3: 1-(4-chlorobutyl)-2-methylbenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 3.56 (m, 2H, CH₂Cl); 2.62 (m, 2H, AsCH₂); 1.81 (m, 2H, CH₂CH₂Cl); 1.69 (m, 2H, ArCH₂CH₂Ch). Table 3.3, Entry 4: 1-methyl-2-scrythenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 7.41 (s, br, 4H, AcH7): 2.71 (s, 2H, ArCH₂): 2.45 (s, 3H, ArCH₃): 1.74 (m, 2H, CH₂CH₃): 1.44 (m, 10H, CH₂): 1.03 (s, 3H, CH₂CH₃).

Table 3.3, Entry 5: 1,3-dimethyl-2-octylbenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 2.58 (m, 2H, Art/H₂, 2.34 (s, 6H, ArCH₂); 1.59 (m, 2H, ArCH₂CH₂); 1.28 (s, 10H, CH₂); 0.88 (dd, 3H, CH₂).

Table 3.3, Entry 6: 1-methyl-2-propylbenzene. ¹Η NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 2.58 (m, 2H, ArCH₃): 2.29 (s, 3H, ArCH₃): 1.60 (d), 2H, ArCH₃): 0.98 (m, 2H, CH₃).

Table 3.3, Entry 7: 1-fluoro-4-propylbenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 5): 2.60 (t, 2H, ArCH₂); 1.66 (m, 2H, CH₂); 0.92 (t, 3H, CH₃).

Table 3.3, Entry 8: 1,3-dimethyl-2-propyllsenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 2.41 (t, 2H, ArCH₂): 2.32 (s, 6H, ArCH₃): 1.45(m, 2H, ArCH₃CH₃): 0.92 (t, 3H, CH₃).

Table 3.4, Entry 2: 1-sec-butyl-4-methoxybenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 5): 3.78 (s, 5H, OCH₂): 2.27 (m, 1H, ArCH₂: 1.42 (ds, 2H, CHCH₂): 1.12 (t, 5H, CHCH₃): 0.87 (t, 3H, CHCH₂):

Table 3.4, Entry 3: 1-sec-butyl-2-methylbenzeme. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDC)₃, δ): 2.33 (m, H, ArCH₂); 2.69 (s, 3H, ArCH₂); 1.46 (m, 2H, ArCH₂); 1.29 (m, 3H, CHCH₃); 0.92 (t, 3H, CHC₃); 0.92 (t, 3H, CHCH₃); 0.92 (t, 3H,

Table 3.4, Entry 4: see-budylbenzene. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 8): 2.35 (m, H, ArCH): 1.45 (m, 2H, CHCH): 1.33 (m, 3H, CHCH): 0.95 (t, 3H, CH-CH).

Table 3.4, Entry 5: 1-sec-butyl-4-methylbenzeme. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDC1₅, δ): 2.38 (s, 3H, ArCH₂): 2.34 (m, H, ArCH₂: 1.35 (m, 2B, CHCH₂): 1.26 (m, 3H, CHCH₃): 0.88 (m, 3H, CHC₂H₃).

Table J.S., Entry 1: 2-(2-methylphenethyl)-1,3-diseane. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDC1₃, 8): 4.52 (i, H, CH): 4.12(m, 2H, OCH): 3.75(m, 2H, OCH): 2.71 (m, 2H, ArCH₂): 2.31(s, 3H, ArCH₂): 2.01 (m, 2H, CH-CH-CH): 1.37(m, 2H, CH-CH).

Table 3.5, Entry 3: ethyl 6-o-tolylhexanoate. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCI), 5): 4.12 (q, 2H, CH/CH)₂: 2.49 (q, 2H, ArCH)₂: 2.59 (dd, 2H, CH/CO); 2.30 (s, 3H, ArCH)₃: 1.66 (es, 2H, ArCH-CH: 23B, CH/CH CO)2: 1.40 (dd, 2H, CH/A).

Table 3.5, Entry 4: ethyl 6-(4-finorophenyt)hexanoste. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 4.15 (qc, 2H, OCH); 2.61 (m, 2H, ArCH₂); 2.32 (m, 2H, CH₂OC); 1.65 (m, 2H, ArCH₂OCH, 2H, CH₂OH, OCH); 2.06 (m, 2H, ArCH₂OH, cm, 3H, CH₂).

Table 3.5, Entry 7: 2-phenylbicyclo[2.2.1]heptane. ¹H NMR (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 5): 2.73 (m, H, ArC/R: 2.33 (t, 2H, CHC/F/CH): 1.42-1.78 (m, 8H).

NMR Data for "Radical Clock" Experiments

1-(but-3-enyl)-2-methylbenzene (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 8): 5.81(ddt, =CH, 1H.); 4.97(m, =CH₂, 2H.); 2.59(m, CH₂, 2H.); 2.29(s, CH₃, 3H.); 2.69(m, CH₂, 2H.).



1-(cyclopropylmethyl)-2-methylbenzene (500 MHz, CDCl₃, δ): 2.61(m, CH₂, 2H₃): 2.30(s, CH₃, 3H₃): -1.5(m, C₃H₃, 5H).



1-(hex-5-enyl)-2-methylbenzene (500 MHz, CDC1₃, δ): 5.83(m, =CH, 1H.); 5.02(dd, =CH₂, 2H.); 2.69(m, CH₂, 2H.); 2.30(s, CH₃, 3H.); 2.14(m, CH₂, 2H.);



1-(cyclopenty Imethyl)-2-methylbenzene (500 MHz, CDCl₂, δ): 2.33(m, CH₂, 2H₂): 2.30(s, CH₂, 3H₂): 2.01(m, CH, 1H).

GC Traces and Mass Spectra of Selected Products Given in Chapter 3

Table 3.1, Entry 1: Dodecane internal standard: R_c = 7.202 min. Cyclobexylbenzene: R_c = 8.211 min. By-product, biphenyl: R_c = 8.623 min.







Table 3.1, Entry 3: Dodecane internal standard: Re = 7.202 min. 1-cyclohexyl-4flaorobenzene: Re = 8.282 min. By-product, 4.47-diflaorobiphenyl: Re = 8.594 min.





Cyclohexene: R_i = 5.286 min. Starting material, cyclohexyl beomide: R_i = 4.174 min.

Table 3.1, Entry 5: Dodecare internal standard: Re = 7.204 min. 1cyclobexyltagehthalene: Re = 12.915 min.



Table 3.1, Entry 6: Dodecane internal standard: R₄=6.694 min. 1-cyclohexyl-4methylbenzene: R₄=8.440 min. Bv-product, 4.4°-dimethylbiphenyl: R₄=9.588 min,







Table 3.1, Entry 8 (Heated to 40 °C): Dodecane internal standard: R_c = 7.203 min. 1cyclohexy1-4-methoxy- benzene: R_c = 9.965 min. Starting material, cyclohexy1 chloride: R_c = 4.413 min.



Table 3.1, Entry 8 (MW method): Dodecane internal standard: R_c = 7.206 min. 1cyclohexyl-4-methoxybenzene, R_c = 9.967 min. By-product: 4.4-dimethoxybiphenyl, R_c = 13.468 min.



Table 3.2, Entry I: Dodecane internal standard Re = 6.724 min. 1-benzyl-2-

methylbenzene, Re = 9.155 min. By-product: 2.27-dimethylbiphenyl, Re = 8.447 min.



Table 3.2, Entry 2: Dodecane internal standard R,= 6.694 min. 2-benzyl-1.3dimethylbenzene, R,= 9.630 min. By-product: 2.2',6,6-tetramethylbiphenyl, R,= 8.910 min. 1.2-diphenylethane, R,= 9.062 min.



Table 3.2, Entry 3: Dodecane internal standard R_i = 6.689 min. 1,3-bis(2-

methylbenzyljbenzene, Re = 14.067 min. By-product: 2,2'-dimethylbiphenyl, Re = 8.411 min.



Table 3.3, Entry 1: Dodecane internal standard R₂ = 6.461 min. 1-(3-chloropropyl)-2methylbenzene, R₄ = 7.520 min. By-product: 2,2'-dimethylbiphenyl, R₄ = 8.195 min.



Table 3.3, Entry 2 (MW method): Dodecare internal standard R_i= 7.213 min. 1-(3chloropropyl)-4-fluoro-benzene, R_i = 7.501 min. By-product: 4,4⁻difluorobiphenyl, R_i = 8.599 min.



Table 3.3, Entry 3: Dodecane internal standard R,= 6.693 min. 1-(4-chlorobutyl)-2methylbenzene, R,= 8.513 min. By-product: 2.2'-dimethylbiphenyl, R,= 8.416 min.









Table 3.3, Entry 5 (MW method): Dodecare internal standard R_i = 7.203 min. 1,3dimethyl-2-octylBenzene, R_i = 10.576 min. By-product: 2,2',6,6'-totramethylbiphenyl, R_i = 9.400 min.

Table 3.3, Entry 6: Dodecane internal standard R_c = 7.202 min. 1-methyl-2recov/benzene, R_c = 6,166 min. Bw-product: 2.2'-dimethylbiphenyl, R_c = 8.906 min.



Table 3.3, Entry 7: Dodecane internal standard R_c = 7.204 min. 1-fluoro-4propylbenzene, R_c = 5.224 min. By-product: 4,4'-difluorobiphenyl, R_c = 8.594 min.



Table 3.3, Entry 8 (MW method): Dodocane internal standard R_i= 7.207 min. 1,3dimethyl-2-propyBenzene, R_i= 7.079 min. By-product: 2,27,6,6'-tetramethylbiphenyl, R_i = 9,399 min.







Table 3.4, Entry 2 (MW method): Dodecane internal standard R_i = 7.205 min. 1-secbatyl-4-methoxybenzene, R_i = 7.734 min.







Table 3.4, Entry 3 (MW method at 100 °C): Dodecane internal standard R_i=7.202 min. 1-sec-batyl-2-methylbenzene, R_i=6.602 min, By-product: 2,2'-dimethylbiphenyl, R_i = 8.905 min.



Table J.4, Entry 3 (MW method at 180 °C): Dodecane internal standard R_c = 7.205 min. 1-sec-batyl-2-methylbenzene, R_c = 6.605 min. By-product: 2.2'-dimethylbiphenyl, R_c = 8.508 min.






Table 3.4, Entry 4 (MW method): Dodecane internal standard R, = 7.220 min. secbut/(bergene, R, = 5.650 min. By-product: hiphenyl, R, = 8.631 min.



Table 3.4, Entry 5: Dodecane internal standard R_c = 7.204 min. 1-sec-butyl-2methylbenzene, R_c = 6.538 min. Bv-product: 4.4*-dimethylbiphenyl, R_c = 10.124 min.



Table 3.5, Entry 1: Dodecane internal standard R, = 7.206 min. 2-(2-methylphenethyl)-1,3-dioxane, R, = 10.264 min. By-product: 2,2'-dimethylbiphenyl, R, = 8.908 min.



Table 3.5, Entry 3: Dodecane internal standard R_i = 7.209 min. Ethyl-6-o-tolylhexanoate, R_i = 11.398 min. By-product: 2.2*dimethylbiphenyl, R_i = 8.908 min. Other small peaks are impurities from the starting material, ethyl-6-bromchexanoate.



Table 3.5, Entry 4: Dodecare internal standard R = 7.206 min. Ethyl 6-(4-

fluorophenyl)hexanoate, Re = 10.497 min. By-product: 4,47-difluorobiphenyl, Re = 8.593 min.



Table 3.5, Entry 4 (MW method): Dodecare internal standard R_c=7.203 min): Ethyl 6-(4-fluorophenyl)- hexanoate, R_c=10.495 min. By-product: 4,4-difluorobiphenyl, R_c= 8.592 min.



Table 3.5, Entry 7: Dodecane internal standard R_c= 7.206 min. (1S.2S.4R)-2pherytbicyclo[2.2.1]heptane, R_c= 8.964 min. By-product: biphenyl, R_c= 8.621 min.



Table 3.5, Entry 7 (MW method): Dodecane internal standard R,= 7.209 min. (18,25,4R)-2-phenylbicyclo[2.2.1] heptane, R,= 8.968 min. By-product: biphenyl, R,= 8.624 min.



GC traces of radical clock experiments

Dodecane internal standard R_c = 5.83 min. 1-(bat-3-enyl)-2-methylbenzene, R_c = 5.34 min. 1-(cyclopropylmethyl)-2-methylbenzene, R_c = 6.24 min. 2,2°-dimethylbiphenyl, R_c = 8.06 min.



Dodecane internal standard R_i = 5.83 min. 1-(hex-5-enyl)-2-methylbenzene, R_i = 7.39 min. 1-(cyclopentylmethyl)-2-methylbenzene, R_i = 7.98 min. 2.2'-dimethylbiphenyl, R_i = 8.05 min.



¹H NMR data of cross-coupled products (for Chapter 4)



Di-o-tolyImethane (500 MHz, CDC1, 81: 3.84(s, CH, 2H.); 2.19 (s, CH, 6H.).



1.2-di-o-tolylethane (500 MHz, CDC), 81: 2.78(s, CHs, 4HJ; 2.24(s, CHs, 6H))



2,2'-dimethylbiphenyl (500 MHz, CDCl₅, 8): 1.98(s, CH₂, 6H.).



Diphenylmethane (500 MHz, CDCl₃, 8): 3.87(s, CH₅, 2H,).



1,2-diphenylethane (500 MHz, CDCl₅, 8): 2.82(s, CH₅, 4H.).

GC traces of cross-coupling products: o-tolyl Grignard Reagent with

Dichloromethane

Table 4.1, Entry I: Dodecane internal standard R_c = 6.728 min, di-o-tolylmethane, R_c = 9.768 min, 1.2-di-o-tolylethane, R_c = 10.340 min, 2.2°-dimethylbiphenyl, R_c = 8.450 min.



